clc
511 idcuoeuin cone

BOARD
OF

COMMISSIONERS
MEETING
October 10, 2022

BBBBB , 1D 83702 CAPITAL CITY

DEVELOPMENT CORP


SLawrence
Typewritten Text

SLawrence
Typewritten Text


CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Board of Commissioners Meeting
Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9™ Street
October 10, 2022, 12 p.m.

This meeting will be available via live stream.

Join at https://ccdcboise.com/board-of-commissioners/

AGENDA

[. CALL TO ORDER ..ottt ettt e et e e e e e e e e e et s s e e e e e e eaattaa e e aeeeeaennees Chair Haney Keith

[I. ACTION ITEM: AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS ... Chair Haney Keith

lll. ACTION ITEM: CONSENT AGENDA

A.

B.

C.

Expenses
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report - September 2022

Minutes and Reports
1. Approval of September 12, 2022 Meeting Minutes

Other
1. Approve Resolution 1792 - 1744 W Main St - West End Food Hub - T1 Participation Agreement

IV. ACTION ITEM

A.

CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1788 - Amended and Restated Land Exchange Agreement with
Treasure Valley YMCA (5 MINULES) ..uuuuuiiiieii e ee e eeetiie e e e e e e et eeeeeeaaaeaa s Alexandra Monjar

CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1789 - Block 68 Catalytic Redevelopment Project, Block 69N
Disposition and Development Agreement (20 MINUEES) .....eeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiee e Alexandra Monjar

CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1790 - Block 68 Catalytic Redevelopment Project, First Amendment to
the Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively with Block 68 Development LLC (5 minutes) ..Alexandra Monjar

. CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1766 - Linen Blocks on Grove Street Streetscape Improvement Project

- Amendment No. 1 to the CM/GC Contract with Guho Corp. (10 minutes)
...................................................................................................................... Kathy Wanner/Amy Fimbel

CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1787 - Design Professional Contract with Jensen Belts Associates for
the 521 W Grove Street Public Space Project (10 minutes) ............ccccceeeenee... Karl Woods/Kathy Wanner

CONSIDER: 1015 Main Street - Smith Block Building - T1 Participation Designation (5 minutes)
............................................................................................................................................. Kassi Brown

CONSIDER: 2618 W Fairview Ave - The LOCAL Fairview - T2 Participation Designation
[T =) PR Kevin Holmes

CONSIDER: 818 W Ann Morrison Park Dr - Capitol Student Housing - T2 Participation Designation
(ST =) PP Kevin Holmes

CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1791- Participation Program Policy Update (10 minutes)
.......................................................................................................................................... Kevin Holmes

V. ADJOURN

This meeting will be conducted in compliance with the Idaho Open Meetings Law and will allow both in-person and virtual
attendance. In addition, consistent with the Center for Disease Control COVID-19 guidelines, people with symptoms, a
positive test, or exposure to someone with COVID-19 should stay home or wear a mask. This meeting is being conducted
in a location accessible to those with physical disabilities. Participants may request reasonable accommodations, including
but not limited to a language interpreter, from CCDC to facilitate their participation in the meeting. For assistance with
accommodation, contact CCDC at 121 N 9th St, Suite 501 or (208) 384-4264 (TTY Relay 1-800-377-3529).


https://ccdcboise.com/board-of-commissioners/

&
1] capm iy

1.
CONSENT
AGENDA



ol
e oapm oy

Paid Invoice Report

For the Period: 9/1/2022 through 9/30/2022

Payee Description Payment Date Amount
Debt Service:
Payroll: Total Debt Payments: -
PERSI Retirement Payment 9/7/2022 21,480.14
EFTPS - IRS Federal Payroll Taxes 9/7/2022 15,712.26
Idaho State Tax Commission State Payroll Taxes 9/7/2022 2,347.00
CCDC Employees Direct Deposits Net Pay 9/7/2022 40,018.02
PERSI Retirement Payment 9/21/2022 21,480.12
EFTPS - IRS Federal Payroll Taxes 9/21/2022 15,712.22
Idaho State Tax Commission State Payroll Taxes 9/21/2022 2,347.00
CCDC Employees Direct Deposits Net Pay 9/21/2022 40,018.02
Total Payroll Payments: 159,114.78

Checks and ACH
Various Vendors Check and ACH Payments (See Attached) September 2022 4,785,672.18

Total Cash Disbursements: $ 4,944,786.96

| have reviewed and approved all cash disbursements in the month listed above.

Joey Chen John Brunelle
Finance Director Executive Director
9/29/2022 9/28/2022

Date Date


jchen
Typewritten Text
Joey Chen

jbrunelle
Typewritten Text
John Brunelle

jchen
Typewritten Text
9/29/2022

jbrunelle
Typewritten Text
9/28/2022

mschlake
Text Box

mschlake
Text Box


CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page: 1

Check issue dates: 9/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 Sep 30, 2022 09:45AM
Report Criteria:
Detail report type printed
Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check
Number Name Number Description Date Number Issue Date
4136 Abbey Louie LLC 295 Management Training FY2 ~ 08/31/2022 4,000.00 12587 09/29/2022
Total 4136: 4,000.00
4082 Acme Fast Freight 1600010564 11th & Front garage CAM e 09/01/2022 2,548.76 12588 09/29/2022
Total 4082: 2,548.76
1058 Ada County Highway Distri 17297 2020 Downtown Boise Impl  08/24/2022 434.25 64260 09/28/2022
Total 1058: 434.25
4180 Adare Manor LLC FY22 T2 PO2 T2 Contractual Payment - 09/13/2022 91,5635.12 64261 09/28/2022
Total 4180: 91,5635.12
4207 Amber Beierle SIGNS OF O Linen Blocks Neon Signs H  08/17/2022 3,500.00 12589 09/29/2022
Total 4207: 3,500.00
3838 American Fire Protection L 13779 Monthly pump inspection &  08/26/2022 200.00 64262 09/28/2022
Total 3838: 200.00
1316 Blue Cross of Idaho 2221500000 Health Insurance - Sep 202 09/01/2022 30,394.95 64234 09/01/2022
Total 1316: 30,394.95
1385 Boise City Utility Billing X1177SEP22 848 Main St # 0447416001  09/01/2022 9.24 12631 09/26/2022
Total 1385: 9.24
4022 Boxcast Inc B57F3A3-00 storage fees 08/31/2022 32.29 12590 09/29/2022
Total 4022: 32.29
4190 BrandCraft 4138 CCDC Website: Ongoing U  09/16/2022 675.00 12591 09/29/2022
4138 CCDC Website: Ongoing U  09/16/2022 225.00- 12591 09/29/2022
4138 ParkBOI Website: Ongoing  09/16/2022 225.00 12591 09/29/2022
4138 ParkBOI Website: Ongoing  09/16/2022 225.00 12591 09/29/2022
Total 4190: 900.00
4178 BVGC Parcel B LLC FY22 T3 PO2 T3 Contractual Payment - 09/19/2022  607,645.00 12611 09/30/2022
Total 4178: 607,645.00
3816 Capitol Landscape Inc. 909092022 9th & Front repair pavers b~ 09/09/2022 740.00 12592 09/29/2022
Total 3816: 740.00
3712 Car Park AUG2022 10th & Front - Grove 08/31/2022 23,315.09 12612  09/30/2022
AUG2022 9th & Front - City Centre 08/31/2022 31,318.17 12612 09/30/2022

AUG2022 9th & Main - Eastman 08/31/2022 28,023.30 12612  09/30/2022




CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page: 2

Check issue dates: 9/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 Sep 30, 2022 09:45AM
Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check
Number Name Number Description Date Number  Issue Date

AUG2022 Cap & Main - Cap Terrace 08/31/2022 39,207.10 12612 09/30/2022

AUG2022 Cap & Myrtle - Myrtle 08/31/2022 19,479.11 12612 09/30/2022
AUGUST202 Settle undeposited funds J  09/01/2022 19,431.00 12612 09/30/2022
JUL2022 10th & Front - Grove 07/31/2022 28,849.59 12612 09/30/2022
JUL2022 9th & Front - City Centre 07/31/2022 63,449.17 12612 09/30/2022
JUL2022 9th & Main - Eastman 07/31/2022 30,392.58 12612 09/30/2022
JUL2022 Cap & Main - Cap Terrace 07/31/2022 42,486.60 12612  09/30/2022
JUL2022 Cap & Myrtle - Myrtle 07/31/2022 25,021.02 12612 09/30/2022
JUL2022 10th & Front - refunds 07/31/2022 174.00 12612 09/30/2022
Total 3712: 351,146.73
4200 Cascade Enterprises Inc. 3404 APP#2 ParkBOI Handrail & Guardr 08/01/2022 34,162.00 12613 09/30/2022
3413 APP#3 ParkBOIl Handrail & Guardr  08/25/2022 107,258.85 12613 09/30/2022
3413 APP#3 ParkBOI Handrail & Guardr  08/25/2022 9,841.00 12613 09/30/2022
Total 4200: 151,261.85
1556 Caselle Inc. 118694 Contract support - Sep 202  09/01/2022 866.00 64235 09/01/2022
Total 1556: 866.00
1595 City of Boise IL1970 Trash - RMOB 09/01/2022 2,088.45 64263 09/28/2022
IL1970 Trash - WS 09/01/2022 1,512.33 64263 09/28/2022
Total 1595: 3,600.78
4116 Civil Survey Consultants In 22018-04 Eisenman Rd. Pedestrian 08/31/2022 23,943.30 12614 09/30/2022
Total 4116: 23,943.30
4198 Consurco, Inc. 20765 APP#  9th & Main, Capitol & Main ~ 08/29/2022 180,064.90 12615 09/30/2022
20766 APP # Water Ponding Repairs 08/31/2022 28,000.00 12615 09/30/2022
20766 APP # Water Ponding Repairs 08/31/2022 5,943.50 12615 09/30/2022
Total 4198: 214,008.40
3977 Cushing Terrell Architects 170392 Parking Garage EV Chargi  08/30/2022 8,275.00 12616  09/30/2022
Total 3977: 8,275.00
4151 Desman Inc D22048 10th & Front Structural Da  07/31/2022 7,000.00 12617 09/30/2022
Total 4151: 7,000.00
1838 Elam & Burke P.A. 198044 Units 401/102 Civic Partner  08/31/2022 425.00 12618 09/30/2022
198045 Block 68 08/31/2022 26,374.65 12618 09/30/2022
198046 River Myrtle Amendment 08/31/2022 100.00 12618 09/30/2022
198047 101-0 General 08/31/2022 1,892.55 12618 09/30/2022
198048 River Myrtle Implement Act  08/31/2022 2,225.00 12618 09/30/2022
Total 1838: 31,017.20

4191 Fimbel, Amy 9.21.2022 IEDC Excellence in Econo  09/21/2022 252.79 12632 09/28/2022

Total 4191: 252.79




CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page: 3

Check issue dates: 9/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 Sep 30, 2022 09:45AM
Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check
Number Name Number Description Date Number  Issue Date

4060 First American Title Compa SETTLEMEN 703 S 8th St - Settlement P 09/06/2022 1,902,849.83 12584  09/09/2022
Total 4060: 1,902,849.83

4155 Front Street Investors LLC ~ FY22 T3 PO2 T3 Contractual Pmt Home2 09/19/2022 242,084.92 12619 09/30/2022

Total 4155: 242,084.92
1982 GGLOLLC 2021031.01 Linen Blocks on Grove Stre  08/15/2022 63,882.14 12620 09/30/2022
2021031.01 WS Linen Blocks on Grove  08/15/2022 5,556.25 12620 09/30/2022
2021031.01 Linen Blocks on Grove Stre  08/15/2022 14,697.50 12620 09/30/2022
2021031.01 WS Linen Blocks on Grove ~ 08/15/2022 4,917.75 12620 09/30/2022
2021031.01 Linen Blocks on Grove Stre  08/15/2022 23,949.61 12620 09/30/2022

Total 1982: 113,003.25
3695 Guho Corp. 21066-05 Linen Blocks on Grove SS 08/31/2022 3,789.36 12593  09/29/2022

Total 3695: 3,789.36
4115 HDR Engineering Inc 1200459540 Main & Fairview Transit Sta  08/27/2022 684.00 12594 09/29/2022
1200459541 Main & Fairview Transit Sta  08/27/2022 693.00 12594 09/29/2022

Total 4115: 1,377.00
3810 Hummel Architects PLLC 10590 ParkBOI-Stairwell Hand Ra  08/31/2022 437.50 12595 09/29/2022
10591 Parking Garage Membrane  08/31/2022 233.25 12595 09/29/2022

Total 3810: 670.75
2132 Idaho Business Review 1006938466 Supplements - PowerList 08/01/2022 2,150.00 12596 09/29/2022
1006941447 Supplements - PowerList 08/17/2022 2,150.00 12596 09/29/2022

Total 2132: 4,300.00
2165 Idaho Power 6607AUG22 9th St outlets #220040660  08/31/2022 3.51 12586 09/19/2022
7995AUG22 9th & State # 2201627995 08/31/2022 3.51 12628 09/22/2022

Total 2165: 7.02
3900 Idaho Records Manageme 0151542 Records Storage 09/01/2022 40.00 12597 09/29/2022

Total 3900: 40.00
2288 Jensen Belts Associates 2114.CA-3 11th Street Bikeway & Stre  08/31/2022 4,257.25 12621 09/30/2022
2114.CA-3 11th Street Bikeway & Stre  08/31/2022 6,686.50 12621 09/30/2022

Total 2288: 10,943.75
3910 Joey Chen 09.13.2022 Admin Day purchases 09/20/2022 34.34 12635 09/28/2022

Total 3910: 34.34
2360 Kittelson & Associates Inc. 0128803 8th St Improvements, State  07/31/2022 20.00 12598 09/29/2022

0128803 8th St Improvements, State  07/31/2022 2,673.75 12598 09/29/2022




CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page: 4

Check issue dates: 9/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 Sep 30, 2022 09:45AM
Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check

Number Name Number Description Date Number  Issue Date
Total 2360: 2,693.75

3439 KPFF Consulting Engineer 436059 9th & Main Column Repair 07/31/2022 265.50 12599 09/29/2022
Total 3439: 265.50

3881 Mary E. Watson 09.21.2022 NIGP Training: Protests & 09/21/2022 165.00 12634 09/28/2022

9.01.2022 Annual Employment Law S 09/01/2022 125.00 12585 09/13/2022

Total 3881: 290.00

3950 McAlvain Construction Inc. 12101012.1 11th Street Bikeway & Stre  08/31/2022  388,674.30 12622  09/30/2022
12101012.2 11th Street Bikeway & Stre  08/31/2022  298,903.87 12622  09/30/2022
12101012.2 11th Street Bikeway & Stre  08/31/2022 157,273.00 12622 09/30/2022

Total 3950: 844,851.17
2186 McClatchy Company LLC 140048 Legal Notices 08/31/2022 1,608.88 12600 09/29/2022
Total 2186: 1,608.88
4023 Primary Electric Inc 5902 Capital & Myrtle Demo elec  08/16/2022 135.00 12601 09/29/2022
5991 Capital & Main heater hook  09/13/2022 90.00 12601  09/29/2022
Total 4023: 225.00
2774 Pro Care Landscape Mana 45166. Landscape Maintenance - 08/31/2022 598.00 12602 09/29/2022
45166. Landscape Maintenance - 08/31/2022 287.06 12602 09/29/2022
45167 Landscape Maintenance - 08/31/2022 158.00 12602 09/29/2022
45167 Landscape Maintenance - 08/31/2022 65.95 12602 09/29/2022
45168 Landscape Maintenance - 08/31/2022 45.00 12602 09/29/2022
45169 Landscape Maintenance - 08/31/2022 54.00 12602 09/29/2022
Total 2774: 1,208.01
2798 Quadrant Consulting Inc. 12198 Old Boise - Grove Street C  08/19/2022 3,795.00 12623 09/30/2022
12199 17th Street Improvements 08/19/2022 6,409.60 12623 09/30/2022
12227 2022 URD Mapping Updat ~ 08/19/2022 1,645.61 12623 09/30/2022
Total 2798: 11,850.21
3896 Rim View LLC SEP2022 Monthly Rent - Trailhead S~ 09/01/2022 15,707.50 64236 09/01/2022
Total 3896: 15,707.50
3796 Scheidt & Bachmann USA | 48912 Aug 2022 Merchant Fee 08/31/2022 902.22 12603 09/29/2022
Total 3796: 902.22
3542 Security LLC - Plaza 121 SEP2022 Office rent 09/01/2022 14,145.00 64237 09/01/2022

Total 3542: 14,145.00

4131 Smarking Inc 6422 Data Management Service  08/31/2022 4,500.00 12604 09/29/2022




CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page: 5

Check issue dates: 9/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 Sep 30, 2022 09:45AM
Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check
Number Name Number Description Date Number  Issue Date
Total 4131: 4,500.00
3974 Stability Networks Inc. 41098 IT Services - FY2022 08/31/2022 3,035.00 12605 09/29/2022
41170 AppRiver SecureTide 08/31/2022 89.00 12605 09/29/2022
41170 Cisco Subscription 08/31/2022 5.84 12605 09/29/2022
41170 M365 Apps for Business 08/31/2022 188.30 12605 09/29/2022
41170 Cloud Backup 08/31/2022 495.00 12605 09/29/2022
Total 3974: 3,813.14
4109 Syringa Networks LLC 20339 SEP2 internet & data 09/01/2022 653.02 64264 09/28/2022
Total 4109: 653.02
3831 The Land Group Inc. 0148755 Fulton Street Improvement  08/31/2022 5,090.50 12624 09/30/2022
Total 3831: 5,090.50
4074 The Potting Shed 20829 Jun 2022 Interior Plant Mai  08/01/2022 65.00 64265 09/28/2022
21045 Interior Plant Maint. 08/31/2022 65.00 64265 09/28/2022
Total 4074: 130.00
4183 Track Utilities LLC APP RETAIN Production & Gowen Rd Ut  07/14/2022 20,164.85 64266 09/28/2022
Total 4183: 20,164.85
3170 Treasure Valley Coffee Inc  2160:083611  Cooler Rental 08/06/2022 106.00 12606 09/29/2022
2160:084208 Water & Cooler Rental 09/13/2022 106.00 12606 09/29/2022
2160:084701 Coffee & tea 09/08/2022 177.00 12606 09/29/2022
Total 3170: 389.00
3233 United Heritage 02014-001 S  Disability insurance - Sep2  09/01/2022 1,563.91 64267 09/28/2022
Total 3233: 1,563.91
3835 US Bank - Credit Cards 08.25.2022 Voice, Data & Webhosting 08/25/2022 39.12 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 office supplies 08/25/2022 4,124.75 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 computer & software suppli  08/25/2022 874.09 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 postage 08/25/2022 2.41 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 dues & subscriptions 08/25/2022 1,120.60 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 Travel & meeting (non-local  08/25/2022 1,802.20 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 Personnel Training (Local) 08/25/2022 1,729.00 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 Local Meetings & Transport ~ 08/25/2022 778.05 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 Professional Services Gen  08/25/2022 90.00 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 Street/District Improvement  08/25/2022 180.53 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 Street/District Improvement  08/25/2022 180.53 12583 09/19/2022
08.25.2022 Banking & Merchant Fees 08/25/2022 88.60 12583 09/19/2022
Total 3835: 11,009.88

3266 Valley Regional Transit 30421 Boise Bike Share 2.0 Pilot 09/13/2022 5,000.00 12625 09/30/2022

Total 3266: 5,000.00




CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORP Paid Invoice Report - Alphabetical Page: 6

Check issue dates: 9/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 Sep 30, 2022 09:45AM
Vendor Invoice Invoice Amount Check Check
Number Name Number Description Date Number  Issue Date
3242 Veolia (Suez Water Idaho) 0025AUG22 437 S 9th St irri #06006688 08/31/2022 116.83 12636 09/29/2022
2853AUG22 Eastman office #06000337  08/31/2022 136.23 12630 09/26/2022
8504AUG22 Grove & 10th #060035756  08/31/2022 313.12 12629 09/26/2022

Total 3242: 566.18

4215 VEOLIA Water Idaho, INC. GROVE ST Linen Blocks on Grove Stre  08/31/2022 11,450.00 64268 09/28/2022

Total 4215: 11,450.00

4068 Veritas Material Consulting 1882 9th & Main, Cap & Main Ga  08/31/2022 900.00 12607 09/29/2022
Total 4068: 900.00

3997 Wash Worx INV-001102 Panel removal 9th & Main; 08/31/2022 6,800.00 12626 09/30/2022
Total 3997: 6,800.00

3365 Westerberg & Associates 261 Lobbiest Services 08/31/2022 2,000.00 12608 09/29/2022
Total 3365: 2,000.00

3998 Western Records Destructi 0605046 Records Destroyed 08/31/2022 54.00 64269 09/28/2022
Total 3998: 54.00

3374 Western States Equipment  IN002129429 Bldg 8 generator maintena  08/31/2022 308.64 64270 09/28/2022
Total 3374: 308.64

3990 Xerox Corporation 017031153 Copier Lease 08/31/2022 327.27 12609 09/29/2022
Total 3990: 327.27

4216 Zachary Piepmeyer 09.23.2022 2022 Designing Cities Conf  09/23/2022 3,443.20 12633 09/28/2022
Total 4216: 3,443.20

4158 Zoom Video Communicatio INV1616142 video conference service 8/ 08/31/2022 1,349.47 12610 09/29/2022
Total 4158: 1,349.47
Grand Totals: 4,785,672.18 A

Report Criteria:

Detail report type printed



mschlake
Highlight


MINUTES OF MEETING
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
Conference Room, Fifth Floor, 121 N. 9" Street
Boise, ID 83702
September 12, 2022

. CALL TO ORDER:

Vice-Chair Haney Keith convened the meeting with a quorum at 12:04 p.m.
Roll Call attendance taken:

Present: Commissioner Lauren McLean, Commissioner Danielle Hurd, Commissioner Ryan
Erstad, Commissioner Alexis Townsend, Commissioner Rob Perez, Commissioner Haney Keith

Commissioner John Stevens joined via Zoom.

Agency staff members present: John Brunelle, Executive Director; Doug Woodruff, Development
Director; Kevin Holmes, Project Manager — Property Development; Joey Chen, Finance &
Administration Director; Mary Watson, General Counsel, Sandy Lawrence Executive Assistant;
and Agency legal counsel, Meghan Sullivan Conrad.

[I. ACTION ITEM: AGENDA CHANGES/ADDITIONS:
There were no changes or additions made to the agenda.

. WORK SESSION:

A. West End Water Renewal Master Plan
Kevin Holmes, Project Manager — Property Development; gave a report.

IV. ACTION ITEM: CONSENT AGENDA

A. Expenses
1. Approval of Paid Invoice Report — August 2022

B. Minutes and Reports
1. Approval of August 8, 2022 Meeting Minutes
2. Approval of August 24, 2022 Special Meeting Minutes

C. Other

1. Approve Resolution 1786 - 1110 W. Grove St - Hotel Renegade - T4 Participation
Agreement

2. FY2022 Q3 Financial Report (Unaudited)

3. Approve Resolution 1784 - Amendment No. 1 to Task Order 19-003 with GGLO for
Professional Design Services for the Linen Blocks on Grove Street Streetscape
Improvements Project

4. Approve Resolution 1785 Interagency Agreement with ACHD for paving on Grove in
conjunction with Old Boise Blocks

CCDC Board of Commissioners September 12, 2022 Meeting Minutes 1



Commissioner Hurd made a motion to approve the consent agenda.
Commissioner Erstad seconded the motion.

Roll Call:

Commissioner Hurd - Aye
Commissioner Townsend - Aye
Commissioner Stevens - Aye
Commissioner Perez - Aye
Commissioner Erstad - Aye
Commissioner McLean - Aye
Commissioner Haney Keith - Aye

The motion carried 7 - 0.

V. ACTION ITEM

A. CONSIDER: Election of Chair position to fill a vacancy and other officer vacancy
until the board meeting in January 2023

Vice-Chair Haney Keith, gave a report noting with the expiration of Chairman Zuckerman’s
Commissioner term there was a vacancy in the Chair position. It was further noted there
would be an election to fill the Chair position for the remainder of the one (1) year term
with officer elections to be held at the first regular meeting held in January 2023. Finally,
Vice-Chair Haney Keith noted to the extent the election of a Chair created a vacancy in
another officer position, then there could be additional elections for open positions.

Commissioner Lauren McLean moved to nominate Vice Chair Haney Keith for Chair.
There were no other nominations and the nominations for Chair were closed.

Roll Call:

Commissioner Hurd - Aye

Commissioner Townsend - Aye

Commissioner Stevens - Aye

Commissioner Perez - Aye

Commissioner Erstad - Aye

Commissioner McLean - Aye

Commissioner Haney Keith - Abstained. Name not called for a vote.

The motion carried 6 - 0 - 1.

Chair Haney Keith noted with her election to the Chair position, there was a vacancy in
the Vice-Chair position. It was further noted there would be an election to fill the Vice-
Chair position for the remainder of the one (1) year term with officer elections to be held
at the first regular meeting held in January 2023. Finally, Chair Haney Keith noted to the
extent the election of a Vice-Chair created a vacancy in another officer position, then there
could be additional elections for open positions.

Commissioner Lauren McLean moved to nominate Commissioner Stevens for Vice Chair.
There were no other nominations and the nominations for Vice-Chair were closed.

CCDC Board of Commissioners September 12, 2022 Meeting Minutes 2



Roll Call:

Commissioner Hurd - Aye

Commissioner Townsend - Aye

Commissioner Stevens — Abstained. Name not called for a vote
Commissioner Perez - Aye

Commissioner Erstad - Aye

Commissioner McLean - Aye

Commissioner Haney Keith - Aye

The motion carried 6 - O - 1.
B. CONSIDER: 1744 W Main St - West End Food Hub - T1 Participation Designation

Kevin Holmes, Project Manager — Property Development; gave a report.

Commissioner Erstad moved to direct staff to negotiate a final Type 1 Participation
Agreement with 1744-1746 W Main Street BOI, LLC for future board approval.

Commissioner Perez seconded the motion.

Roll Call:

Commissioner Hurd - Aye
Commissioner Townsend - Aye
Commissioner Stevens - Aye
Commissioner Perez - Aye
Commissioner Erstad - Aye
Commissioner McLean - Aye
Commissioner Haney Keith - Aye

The motion carried 7 - 0.
C. CONSIDER: 2742 W Fairview Ave — The Avens — T2 Participation Agreement
Kevin Holmes, Project Manager — Property Development; gave a report.

Commissioner Perez moved to direct staff to negotiate a final Type 2 Participation
Agreement with MW Avens, LLC for future board approval.

Commissioner Erstad seconded the motion.

Roll Call:

Commissioner Hurd - Aye
Commissioner Townsend - Aye
Commissioner Stevens - Aye
Commissioner Perez - Aye
Commissioner Erstad - Aye
Commissioner McLean - Aye
Commissioner Haney Keith - Aye

The motion carried 7 - 0

CCDC Board of Commissioners September 12, 2022 Meeting Minutes 3



VI. MEETING ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Commissioner
Haney Keith to adjourn the meeting.

The motion carried 7 - 0

The meeting adjourned at 12:42 p.m.

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION ON THE 10th DAY OF OCTOBER 2022.

Latonia Haney Keith, Chair

Lauren McLean, Secretary

CCDC Board of Commissioners September 12, 2022 Meeting Minutes 4



1] pem

AGENDA BILL

Agenda Subject: Date:

Approve Resolution 1792 — 1744 W Main St — West End Food Hub - October 10, 2022
Type 1 Participation Agreement with 1744-1746 W Main Street BOI

LLC

Staff Contact: Attachments:

Kevin Holmes 1) Resolution 1792
Project Manager 2) Type 1 Agreement

Action: Adopt Resolution 1792 approving the Type 1 Participation Agreement with 1744-1746
W Main Street BOI LLC and authorize the Executive Director to execute the agreement.

Background:

The West End Food Hub project is an interior and exterior renovation of an existing vacant
building located in the Westside District at 1744 West Main Street. Los Angeles based
developer group 1744-1746 W Main Street BOI, LLC plans to renovate the space into a
commercial kitchen with 15 individual spaces for lease to separate restaurant owners. All
prepared food will be delivered and there is no on-site dining or takeout planned. The owners
have entered into a shared parking agreement with the New Life Apostolic Church next door to
utilize parking spaces for delivery driver pick-up and for kitchen staff parking.

In alignment with area plans to enhance walkability and support a mix of land uses, the
developer intends to improve the quality of the built environment through exterior renovations
and streetscape improvements. The project’s planned public improvements include sidewalk
repair and upgrades, installing a new streetlight, and upgrades to an electrical transformer.
1744-1746 W Main Street BOI, LLC has requested assistance for these eligible expenses
through CCDC'’s Type 1 Participation Program.

The Board designated the project for Type 1 Participation at its September 2022 meeting. Since
that meeting, the applicant has confirmed the total estimated eligible expenses for the project
are $53,813 and total development costs for the entire project are $2.3 million. Type 1 projects
are eligible for reimbursement of 100% of public improvement, as matched by developer
investment and subject to Board approval.

The project received City of Boise approval in May 2022. Due to the scope of work being
primarily limited to internal renovations and the repair and replacement of existing streetscape
features, a full Design Review application and approval was not required. Design Review staff at
the City reviewed and approved of all improvements through a building permit submittal. Internal
renovations have begun, and external work is planned to commence in the fall and be
completed by early 2023.



The West End Food Hub at 1744 W Main St meets the requirements of the Participation
Program as approved by the CCDC Board and promotes the objectives of the Westside District.

Project Summary: Timeline:

» 1744 W Main Street = Sept 2021 — Design Review Approval

» 6,000 square foot commercial space = June 2022 — PP Application to CCDC

» $2.3 million Total Development Costs = Sept 2022 — Type 1 Designation

» $53,813 Eligible Expenses » Oct 2022 — Type 1 Agreement Approval

= No new surface parking = Winter 2022 — Project complete, CCDC

= 15 individual kitchen spaces with 50 reimburses Eligible Expenses
permanent jobs

Fiscal Notes:
The Agency’s Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan includes a line item for Type 1 Participation
in the Westside District with sufficient funds to reimburse this project.

Staff Recommendation:
Authorize the Executive Director to execute the Type 1 Participation Program Agreement with
the applicant, 1744-1746 W Main Street BOI LLC.

Suggested Motion:

| move to adopt Resolution 1792 approving the Type 1 Participation Program Agreement with
1744-1746 W Main Street BOI LLC and authorize the Executive Director to execute the
agreement.

Page 2



RESOLUTION NO. 1792

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY,
IDAHO:

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN
RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF BOISE, IDAHO, APPROVING THE
TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE AGENCY AND 1744-1746 W MAIN STREET BOI, LLC; AUTHORIZING THE
AGENCY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS OR AGREEMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN
CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE
AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29,
Title 50, ldaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal
agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”).

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the “City”), after notice duly
published, conducted a public hearing on the Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Plan (the
“Westside Plan”), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 6108 on
December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making certain findings; and,

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First
Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Project (“First
Amendment to the Westside Plan”); and,

WHEREAS, following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance 45-20 on
December 1, 2020, annexing two (2) geographical areas adjacent and contiguous to the northern
boundary of the Westside Project Area into the existing revenue allocation area and making
certain findings; and,

WHEREAS, 1744-1746 W Main Street BOI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
owns or controls certain real property addressed as 1744 West Main Street, Boise, Idaho, where
it plans to renovate an existing building into a commercial kitchen which also will involve sidewalk
repair and upgrades, installation of a new streetlight, and upgrades to an electrical transformer
(the “Public Improvements”), all of which are located in the Westside Urban Renewal District as
created by the Westside District Plan; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency has in place a Patrticipation Program which includes the Type 1
Assistance Program under which the Agency provides reimbursement for construction of certain
public improvements that meet the Agency’s requirements; and,

WHEREAS, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein as if set forth in full, is

the Type 1 Streetscape Grant Participation Agreement and exhibits thereto (“Agreement”) with
1744-1746 W Main Street BOI, LLC, whereby 1744-1746 W Main Street BOI, LLC will construct

RESOLUTION NO. 1792 -1



the Public Improvements and the Agency will reimburse certain expenses for 1744-1746 W Main
Street BOI, LLC to construct the Public Improvements as specified in the Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it in the best public interest to approve the Agreement
and to authorize the Agency Executive Director to execute same.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct.

Section 2: That the Type 1 Streetscape Grant Participation Agreement with
1744-1746 W Main Street BOI, LLC, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A, and
incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby is approved.

Section 3: That the Agency Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign and enter
into the Type 1 Streetscape Grant Participation Agreement with 1744-1746 W Main Street BOI,
LLC and to execute all necessary documents required to implement the actions contemplated by
the Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency staff and the Agency legal counsel that
all conditions precedent to such actions have been met; and further, any necessary technical
changes to the Agreement or other documents are acceptable, upon advice from the Agency’s
legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the
comments and discussions received at the October 10, 2022, Agency Board meeting.

Section 4: That the Agency Executive Director is authorized to expend all funds
contemplated by the Agreement and to perform any and all other duties required pursuant to said
Agreement.

Section 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
adoption and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on
October 10, 2022. Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by
the Secretary to the Agency Board of Commissioners on October 10, 2022.

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY

By:

Latonia Haney Keith, Chair
ATTEST:

By:

Lauren McLean, Secretary

RESOLUTION NO. 1792 -2



cfc
1T capaL oy

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

THIS TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”)
is entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as
Capital City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic,
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Idaho (“*CCDC”), and 1744-1746 W Main
Street BOI LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Participant”). CCDC and Participant may
be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party.”

RECITALS

A. Participant owns or controls certain real property addressed as 1744 W Main
Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (the “Project Site”) which is more accurately depicted on attached
Exhibit A.

B. The Participant is rebuilding the streetscape, installing a streetlight, and
upgrading a power transformer at the Project Site (the “Project”). The Project is more
accurately depicted on attached Exhibit B. The Project is located in the Westside Urban
Renewal District (“Westside District”).

C. The Participant is requesting reimbursement to rebuild the streetscape along
Main Street, install a streetlight, and upgrade a power transformer. Under the provisions of the
Westside District Plan (“Plan”), CCDC may enter into cooperative agreements to achieve the
objectives of an urban renewal plan. The CCDC Board of Commissioners has adopted the
Participation Program Policy which is designed to assist private and public development
projects with improvements that benefit the public and which are located in the public rights-of-
way or a permanent public easement (“Eligible Expenses”).

D. The Project meets the requirements of the Type 1 Participation Program and also
promotes CCDC objectives to improve the pedestrian experience with improved streetscapes
and activate disinvested sites through the reuse of existing buildings. The Eligible Expenses
are depicted on the Public Improvement Plans on attached Exhibit C.

E. CCDC deems it appropriate to assist the development of the Project to achieve
the objectives set forth in the Plan and in accordance with CCDC’s Participation Program Policy.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, which are incorporated into
this Agreement; the mutual covenants contained herein; and other good and valuable

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby
agree as follows:

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 1



1. Effective Date and Term. The effective date (“Effective Date”) of this
Agreement shall be the date when this Agreement has been signed by the Parties (last date
signed) and shall continue until: 1.) the completion of all obligations of each Party; or 2.)
eighteen (18) months from the Effective Date, whichever comes first. At CCDC's sole discretion
an extension may be granted for a period not to exceed 180 days.

2. Construction of the Project. Participant agrees to construct the Project
consistent with the following:

a. The Project shall be constructed in accordance with the overall City of Boise
(“City”) infrastructure plans, policies, and design standards and with the applicable
portions of the Streetscape Standards adopted as part of the Plan.

b.  The Parties agree that the Project is depicted on Exhibit B and Exhibit C, with
cost estimates for Eligible Expenses described in the Schedule of Eligible
Expenses in Exhibit D. Any other public improvements that are constructed by the
Participant as part of the improvements to the Project Site are not eligible for
reimbursement pursuant to this Agreement. Additionally, CCDC’s reimbursement
obligation is limited to the amount set forth in Section 6 of this Agreement.

3. Initial Construction Funding. Participant shall pay for all of the costs of
construction for the Project. CCDC acknowledges that the Schedule of Eligible Expenses
attached as Exhibit D is an estimate by Contractor and that actual costs for the Project, as well
as each line item of cost, may be more or less than is shown.

4, Notification of Completion; Inspection. Upon completion of construction and
the improvements being open to the public, Participant shall notify CCDC in writing and request
a final construction inspection and/or a meeting with CCDC to determine if the Project meets the
requirements of this Agreement. At CCDC'’s sole discretion, CCDC may require proof of
completion, such as a Certificate of Occupancy, before providing written confirmation of
compliance. CCDC shall provide Participant with written confirmation that the Project has been
completed in compliance with this Agreement.

5. Determining Actual Payment after Completion of Construction. Participant
shall provide appropriate documentation (“Cost Documentation”) to CCDC that Participant has
expended funds for Eligible Expenses in order to receive payment under the terms of this
Agreement. Any Cost Documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of Participant’s
notification to CCDC that construction of the Project is complete and shall include:

a. Schedule of values that includes line items for the Project approved by CCDC for
reimbursement so they are identifiable and separate from other line items
(“Schedule of Values”).

b. Invoices from Participant’s general contractor, subcontractor(s), and material
suppliers for each type of eligible cost item (e.g. concrete, pavers, benches,
historic street lights). Invoices shall specify quantities and unit costs of installed
materials and a percentage estimate of how much installed material was used for
the Project in comparison to the amount used for the remainder of improvements to
the Project Site.

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 2



c. Explanation of any significant deviation between the initial cost estimates in
Exhibit D and the actual costs in the Cost Documentation as requested by CCDC.

d. A signed and notarized letter by Participant attesting that all materials have been
paid for, that all subcontractors have been paid, that no liens exist on the work
performed, and that the Cost Documentation is complete whereupon payment by
CCDC shall constitute full accord and satisfaction of all the Agreement obligations.

e. Additional documentation or clarifications may be required and requested by
CCDC.

f. Recorded easements for any public improvement work done outside of the public
rights of way.

g. The Participant attests that all requested reimbursement expenses are for eligible
public improvements within the public right-of-way.

CCDC shall have the right to review the Cost Documentation and to obtain independent
verification that the quantities of work claimed, the unit costs, and the total costs for eligible
costs are commercially reasonable and consistent with the cost estimates provided by
Participant to CCDC prior to construction. In the event Participant fails to timely deliver the Cost
Documentation, CCDC may, in its discretion, elect to terminate its payment obligations under
this Agreement by providing Participant with written notice of such default. Participant shall
have thirty (30) days from such written notice to cure the default. In the event Participant fails to
cure such a default, CCDC’s payment obligations under this Agreement may be terminated in
CCDC'’s sole discretion.

Within thirty (30) calendar days of CCDC'’s receipt of the Cost Documentation, CCDC
will notify Participant in writing of CCDC’s acceptance or rejection of the Cost Documentation
and CCDC'’s determination of the Actual Eligible Expenses to be reimbursed. CCDC shall, in its
discretion, determine the Actual Eligible Expenses following its review of the Cost
Documentation, verification of the commercial reasonableness of the costs and expenses
contained in such Cost Documentation, and comparison of the amounts in the Cost
Documentation to the amounts in Exhibit D. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE TOTAL FOR THE
ACTUAL ELIGIBLE COSTS EXCEED THE AMOUNT ALLOWED BY SECTION 6.

If Participant disagrees with CCDC'’s calculation of the Actual Eligible Costs, Participant
must respond to CCDC in writing within three (3) business days explaining why Participant
believes CCDC'’s calculation was in error and providing any evidence to support any such
contentions Participant wants CCDC to consider. CCDC shall respond to Participant within
three (3) business days with a revised amount for the Actual Eligible Costs or notifying
Participant CCDC will not revise the initial amount calculated. At that point, the determination of
the Actual Eligible Costs will be final. CCDC’S DETERMINATION OF THE ACTUAL ELIGIBLE
COSTS IS WITHIN ITS SOLE DISCRETION.

6. CCDC’s Reimbursement Payment Amount. In accordance with the
Participation Program, CCDC agrees to reimburse Participant Actual Eligible Expenses not to
exceed $53,813. Actual Eligible Expenses do not include soft costs (e.g., architectural and
engineering design, permits, traffic control, and mobilization). The payment for this Type 1
Agreement will be made as a one-time reimbursement.

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 3



7. Conditions Precedent to CCDC’s Payment Obligation. CCDC agrees to
reimburse Participant in the amount as determined in compliance with Sections 2, 5 and 6 no
later than thirty (30) days after completion of all of the following:

a. Project construction is complete and meets the specifications as described in the
Recitals section of this Agreement and as shown in Exhibit B.

b. CCDC receives Cost Documentation as described in Section 5 in a format
acceptable to CCDC.

c. CCDC provides written confirmation to the Participant that the Project has been
constructed in compliance with this Agreement.

Participant’s failure to comply with all Agreement provisions shall be a basis for
termination of CCDC’s reimbursement obligation.

8. Subordination of Reimbursement Obligations. The Parties agree this
Agreement does not provide Participant with a security interest in any CCDC revenues for the
Urban Renewal District Area or any other urban renewal plan area, including but not limited to
revenue from any “Revenue Allocation Area” (as defined in Title 50, Chapter 29 of the Idaho
Code) or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
in this Agreement, the obligation of CCDC to make the payments as specified in this Agreement
shall be subordinate to all CCDC obligations that have committed or in the future commit
available CCDC revenues, including but not limited to revenue from any Revenue Allocation
Area or any revenue from CCDC’s parking garages, and may be subject to consent and
approval by CCDC lenders.

9. Default. Neither Party shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement
except upon the expiration of forty-five (45) days [ten (10) days in the event of failure to pay
money] from receipt of written notice from the other Party specifying the particulars in which
such Party has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement unless such Party, prior to
expiration of said 45-day period [ten (10) days in the event of failure to pay money], has rectified
the particulars specified in said notice of default. In the event of a default, the nondefaulting
Party may do the following:

a. The nondefaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the
defaulting Party and recover from the defaulting Party all direct damages incurred
by the nondefaulting Party.

b.  The nondefaulting Party may seek specific performance of those elements of this
Agreement which can be specifically performed and recover all damages incurred
by the nondefaulting Party. The Parties declare it to be their intent that elements of
this Agreement requiring certain actions be taken for which there are not adequate
legal remedies may be specifically enforced.

c.  The nondefaulting Party may perform or pay any obligation or encumbrance

necessary to cure the default and offset the cost thereof from monies otherwise
due the defaulting Party or recover said monies from the defaulting Party.

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 4



d. The nondefaulting Party may pursue all other remedies available at law, it being
the intent of the Parties that remedies be cumulative and liberally enforced so as to
adequately and completely compensate the nondefaulting Party.

e. Inthe event Participant defaults under this Agreement, CCDC (the nondefaulting
Party) shall have the right to suspend or terminate its payment under this
Agreement, as more specifically defined in this Agreement, for so long as the
default continues and if not cured, CCDC'’s obligation for payment shall be deemed
extinguished. In addition, if CCDC funds shall have been paid, Participant shall
reimburse CCDC for any such funds Participant received.

10. Captions and Headings. The captions and headings in this Agreement are for
reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any of the terms,
covenants, conditions, or agreements contained herein.

11. No Joint Venture or Partnership. CCDC and Participant agree that nothing
contained in this Agreement or in any document executed in connection with this Agreement
shall be construed as making CCDC and Participant a joint venture or partners. Participant must
waive any vested interest rights granted by public utilities that would be paid by subsequent
development, and provide documentation that the interest has been waived

12. Successors and Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable except that
the Participant may assign Participant’s rights or obligations under this Agreement to a third
party only with the written approval of CCDC, at CCDC'’s sole discretion which cannot be
reasonably denied.

13. Notices and Receipt. All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be given by personal service, by United States mail, or by United States
express mail or other established express delivery service (such as Federal Express) with
postage or delivery charges prepaid and return receipt requested, or by electronic mail (e-mail)
addressed to the appropriate Party at the address set forth below:

If to Participant: Alex Nachum
1744-1746 W Main Street BOI LLC
777 S. Figueroa Street, Suite 4100
Los Angeles, California 90017
414-587-6232
Alex@csscompany.com

Participant’s Registered Agent : Corporation Service Company
1303 12th Avenue Road
Nampa, ldaho 83686

If to CCDC: John Brunelle, Executive Director
Capital City Development Corporation
121 N. 9% Street, Suite 501
Boise, ldaho 83702
208-384-4264
jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 5


mailto:Alex@csscompany.com
mailto:jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com

14. Applicable Law; Attorney Fees. This Agreement shall be construed and
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Idaho. Should any legal action be brought
by either Party because of breach of this Agreement or to enforce any provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees, court costs, and
such other costs as may be found by the Court.

15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and
agreement of the Parties. Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows:

Exhibit A Project Site Map

Exhibit B Project Depiction

Exhibit C Public Improvement Plans
Exhibit D Schedule of Eligible Expenses

16. Indemnification. Participant shall indemnify, defend, and hold CCDC and its
officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages,
penalties, claims, costs, charges, and expenses, including reasonable architect and attorney
fees (collectively referred to in this section as “Claim”), which may be imposed upon or incurred
by or asserted against CCDC or its respective officers, agents, and employees relating to the
construction or design of the Project or otherwise arising out of Participant’s actions or inactions.
In the event an action or proceeding is brought against CCDC or its respective officers, agents,
and employees by reason of any such Claim, Participant, upon written notice from CCDC shall,
at Participant’s expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Participant shall have no obligation to indemnify, defend, or hold CCDC and its
respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against any matter to the extent
it arises from the active negligence or willful act of CCDC or its respective officers, agents, or
employees. The indemnification provisions set forth herein are intended to, and shall, survive
the termination or completion of this Agreement.

17. Antidiscrimination During Construction. Participant, for itself and its
successors and assigns, agrees that in the rehabilitation and/or construction of improvements
on the Project Site provided for in this Agreement, the Participant and its agents will not
discriminate against any person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, gender expression, national origin or ancestry, marital status, age, or handicap.

18. Maintenance. Participant recognizes CCDC has no specific authority to accept
maintenance responsibility of the Project or any improvements constructed by Participant and
that no agreement has been reached with CCDC or City to accept any maintenance obligations
for such improvements.

19. Promotion of Project. Participant agrees CCDC may promote the Project and
CCDC'’s involvement with the Project. Such promotion includes reasonable signage at the Site
notifying the public of CCDC'’s involvement with the Project.

End of Agreement
[Signatures appear on the following page.]

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement with an
Effective Date as of the last date written below.

CCDC:

PARTICIPANT:

Exhibits

Project Site Map

Project Depiction (renderings)
Public Improvement Plans
Schedule of Eligible Expenses

Cow>®

The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho,
an independent public body, corporate and politic

John Brunelle, Executive Director

Date

1744-1746 W Main Street BOI LLC
A Delaware limited liability company

oy =

Its: Alex Nachum, Authorized Signatory

Date: 9/30/22

Budget Info / For Office Use

Fund/District 303

Account 6251
Activity Code | 23020
PO # 230007

Contract Term | September, 2023

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT -7


Alex Nachum
Stamp

Alex Nachum
Alex Nachum, Authorized Signatory

Alex Nachum
Text Box
9/30/22


Exhibit A: Project Site Map

s map (5 3 uses generated static output crly. Data iayers that appear on B4 map may or may
notbe current, PURPOSES.

Ada County Assessor e e o e ke T W06 SN T0BE USED R NAIGATION OREGAL

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 8

6/13/2022



Exhibit B: Project Depiction

a___

=/ GRAUVE YARD

WEST END FOOD HUE

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT -9



Exhibit C: Public Improvement Plans

: \~ EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

e ms

&;— HISTOTICL!GHTF'OLE SED FHE:r?MCE ‘
_/‘)\_fj\f)\_f)\_f MAIN ST.

FINISHED FLOOR: 2680.53

0.46% 7 | \80.45
- ‘ TS
s

0.31%
TIT T =

— .—;—ﬁ——*ea%f',;‘ﬁr——'—f— =
I I “ T T e
A

chMx

79.66 1977 79,80, .

EXLG EX1a. - EXLG

I----iﬁ_-J- L-L--- g 0 g 0 0
MAIN STREET SIDEWALK GRADING DETAIL

@ SCALE: 1"= 4" ey ¢

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 10



Exhibit D: Schedule of Eligible Expenses (1 of 2)

CCDC Participation Program

Type 1 Eligible Expenses Application Form

Actual Eligible Costs To Be Determined by CCDC

Praject Name: West End Food Hub

Plan Date: 8/17/2022

By: I74-17426 W Main
Street BOVLLC

ALL SCOPE MUST BE 1) LOCATED ON PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT PERMIT AND 2] IM THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY

ITEM DESCRIPTION

SITE PREPARATION: DIVISIONS 2 and 31

UNIT UMNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL CO5T

[SF,IF, =tc)  (In%)

1)5urface demofition 5F 13 250 3,250
21 Asphalt demolition 0 o 0 0
3| Curtr and dutter demaolition LF 10 50 500
4I3aw ourt LF &0 75 3,750
L|Replace subbase 5F 25 250 6,250
b6)5tand alone tree removal 0 o 0 0
SIDEWALEK WORK: DIVISION 32 0
T|5cored concrete sidewalk 5F S0 250 12,500
B8] Dy laid brick 0 o 0 0
S| Pedestrian ramp a o o o
10| Truncated dome a o i i
11| Lawn parkway a o i} i}
12]rigation 0 o 0 0
OTHER: DIVISION 32
13| Asphalt repair a o i} i}
14] Concrete curb cut 0 o 0 0
15| Vertical curb and gutter (6] 0 o 0 0
16| Meyers cabinet a o o o
17| Water meter 0 o 0 0
SITUATIOMAL FURMISHINGS: DIVISION 32
18| 5wreet trees 0 o 0 0
19| Tree grates & frames 0 o 0 0
20| Trench drain cover 0 o 0 0
21| Historic street light Count 10,000 1 10,000
221Bench 0 o 0 0
23| Bike rack 0 o 0 0
24I Litter receptacle a o i} i}
25| Pre-cast planter 0 o 0 0
OTHER:
26| Facade/glazing improvements SF 100 4] 0
27|5ignage Improvements Estimate 20,000 i a
28] Awing Demolition and Re-Installation Estimate 45, 000 i} a
29| Roof Screen Addition LF 200 0 0
Total Streetscape Costs: 36,250

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 11

In ROW

not eligible
not eligible



Exhibit D: Schedule of Eligible Expenses (2 of 2)

CCDC Participation Program
Eligible Costs Application Form

Actual Eligible Costs To Be Determined by CCDC

INFRASTRUCTURE & UTILITIES: (In right-of-way)

UNIT UMNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST
STORM WATER MITIGATION: DIVISION 33

28| 5urface demo 0 0 o
25| Surface prep 0 0 o
30| Finish materizls [permeable pavers, etc.) 0 0 o

UTILITIES: DIVISION 33 0 0 o
31| Power line [new/relocationextension) count 15,000 1 15,000
32| Water line (new/relocation/extension) count 2,000 1 o
33|Sewer line [new/relocation/extension) count 2,000 1 o
34| Geothermal Line [new/relocation/extension) 0 0 ]
35| Matural gas line (new/relocation/extension) 0 0 o
36|Phone line [new/relocation/extension) 0 0 ]
37|Fiber line [new/relocation/extension) 0 0 o
38| ACHD power box relocation 0 0 o

STREET: DIVISIONS 2, 31 and 32

35| Asphalt demolition 0 0 o
40| Road sub-base and prep 0 0 o
41| Asphalt paving 0 0 o
PATH:
42| Surface demolition o o o
43| 5urface prep 0 0 o
44| Paving material 0 0 o
ALLEY: o o o
45) Asphalt demolition 0 0 o
45| Alley sub-base and prep 0 0 o
47| Asphalt paving 0 0 o
PLAZA:
48| Surface demolition o o o
45| Surface prep 0 0 o
0| Paving material 0 0 o
OTHER:
L1{TBD o o o
L2{TBD o o o
Total Infrastructure & Lhilities Costs: 15,000

SUBTOTAL ELIGIBLE COSTS:

5% General Conditions it per program policy)
TOTAL ELIGIBLE CO5T5:

TYPE ONE NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT

Important Note:
Each program where eligible costs are identified will only pay for those
approved expenses not otherwise paid for by another public entity.

TYPE 1 STREETSCAPE GRANT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT - 12



()
1] capmaL iy

BLANK PAGE



&
1] capm iy

V.
ACTION
ITEMS



BOFTITET

AGENDA BILL

Agenda Subject: Date:

CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1788 - Amended and Restated Land | October 10, 2022
Exchange Agreement with the YMCA

Staff Contact: Attachments:

Alexandra Monjar, Project Manager 1) Resolution 1788

2) Amended and Restated Real Property
Exchange Agreement

Action: Adopt Resolution 1788 to authorize the Agency Executive Director to execute the
Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement with The Young Men’s Christian
Association of Boise City (the “YMCA”)

Background:

CCDC published the Block 68 Catalytic Redevelopment Project Request for Proposals (RFP)
with the intent to catalyze the development of housing, improve and utilize downtown mobility
infrastructure, and spur economic development in the Westside District in May 2021. The RFP
offered two properties (421 North 10" Street and 1010 West Jefferson) along with participation
in public infrastructure and $10M to purchase a Mobility Hub. In exchange for its participation,
the Agency expected proposals to deliver 225 units of housing (with 155 units attainable for
Boise’s workforce), integrate and enhance mobility plans and infrastructure, utilize aspirational
architecture to improve the urban environment, and catalyze economic development.

In December 2021, the Board of Commissioners elected to advance negotiations with the
development team led by Edlen & Company and deChase Miksis. The resulting Agreement to
Negotiate Exclusively (ANE) with Block 68 Development LLC (Developer) was approved by the
Board on March 14, 2022, with a term of 180 days and possible extension of 60 days to
negotiate Disposition and Development Agreement (DDAs). The Agency granted a 30-day
extension on September 7, 2022, resulting in a deadline to execute DDAs of October 12, 2022.

The Agency and Developer plan to enter two DDAs — one for the Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility
Hub Project on 1010 W. Jefferson Street, or Block 68 South, and one for the Workforce Housing
Project involving the exchange of 421 N. 10" Street for YMCA-owned parcels on the north half
of the block bound by 11/10™ Streets and Jefferson/State Streets, or Block 69 North.

To facilitate development of the Workforce Housing Project intended to deliver the attainable
housing required by CCDC’s RFP on Block 69 North, CCDC and the YMCA executed a Land
Exchange Agreement on July 7, 2022. This executed Real Property Exchange Agreement
contemplates that the Agency will contribute its property addressed as 421 N. 10" Street and
$1,336,000 cash to the YMCA in exchange for two of three YMCA-owned parcels on Block 69
North addressed as 1111 W. State Street and 419 N. 11" Street and collectively valued at
$4,461,000. The transaction was contemplated to occur contemporaneously with the
subsequent sale of these and other properties to the Developer, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in the forthcoming DDAs.



During further negotiation of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Project DDA, the Agency
and Developer identified an opportunity to increase the efficiency of pre-development of this
project with an Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement which the YMCA
has approved and executed. The updates to the Agreement amend it to:

1) Include the third YMCA-owned parcel addressed at 1117 W. State Street, and valued at
$2,269,000, in the exchange. And subsequently increasing the Agency’s cash
participation by such amount to a total of $3,605,000.

2) Assign rights and responsibilities of due diligence to the Developer through an
Assignment and Assumption of Rights Agreement between the Agency and Developer
and align due diligence timelines to those agreed to within the Block 69 North DDA.

3) Require consolidation of the three parcels on Block 69 North into one parcel for
redevelopment prior to transacting the land exchange.

These updates allow more direct and efficient review of title and due diligence investigations by
Developer and remove a significant delay from Closing to the start of construction that would be
caused if consolidation of the parcels were to occur after Closing, as originally anticipated.

Additionally, in an unlikely potential scenario in which the land exchange transacts followed by
default or termination of the Block 69 North DDA, the Agency would be in ownership of a full half
block, and in a position to issue a new RFP or otherwise dispose of the property as necessitated
by the sunset of the Westside District.

Fiscal Notes:

CCDC will contribute $3,605,000 cash and real property addressed at 421 N. 10th Street for
three YMCA-owned parcels collectively valued at $6,730,000. The Agency has sufficient funds
to perform this transaction.

Additional costs for legal counsel and closing costs including title insurance and escrow fees are
anticipated which the Agency has budgeted sufficient funds to cover.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Agency Board adopt Resolution 1788.

Suggested Motion:
Adopt Resolution 1788 authorizing the Executive Director to execute the Amended and Restated
Real Property Exchange Agreement with the Young Men’s Christian Association of Boise City.

Page 2



RESOLUTION NO. 1788

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY,
IDAHO:

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, APPROVING THE AMENDED
AND RESTATED REAL PROPERTY EXCHANGE AGREEMENT WITH THE
YOUNG MEN’'S CHRISTIAN ASSOCIATION OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO,
CONCERNING THE DISPOSITION OF REAL PROPERTY PURSUANT TO
IDAHO CODE § 50-2011 AND THAT CERTAIN JOINT PROPOSAL FOR THE
DISPOSITION OF 421 N. 10™ STREET; AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES;
AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT;
AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS PURSUANT TO THE
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29,
Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal
agency for Boise City, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”).

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho ("City"), after notice duly
published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban
Renewal Project (the “Westside Plan”), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its
Ordinance No. 6108 on December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making certain
findings for the jurisdictional area of the Westside Plan Revenue Allocation Area; and,

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First
Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Project (the “First
Amendment”), which amendment added area to the Westside Plan Revenue Allocation Area, and
following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 45-20 on December 1, 2020,
approving the First Amendment and making certain findings. The Westside Plan Revenue
Allocation Area, as amended, may be referred to herein as the “Project Area;” and,

WHEREAS, in order to achieve the objectives of the Westside Plan, Agency is authorized
to acquire real property for the revitalization of areas within the Project Area's boundaries; and,

WHEREAS, Agency owns certain real property addressed as 421 North 10th Street,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583), and real property addressed as 1010 West
Jefferson Street, Boise, |daho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004553) (collectively, the “Agency
Parcels”); and,

WHEREAS, in accordance with ldaho Code Section 50-2011 Disposal of Property in
Urban Renewal Area, the Agency issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) on May 17, 2021,
seeking to initiate a catalytic redevelopment project to revitalize the Project Area in compliance
with the Plan through redevelopment of the Agency Parcels which could also serve as a catalyst
for redevelopment of other properties in the vicinity; and,

RESOLUTION NO. -1



WHEREAS, following the publication of the RFP in the Idaho Statesman newspaper, and
review of the responses, Agency staff ranked the joint proposal from Edlen & Company, deChase
Miksis, Elton Companies, and YMCA first (the “Joint Proposal”); and,

WHEREAS, at a public meeting on December 13, 2021, the Agency Board discussed the
proposals and thereafter met with consensus regarding the proposed rankings and selected the
Joint Proposal; and,

WHEREAS, the Joint Proposal contemplated development beyond the Agency Parcels on
Block 68, and seeks to develop certain real property addressed as 1177 W. State Street, Boise,
Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004631), 1111 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No.
R1013004640) and 419 N. 11th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651), which
combined include approximately 0.831 acres and which parcels are currently owned by the
YMCA. The three YMCA parcels are located along the State Street corridor in an area referred
to as “Block 69 N.” (the “YMCA Parcels”); and,

WHEREAS, the Joint Proposal further contemplated the exchange of the Agency-owned
real property addressed as 421 North 10th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583)
(the “Agency Exchange Property”) for all or a portion of the YMCA Parcels to further support the
development on Block 69 N. of a 220 unit, 7-story mid-rise building, including active ground-floor
retail, parking, and workforce housing units, which unit mix shall be at or more affordable than i)
25 units at or below 80% AMI, ii) 130 units at or below 120% AMI, and iii) 65 market-rate units
(the “Workforce Housing Project”); and,

WHEREAS, a separate entity has been formed to undertake the development
contemplated in the Joint Proposal, specifically Block 68 Development LLC, an ldaho limited
liability company (the “Developer”); and,

WHEREAS, Agency and Developer are negotiating the terms of a disposition and
development agreement for each of the Agency Parcels, which for disposition of 421 N. 10th
Street, includes all or a portion of Block 69 N. obtained pursuant to the Exchange (defined below)
and, thus, complies with the required notice provisions concerning the disposition of property by
Agency as set forth in ldaho Code Section 50-2011; and,

WHEREAS, to determine value, the Agency Exchange Property and the YMCA Parcels
were appraised by Langston & Associates, Inc.; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency Board and YMCA Board determined that their best interests were
served by exchanging the real property for equal value as contemplated in the Joint Proposal.
The Agency and the YMCA entered into the Real Property Exchange Agreement, pursuant to
Resolution No. 1778, dated July 11, 2022, (the “Original Exchange Agreement”) wherein the
Agency agreed to exchange the Agency Exchange Property, plus One Million Three Hundred
Thirty-Six Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,336,000.00) for the YMCA owned 0.551 acre of real
property addressed as 1111 West State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004640)
and 419 North 11th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651) in Ada County, Idaho.
It was further contemplated by the parties that Developer would acquire 1177 W. State Street,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004631) directly from the YMCA,; and,

WHEREAS, during continued negotiations with the Developer regarding the disposition
and development agreement by and between the Agency and the Developer for the disposition

RESOLUTION NO. -2



and development of all or a portion of the YMCA Parcels to be obtained by the Agency pursuant
to the Original Exchange Agreement for the development of the Workforce Housing Project on
the YMCA Parcels (the “Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA”), and in
support of development coordination including facilitating consolidation of the YMCA Parcels into
a developable lot and allocation of the due diligence and title review responsibilities, the parties
determined it was in their best interests to amend the Original Exchange Agreement to include all
of the YMCA Parcels in the exchange, to address lot consolidation and to assign the performance
of due diligence and title review obligations set forth herein to the Developer; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to exchange its Agency Exchange Property for the YMCA
Parcels (the “YMCA Parcels” are now referred to as the “YMCA Exchange Property”), and the
YMCA desires to exchange the YMCA Exchange Property for the Agency Exchange Property
together with additional monetary consideration to make the exchange of equal value as more
particularly described herein (together, the “Exchange”); and,

WHEREAS, the authority of the Agency to convey the Agency Exchange Property
pursuant to the Exchange and the Amended and Restated Real Property Agreement complies
with Idaho Code Section 50-2011 as the disposition of the Agency Exchange Property is made
pursuant to a competitive selection process initiated by the Agency’s issuance of the RFP and by
the Agency’s selection of the Joint Proposal, which included the disposition by exchange of the
Agency Exchange Property with all or a portion of the YMCA Exchange Property, and therefore,
the Exchange is not deemed a separate and distinct conveyance, but rather part of the disposition
of 421 North 10th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583) to effectuate the
development contemplated in the Joint Proposal; and,

WHEREAS, the parties agree the YMCA Exchange Property’s fair market value is greater
than the Agency Exchange Property, and therefore, the Agency intends to exchange the Agency
Exchange Property, plus Three Million Six Hundred Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($3,605,000.00) (the “Additional Funds”) so that the Exchange value will be equal; and,

WHEREAS, as described above certain conditions and circumstances have changed
since the Original Exchange Agreement was entered into on July 11, 2022, necessitating entering
into the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement, which repeals, replaces,
and supersedes the Original Exchange Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, to coordinate and facilitate access to the Agency Parcels prior to finalization
of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, and the proposed disposition
and development agreement related to the development of the 1010 W. Jefferson parcel,
Developer and Agency entered into an Access Agreement on June 6, 2022, to allow Developer
to enter onto the Agency Parcels in furtherance of completing Due Diligence Investigations, as
further defined therein, in connection with carrying out the Joint Proposal. The Access Agreement
was amended by the First Amendment to Access Agreement on June 30, 2022, to add the YMCA
as a party and providing Developer access to the YMCA Exchange Property to conduct Due
Diligence Investigations, and was further amended to extend the termination date through closing
of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA as set forth in the Second
Amendment to Access Agreement (collectively, the Access Agreement, as amended, is referred
to as the “Access Agreement”). The Access Agreement is limited to access for purposes of
conducting Due Diligence Investigations and does not include a process to address unsatisfactory
due diligence results, particularly with regard to the YMCA Exchange Property, as the Developer
is not a party to the Original Exchange Agreement; and,

RESOLUTION NO. -3



WHEREAS, to facilitate review of the Due Diligence Investigations and title, and as
Developer is not a party to the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement and
the YMCA is not a party to the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA,
Agency seeks to assign certain of its rights, interests and obligations under the Amended and
Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement to Developer, in general, to conduct Due Diligence
Investigations, to notify the YMCA as to whether the Due Diligence Investigations result in
satisfactory conditions, to conduct title review on the YMCA Exchange Property, and to confirm
closing conditions have been satisfied; and,

WHEREAS, the YMCA also intends to retain the Developer to conduct certain of the Due
Diligence Investigations on the Agency Exchange Property on behalf of the YMCA pursuant to a
separate agreement between the YMCA and the Developer; and,

WHEREAS, to facilitate development of the YMCA Exchange Property pursuant to the
Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, subject to the terms and conditions
set forth in the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement, the YMCA authorizes
the Developer, at its sole cost and expense, to undertake to consolidate the YMCA Exchange
Property into one legal lot prior to consummation of the Exchange, including recordation of the
record of survey prior to closing (the “Lot Consolidation”); and,

WHEREAS, the Agency and YMCA desire to accomplish the Exchange, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement. After
the closing of the Exchange, the Agency will be the owner in fee simple of the YMCA Exchange
Property, and YMCA will be the owner in fee simple of the Agency Exchange Property; and,

WHEREAS, subject to approval by Agency, Developer, and YMCA that the closing
conditions under the Exchange have been satisfied, the Exchange may have a Closing Date
earlier than the closing pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the Block 69 North
Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, otherwise the Closing Date of the Exchange will
be the same or immediately prior to the Agency’s disposition of the YMCA Exchange Property to
the Developer pursuant to the terms and conditions of the executed Block 69 North Workforce
Housing Development Project DDA. In all events, closing on the Exchange shall be subject to
the YMCA'’s continued right to occupy the YMCA Exchange Property until July 1, 2023; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency has sufficient funds to effectuate this transaction; and

WHEREAS, the Agency Board finds it to be in the best public interest to approve the
Amended and Restated Exchange Agreement, and to authorize the Agency Executive Director to
execute same.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct.

Section 2: That the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement
between the YMCA and the Agency, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A and
incorporated herein by reference, is hereby approved.

Section 3: That the Agency Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign and enter

RESOLUTION NO. -4



into the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement and to execute all necessary
documents required to implement the actions contemplated by the Amended and Restated Real
Property Exchange Agreement, including the documents necessary to appropriate and tender
THREE MILLION SIX HUNDRED FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,605,000.00), subject to
representations by the Agency staff and the Agency legal counsel that all conditions precedent to
such actions have been met; and further, any necessary technical changes to the Amended and
Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement or other documents are acceptable, upon advice
from the Agency’s legal counsel that said changes are consistent with the provisions of the
Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement and the comments and discussions
received at the October 10, 2022, Agency Board meeting.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
adoption and approval.

PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on October 10, 2022.
Signed by the Chair of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the Board
of Commissioners on October 10, 2022.

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY

By:
ATTEST: Latonia Haney Keith, Chair

By:

Lauren McLean, Secretary
4870-2498-1045, v. 1

RESOLUTION NO. -5



AMENDED AND RESTATED REAL PROPERTY EXCHANGE AGREEMENT

This Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement (this “Agreement”) is
entered into by and between The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, also known as Capital
City Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic (the “Agency”),
organized pursuant to the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, title 50, chapter 20, Idaho Code, as
amended (the “Law”), and undertaking projects under the authority of the Law and the Local
Economic Development Act, title 50, chapter 29, Idaho Code, as amended (the “Act”), and The
Young Men’s Christian Association of Boise City, Idaho, an Idaho non-profit corporation (the
“YMCA”), and effective as of the date this Agreement is last signed by either of the parties (the
“Effective Date”). This Agreement restates in its entirety that certain Real Property Exchange
Agreement entered into by and between Agency and YMCA, effective July 11, 2022 (the “Original
Exchange Agreement”). Agency and the YMCA may each individually be referred to as a “party”
or collectively as the “parties” as appropriate under the circumstances.

I. BACKGROUND

A. Agency, an independent public body, corporate and politic, is an urban renewal
agency created by and existing under the authority of the Law and the Act.

B. The City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho (the "City"), after notice duly
published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban
Renewal Project (the “Westside Plan™), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its
Ordinance No. 6108 on December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making certain
findings for the jurisdictional area of the Westside Plan Revenue Allocation Area.

C. The City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First
Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Project (the “First
Amendment”), which amendment added area to the Westside Plan Revenue Allocation Area, and
following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 45-20 on December 1, 2020,
approving the First Amendment and making certain findings. The Westside Plan Revenue
Allocation Area, as amended, may be referred to herein as the “Project Area.”

D. In order to achieve the objectives of the Westside Plan, Agency is authorized to
acquire real property for the revitalization of areas within the Project Area's boundaries.

E. Agency owns certain real property addressed as 421 North 10th Street, Boise, I[daho
83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583), and real property addressed as 1010 West Jefferson Street,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004553) (collectively, the “Agency Parcels”).

F. In accordance with Idaho Code Section 50-2011 Disposal of Property in Urban
Renewal Area, the Agency issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) on May 17, 2021, seeking to
initiate a catalytic redevelopment project to revitalize the Project Area in compliance with the Plan
through redevelopment of the Agency Parcels which could also serve as a catalyst for
redevelopment of other properties in the vicinity.



G. Following the publication of the RFP in the Idaho Statesman newspaper on May
17, May 24, May 31, and June 7, 2021. Agency received three (3) proposals for development of
the Agency Parcels by the August 19, 2021, RFP deadline.

H. A review committee including Agency staff and three (3) Commissioners analyzed
the proposals, interviewed the development team, and provided findings of fact and comments to
Agency staff sufficient for Agency staff to prepare a ranking of the proposals for Agency Board
consideration.

L Agency staff ranked the joint proposal from Edlen & Company, deChase Miksis,
Elton Companies, and YMCA first (the “Joint Proposal”).

J. At a public meeting on December 13, 2021, the Agency Board discussed the
proposals and thereafter met with consensus regarding the proposed rankings and selected the Joint
Proposal.

K The Joint Proposal contemplated development beyond the Agency Parcels on Block
68, and seeks to develop certain real property addressed as 1177 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho
83702 (Parcel No. R1013004631), 1111 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No.
R1013004640) and 419 N. 11th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651), which
combined include approximately 0.831 acres and which parcels are currently owned by the
YMCA. The three YMCA parcels are located along the State Street corridor in an area referred to
as “Block 69 N.” (the “YMCA Parcels™).

L. The Joint Proposal further contemplated the exchange of the Agency-owned real
property addressed as 421 North 10th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583) for
all or a portion of the YMCA Parcels to further support the development on Block 69 N. of an
approximately 220 unit, 7-story mid-rise building, including active ground-floor retail, parking,
and affordable and/or workforce housing units, which unit mix shall be at or more affordable than
1) 25 units at or below 80% AM]I, ii) 130 units at or below 120% AMI, and iii) 65 market-rate units
(the “Workforce Housing Project”).

M. A separate entity has been formed to undertake the development contemplated in
the Joint Proposal, specifically Block 68 Development LLC, an Idaho limited liability company
(the “Developer™).

N. To determine the value of the parcels contemplated for the exchange, the parcels
were appraised by Langston & Associates, Inc.

0. Agency and Developer are negotiating the terms of a disposition and development
agreement for each of the Agency Parcels, which for disposition of 421 N. 10th Street, includes
all or a portion of Block 69 N. obtained pursuant to the Exchange (defined below) and, thus,
complies with the required notice provisions concerning the disposition of property by Agency as
set forth in Idaho Code Section 50-2011.



P. The Agency Board and YMCA Board determined that their best interests were
served by exchanging the real property for equal value as contemplated in the Joint Proposal. The
Agency and the YMCA entered into the Original Exchange Agreement, wherein the Agency
agreed to exchange the Agency owned .39 acre of real property addressed as 421 North 10th Street,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583) in Ada County, Idaho, and specifically described
and shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by reference (the “Agency Exchange
Property”), plus One Million Three Hundred Thirty-Six Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($1,336,000.00) for the YMCA owned 0.551 acre of real property addressed as 1111 West State
Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004640) and 419 North 11% Street, Boise, Idaho
83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651) in Ada County, Idaho. It was further contemplated by the parties
that Developer would acquire 1177 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004631)
directly from the YMCA.

Q. During continued negotiations with the Developer regarding the disposition and
development agreement by and between the Agency and the Developer for the disposition and
development of all or a portion of the YMCA Parcels to be obtained by the Agency pursuant to
the Original Exchange Agreement for the development of the Workforce Housing Project on the
YMCA Parcels (the “Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA”), and in
support of development coordination including facilitating consolidation of the YMCA Parcels
into a developable lot and allocation of the due diligence and title review responsibilities, the
parties determined it was in their best interests to amend the Original Exchange Agreement to
include all of the YMCA Parcels in the exchange, to address lot consolidation and to assign the
performance of due diligence and title review obligations set forth herein to the Developer.

R. The Agency desires to exchange its Agency Exchange Property for the YMCA
Parcels, specifically described in Exhibit B and as shown on Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated by reference (the “YMCA Parcels” are now referred to as the “YMCA Exchange
Property”), and the YMCA desires to exchange the YMCA Exchange Property for the Agency
Exchange Property together with additional monetary consideration to make the exchange of equal
value as more particularly described herein (together, the “Exchange”).

S. The authority of the Agency to convey the Agency Exchange Property pursuant to
the Exchange and this Agreement complies with Idaho Code Section 50-2011 as the disposition
of the Agency Exchange Property is made pursuant to a competitive selection process initiated by
the Agency’s issuance of the RFP and by the Agency’s selection of the Joint Proposal, which
included the disposition by exchange of the Agency Exchange Property with all or a portion of the
YMCA Exchange Property, and therefore, the Exchange is not deemed a separate and distinct
conveyance, but rather part of the disposition of 421 North 10th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel
No. R1013004583) to effectuate the development contemplated in the Joint Proposal.

T. The parties agree the YMCA Exchange Property’s fair market value is greater than
the Agency Exchange Property, and therefore, the Agency intends to exchange the Agency
Exchange Property, plus Three Million Six Hundred Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($3,605,000.00) (the “Additional Funds™) so that the Exchange value will be equal.



U. As described above certain conditions and circumstances have changed since the
Original Exchange Agreement was entered into on July 11, 2022, necessitating entering into this
Agreement, which repeals, replaces, and supersedes the Original Exchange Agreement.

V. To coordinate and facilitate access to the Agency Parcels prior to finalization of the
Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, and the proposed disposition and
development agreement related to the development of the 1010 W. Jefferson parcel, Developer
and Agency entered into an Access Agreement on June 6, 2022, to allow Developer to enter onto
the Agency Parcels in furtherance of completing Due Diligence Investigations, as further defined
therein, in connection with carrying out the Joint Proposal. The Access Agreement was amended
by the First Amendment to Access Agreement on June 30, 2022, to add the YMCA as a party and
providing Developer access to the YMCA Exchange Property to conduct Due Diligence
Investigations, and is in the process of being further amended to extend the termination date
through closing of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA as set forth
in the Second Amendment to Access Agreement (collectively, the Access Agreement, as amended,
is referred to as the “Access Agreement™). The Access Agreement is limited to access for purposes
of conducting Due Diligence Investigations and does not include a process to address
unsatisfactory due diligence results, particularly with regard to the YMCA Exchange Property, as
the Developer is not a party to this Agreement.

W.  To facilitate review of the Due Diligence Investigations and title, and as Developer
is not a party to this Agreement and the YMCA is not a party to the Block 69 North Workforce
Housing Development Project DDA, Agency seeks to assign certain of its rights, interests and
obligations under this Agreement to Developer, in general, to conduct Due Diligence
Investigations, to notify the YMCA as to whether the Due Diligence Investigations result in
satisfactory conditions, to conduct title review on the YMCA Exchange Property, and to confirm
closing conditions have been satisfied.

X. The YMCA also intends to retain the Developer to conduct certain of the Due
Diligence Investigations on the Agency Exchange Property on behalf of the YMCA pursuant to a
separate agreement between the YMCA and the Developer.

Y. To facilitate development of the YMCA Exchange Property pursuant to the Block
69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, subject to the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement, the YMCA authorizes the Developer, at its sole cost and expense, to
undertake to consolidate the YMCA Exchange Property into one legal lot prior to consummation
of the Exchange, including recordation of the record of survey prior to closing (the “Lot
Consolidation™).

Z. The Agency and YMCA desire to accomplish the Exchange, subject to the terms
and conditions set forth below. After the closing of the Exchange, the Agency will be the owner
in fee simple of the YMCA Exchange Property, and YMCA will be the owner in fee simple of the
Agency Exchange Property.

AA. Subject to approval by Agency, Developer, and YMCA that the closing conditions
under the Exchange have been satisfied, the Exchange may have a Closing Date earlier than the



closing pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the Block 69 North Workforce Housing
Development Project DDA; otherwise the Closing Date of the Exchange will be the same or
immediately prior to the Agency’s disposition of the YMCA Exchange Property to the Developer
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the executed Block 69 North Workforce Housing
Development Project DDA. In all events, closing on the Exchange shall be subject to the YMCA’s
continued right to occupy the YMCA Exchange Property until July 1, 2023, as further described
below.

BB. As set forth in detail above, it is in the parties’ best interests to enter into this
Agreement.

II. AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is agreed and
acknowledged, the parties agree the foregoing recitals are not mere recitations but are covenants
of the parties, binding upon them as may be appropriate and a portion of the consideration for the
agreements contained herein, and hereby further agree as follows:

1. Exchange. Subject to all terms, covenants, warranties, undertakings, and
conditions contained in this Agreement, the Agency agrees to exchange its Agency Exchange
Property, legally described on Exhibit A, plus Three Million Six Hundred Five Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($3,605,000.00) (the “Additional Funds™) for the YMCA Exchange Property,
legally described on Exhibit B, and YMCA agrees to exchange its YMCA Exchange Property for
the Agency Exchange Property, plus receipt of the Additional Funds. The Exchange shall be
completed at a closing as provided herein.

2. The Exchange Properties are not of Equal Value. The negotiations between the
parties, and this Agreement, are premised on the mutual understanding and agreement that the “as-
is” values of the Agency Exchange Property and of the YMCA Exchange Property are not equal
and the YMCA Exchange Property has higher value. To make the Exchange equal, the Agency
intends to also pay the YMCA the Additional Funds at closing.

3. Closing Date and Termination.

a. “Closing Date” means the date the deeds held in escrow will be recorded
in the office of the Ada County Recorder and the Additional Funds are available for distribution
from the Escrow to YMCA, notwithstanding that such funds may not actually be distributed until
the following day due to wire transfer deadlines or similar circumstances.

b. It is generally contemplated the Closing Date will be contemporaneous
with the closing date set forth in the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project
DDA; however, the parties may elect to close under this Agreement earlier subject to approval by
YMCA, Agency, and Developer that the closing conditions under this Agreement have been
satisfied.

c. The outside date for the Closing Date is December 15, 2023. Failure to



close on or before December 15, 2023, means this Agreement terminates as of December 16, 2023,
without further action of either party, unless extended in writing signed by both parties.

d. In the event the Lot Consolidation has been completed and the Agreement
is terminated by the Agency prior to closing, and the YMCA is not in default, upon request of the
YMCA, the Developer will cooperate in the process of returning the YMCA Exchange Property
to three separate lots pursuant to a minor land division, or other process as may be determined by
the City, and will be responsible to fund the same.

€. Termination of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development
Project DDA or the 1010 W. Jefferson DDA prior to closing under this Agreement results in an
automatic termination of this Agreement unless otherwise agreed to by the parties.

4. YMCA Post-Closing Occupancy Rights. The YMCA shall have the right to
continue to occupy and use the YMCA Exchange Property for any office use and parking, rent-
free, consistent with the YMCA'’s current use of the YMCA Exchange Property through the later
of the Closing Date or July 1, 2023. If the Agency and Developer, subject to satisfaction or waiver
by all parties of the closing conditions, desire to close the Exchange prior to July 1, 2023, the
Agency shall enter into a lease agreement with the YMCA to provide for the YMCA'’s continued
use of the YMCA Exchange Property during such period. The lease agreement will contain
customary insurance and indemnification provisions, and the YMCA will continue to be
responsible for utilities and operating costs during such period; provided, however, the YMCA
shall not be required to pay any rent to the Agency or Developer under the lease or pay any real
property taxes or make any repairs or improvements to the YMCA Exchange Property. The
Agency agrees that any further transfer of the YMCA Exchange Property to the Developer prior
to July 1, 2023, will be subject to the YMCA'’s rights granted herein as evidenced by a lease.

5. Due Diligence Period.

a. Beginning on the Effective Date and continuing for one hundred and
twenty (120) days from the Effective Date of Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development
Project DDA (the “Due Diligence Period”), and subject to the terms and conditions of the Access
Agreement, each of the parties, at its own cost and expense, may make such non-destructive
inspections, surveys, investigations, and other examinations of the property it is acquiring (Agency
Exchange Property by YMCA, the YMCA Exchange Property by the Agency) (the “Due Diligence
Investigations”), including a review of any reports, testing results, studies, or other information
related to the property it is acquiring (the “Due Diligence Materials™) all as further described in
the Access Agreement, as the acquiring party, in its sole discretion, deems advisable. The Agency
shall provide the YMCA with written notice of the Effective Date of the Block 69 North Workforce
Housing Development Project DDA and the corresponding expiration of the Due Diligence Period
within two (2) business days following finalization of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing
Development Project DDA (the “Due Diligence Period Notice™).

b. If the Due Diligence Investigations of the property it is acquiring (Agency
Exchange Property by YMCA, the YMCA Exchange Property by the Agency) is not satisfactory
to the acquiring party for any reason, or no reason whatsoever, then at any time on or before the



expiration of the Due Diligence Period, the acquiring party shall give written notice of termination
of this Agreement to the other party. On such termination, all rights and obligations of the parties
under this Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect, except to the extent the
same expressly survive the termination hereof. Failure to provide such written notice prior to the
expiration of the Due Diligence Period shall be deemed the acquiring party’s approval of its Due
Diligence Investigations of the property it is acquiring, including, without limitation, the Due
Diligence Materials. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the YMCA shall have (1) additional day for
each day the Due Diligence Period Notice is late to conduct its Due Diligence Investigations of
the Agency Exchange Property and to provide a termination notice pursuant to this paragraph.

C. During the Due Diligence Period and any extensions thereof, either party
may terminate this Agreement for any reason.

d. Access and Use.

1. Access to the Agency Exchange Property and the YMCA Exchange
Property for Due Diligence Investigations is governed by the Access Agreement,
as may be amended from time to time, wherein Agency and the YMCA granted
Developer, and its agents, representatives, consultants and contractors, a limited,
revocable license and right to conduct Due Diligence Investigations (defined in the
Access Agreement) for the Due Diligence Period.

ii. Further, as set forth in Section 5(a), the parties acknowledge the
intent of the Developer and Agency to enter into the Block 69 North Workforce
Housing Development Project DDA concerning the conveyance of the YMCA
Exchange Property acquired by the Agency pursuant to Exchange, subject to the
terms of this Agreement, to the Developer. It is the Agency’s intent that Developer
conduct, and at its own cost and expense, such Due Diligence Investigations of the
YMCA Exchange Property, as may be necessary, including, but not limited to, a
Phase 1 Environmental and geotechnical study, and any other due diligence as may
be conducted by Developer under this Agreement, the Access Agreement and the
terms of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA (if
any), and that YMCA expressly permits Developer to access the YMCA Exchange
Property during the Due Diligence Period for these purposes, which access may be
set forth in: (1) a separate agreement between the Developer and YMCA, including
indemnification and insurance provisions, or; (ii) the Access Agreement:

. To further permit the parties to conduct their examinations, studies,
surveys, inspections, and investigations during the Due Diligence Period, each
party shall provide the other party, and Developer, with all documents and
information in such party’s possession reasonably requested in connection with the
property to be acquired. Each party agrees to retain all such information on a
confidential basis to the extent allowed by law.



iv. Up to the Closing Date, the Agency intends the Agency Exchange
Property will be leased to third parties for certain temporary uses, including, but
not limited to construction offices and/or use of parking facilities for staging.

€. Review of Title; Approved Title Exceptions.

Agency and YMCA shall accept title to the Agency Exchange Property and the

YMCA Exchange Property pursuant to the Exchange subject only to the Permitted Title
Exceptions, as defined herein. Title review as set forth in this section shall follow the later of (i)
timelines set forth below, or (ii) those set forth in the fully executed Block 69 North Workforce
Housing Development Project DDA (provided the YMCA is given written notice of the timeline).
It is recognized by the parties that Developer, pursuant to any fully executed Block 69 North
Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, will have an interest in the YMCA Exchange
Property. To facilitate the disposition of the YMCA Exchange Property, the parties agree to work
collaboratively and exchange information with Developer through the title review process.

If not previously provided, as soon as practicable following the Effective Date, Agency
and YMCA, with a copy to Developer, shall obtain a preliminary commitment for title insurance
for each parcel to the Exchange (each, a “Title Commitment”) and an ALTA survey of each parcel
to the Exchange (each, a “Survey”). Each party and the Developer shall have thirty (30) days
following the date each party and the Developer has received both the Survey and Title
Commitment to notify the other party of its disapproval of any exception shown in the Title Report
("Title Objections") or any objection to the Survey.

If Agency and/or YMCA do not give such notice within such thirty (30) day period, such
failure shall be conclusively deemed to be the other party's approval of those matters, unless the
Developer is allowed additional time to make Title Objections as to the YMCA Exchange Property
set forth in any fully executed Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, or
other separate agreement between the Developer, YMCA and Agency addressing title review.

If Agency, YMCA and/or Developer has any Title Objections, the respective entity shall
have thirty (30) days after receipt thereof to notify the other that it (a) will cause or (b) elects not
to cause any or all of the Title Objections disclosed therein to be removed or insured over by the
Title Company in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the Agency, YMCA and/or Developer, as
the case may be. Each party’s and/or Developer’s failure to notify the other within such thirty (30)
day period as to any Title Objections shall be deemed an election by the party not to remove or
have the Title Company insure over such Title Objections. The failure to cure any Title Objection
as specifically agreed to by the parties constitutes a breach of this Agreement.

If Agency, YMCA and/or Developer notifies or is deemed to have notified the other party
that it shall not remove nor have the title insure over any or all of the Title Objections, then Agency
and/or YMCA, as the case may be, shall have ten (10) business days to respond to the respective
Title Objections to either (a) terminate this Agreement; or (b) waive such Title Objections and
proceed to Closing, without any adjustment in the value of the Exchange on account of such Title
Objections; or (c) propose an adjustment in the value of the Exchange on account of such Title
Objections, which the applicable party shall have two (2) business days to accept or reject.



If Agency, YMCA and/or Developer does not give notice within said period, then Agency,
YMCA and/or Developer shall be deemed to have elected to waive the Title Objections.

Not less than twenty (20) business days prior to the close of escrow, which may be the
same Closing Date as set forth in the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project
DDA, or earlier subject to approval by the YMCA, Agency and Developer that the closing
conditions under this Agreement have been satisfied, Agency, YMCA and Developer shall obtain
supplements to each Title Commitment (with the understanding that the parties and the Developer
shall have the right to order updates to the preliminary title report at any time prior to close of
escrow) disclosing any new title matters that may adversely affect the parcels to the Exchange, not
previously disclosed. Each party and the Developer shall have five (5) business days from receipt
of such supplemental title report (and all underlying documents referenced therein) to notify the
other party of any objections (“Supplemental Title Objections”) it may have with respect to the
supplemental title report.

If Agency, Developer and/or YMCA do not give such notice within such five (5) business
day period, such failure shall be conclusively deemed to be Agency, YMCA and/or Developer’s
approval of those matters, unless otherwise set forth in the Block 69 North Workforce Housing
Development Project DDA.

If Agency, Developer and/or YMCA has any Supplemental Title Objections, the respective
entity shall have five (5) business days after receipt thereof to notify the other that it (a) will cause
or (b) elects not to cause any or all of the Supplemental Title Objections disclosed therein to be
removed or insured over by the Title Company in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the Agency,
Developer and/or YMCA, as the case may be. Unless otherwise set forth in the Block 69 North
Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, the Agency, YMCA, or Developer’s failure to
notify the other within such five (5) business day period as to any Supplemental Title Objections
shall be deemed an election by the party and the Developer not to remove or have the title company
insure over such Supplemental Title Objections. The failure to cure any Supplemental Title
Objection as specifically agreed to by the Agency, YMCA and Developer constitutes a breach of
this Agreement.

If Agency, Developer and/or YMCA notifies or is deemed to have notified the other that it
shall not remove nor have the title insure over any or all of the Supplemental Title Objections, then
Agency and/or YMCA, as the case may be, shall have three (3) business days to respond to the
other’s Supplemental Title Objections to either (a) terminate this Agreement; or (b) waive such
Supplemental Title Objections and proceed to Closing, without any adjustment in the value of the
Exchange on account of such Supplemental Title Objections; or (c) propose an adjustment in the
value of the Exchange on account of such Supplemental Title Objections, which the applicable
party shall have two (2) business days to accept or reject. To the extent there is an unforeseen
encumbrance clouding title, the parties agree to promptly and reasonably cooperate with each other
in good faith to resolve the title issue to allow the transaction to proceed.



If Agency, Developer and/or YMCA does not give notice within said period, then Agency,
YMCA and/or Developer shall be deemed to have elected to waive the Supplemental Title
Objections.

All exceptions to a Title Commitment, as supplemented prior to Closing, that are not
objected to by the Agency, YMCA or Developer, or are not agreed to be cured or insured over by
the other shall be “Permitted Exceptions™ on the applicable final title policy; provided, however,
in no event shall the standard pre-printed exceptions on the Title Commitment be “Permitted
Exceptions” for purposes of the deeds.

Each party and Developer shall be entitled to request additional endorsements to the final
title policy and to obtain extended coverage title insurance, at no cost or expense to the other but
with the Agency, Developer and/or YMCA’s, as the case may be, reasonable and customary
cooperation, including the execution of a customary and commercially reasonable owner’s
affidavit required by the Title Company, unless the same are necessary to satisfy or remove any
Title Objection or Supplemental Title Objections in which case the endorsement(s) will be paid
for by the party required to remove the Title Objection or Supplemental Title Objection.

6. Lot Consolidation. Prior to Closing, the YMCA agrees to allow the Developer to
pursue, at its sole cost and expense, surveying and governmental approval to accomplish the Lot
Consolidation, and the YMCA will reasonably cooperate in this effort including signing a limited
statement of legal interest or such similar required document. The YMCA will approve
recordation of the record of survey to complete the Lot Consolidation and close the Exchange after
satisfaction of the following conditions (“Lot Consolidation Conditions”):

a. Either the Due Diligence Period has expired or the parties and Developer
have provided written notice that they are satisfied with the condition of the Agency Exchange
Property and YMCA Exchange Property and that they waive their rights to terminate this
Agreement or any other agreement based on the condition of such properties.

b. The parties and the Developer have approved title (in its then existing
condition, but subject to further right to make Supplemental Title Objections) to the YMCA
Exchange Property and the Agency Exchange Property.

c. The YMCA and the Developer have entered into a master development
agreement setting forth the terms and conditions for the development by the Developer of the new
downtown YMCA on Block 68 North.

7. Conditions to Closing.
a. Closing shall be subject to each and all of the following conditions:
L. Each party, in its sole discretion, shall determine that the properties
are suitable for their intended uses taking into consideration any factor deemed

relevant by either party, including satisfaction with the environmental condition of
the property by conducting or obtaining, during the Due Diligence Period, such

10



11

reports, studies, tests, or investigations as it may choose to undertake on the
property that it will acquire in the Exchange.

il Each party may investigate, review, and ascertain the zoning
classification and status, and the existence of any other land use regulations or
controls, applicable to the property it will acquire in the Exchange. Any change a
party may seek to the land-use zoning applicable to any parcel(s) under the
ordinances of the City together with any land-use or other permits from any
governmental entity required to utilize the respective parcel(s) shall be and remain
the responsibility of each party.

iii. TitleOne Corporation (the “Title Company”), is unconditionally and
irrevocably committed to issue at Closing (defined below) an ALTA standard
coverage owner’s title policy, or, upon a party’s request, an ALTA extended
coverage owner’s policy of title insurance (“Title Policy”), insuring (i) YMCA’s
title to the Agency Exchange Property; and (ii) Agency’s title to the YMCA’s
Exchange Property; in the amount of the value of the Exchange, subject only to the
following (collectively, the “Permitted Title Exceptions”): the standard exceptions
and exclusions from coverage contained in such form of the policy; matters created
by, through or under each party; items disclosed by the survey; items that would
have been disclosed by a physical inspection of each property on the Effective Date;
real estate taxes not yet due and payable (if any); the documents to be recorded
under this Agreement; any mutually agreed upon Supplemental Title Objections;
and the exceptions disclosed in the Title Report. If any party requests ALTA
extended coverage, any standard exceptions shall not be Permitted Title
Exceptions. It is recognized by the parties that Developer, pursuant to any fully
executed Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, will have
a similar closing condition. To facilitate the disposition of the YMCA Exchange
Property, the parties agree to work collaboratively and exchange information with
Developer through the title review process.

iv. The Lot Consolidation Conditions have been satisfied.

V. Each party, in its sole discretion, shall determine that the property it
is acquiring is legally described in a manner acceptable for conveying full and
marketable title.

vi. Each party has performed all of its obligations under this
Agreement.

vii.  The truth and correctness of each and every representation and
warranty of the parties, as contained in Section 8 of this Agreement, entitled
“Representations and Warranties,” shall be an express condition of closing.

viii. YMCA and Developer have terminated that certain Option to
Purchase Agreement between YMCA and Developer, dated August 18, 2021.



iX. Agency and Developer have entered into the Block 69 North
Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, the parties are not in default under
the terms and conditions of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development
Project DDA and have satisfied and/or waived the closing conditions therein and
will contemporaneously close the transaction on the Closing Date, resulting in the
Agency disposition of the YMCA Exchange Property to the Developer following
closing under this Agreement. The parties may elect to close the Exchange earlier
and in that instance the parties may waive all or a portion of this Closing Condition.

X. Agency and Developer have entered into the Block 68 South Mixed-
Use Housing & Mobility Hub Project DDA, and the parties are not in default
thereunder.

Xi. Each party shall deliver a Closing Certificate in a form agreed to by
the parties confirming conditions to close have been satisfied as of the Closing
Date.

xii.  Agency and YMCA have executed a restrictive covenant as to the
Agency Exchange Property limiting Demolition Work (defined below).

xiii.  Agency and YMCA have entered into a lease if the Exchange is to
close prior to July 1, 2023.

b. Each party shall proceed diligently and in good faith to attempt to see that
each of the foregoing Conditions to Closing is satisfied.

c. Each party shall pay the expenses it incurs in satisfying or attempting to
satisfy the Conditions to Closing, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

d. Notwithstanding the execution of this Agreement, either party may
terminate this Agreement without liability prior to the end of the Due Diligence Period.

€. Closing costs will be split equally between the parties and paid at the time
of closing.

f. Satisfaction of Conditions.

Where satisfaction of any of the foregoing conditions requires action by YMCA or Agency,
each party shall use its diligent efforts, in good faith, and at its own cost, to expeditiously satisfy
such condition. If a party is not in a position to know whether or not a condition precedent has
been satisfied, then the party that is aware of the status of the condition shall immediately notify
the other party.

12



g. Waiver.

Each party may at any time or times, at its election, waive any of the Closing Conditions
set forth in Section 7, but any such waiver shall be effective only if contained in a writing signed
by the waiving party and delivered to the other party.

h. Termination.

In the event each party has not fulfilled the Closing Conditions by the outside date for the Closing
Date, or such earlier time period as provided for herein, and the Closing Conditions have not been
waived by the parties, and provided the party is not in default of this Agreement, the other party
may at its option terminate this Agreement and the Escrow opened hereunder. In the event this
Agreement is terminated, all closing documents and funds (if any) delivered by the parties or
Escrow Agent shall be returned immediately to the appropriate party.

8. Representations and Warranties.

a. Agency’s Representations and Warranties. The Agency represents and
warrants as of the date of this Agreement, and as of the Closing Date, that:

i. Authority. The execution, delivery, and performance of this
Agreement, and all other agreements contemplated hereby, have been duly and
validly authorized by all necessary action of the Agency, and this Agreement, and
all other agreements contemplated hereby, are valid and binding obligations of the
Agency, enforceable against the Agency, subject to the terms, conditions, and
limitations contained in this Agreement.

il. Title; Transfer: Liens. On the Closing Date, the Agency will transfer
the Agency Exchange Property free and clear of all security interests, mortgages,
pledges, liens, encumbrances, claims, tenancies (unless otherwise agreed to by the
parties in writing), parties in possession and equities other than the Permitted
Exceptions applicable to the Agency Exchange Property.

iii. No Conflict. The execution, delivery, and performance by the
Agency of its obligations under this Agreement, and all other agreements
contemplated hereby, will not contravene or violate any statute, law, rule, or
regulation, or any judgment, order, or decree of any governmental authority or court
with jurisdiction, and no consent, approval, authorization, or order of, or
qualification with, any person, entity, or governmental authority is required for
performance by the Agency of its obligations under this Agreement, or any other
agreement contemplated hereby.

iv. No Litigation or Adverse Events. There are no pending or, to the
knowledge of the Agency, threatened investigations, actions, suits, proceedings, or
claims against or affecting the Agency Exchange Property, at law or in equity, or

13



14

before or by any federal, state, municipal, or other governmental department,
commission, board, agency, or instrumentality, domestic or foreign.

V. Compliance with Laws. The Agency has no knowledge that the
Agency Exchange Property is in non-compliance with any applicable laws,
ordinances, rules, or regulations.

vi. No Defaults in Other Agreements. The Exchange will not
contravene, violate, or cause a default under any contract or agreement. The Agency
is not in material default under any contract or agreement relating to or affecting
the Agency Exchange Property, and no event has occurred which, with the passage
of time or the giving of notice or both, will become a material default thereunder.
The Agency is in compliance in all material respects with the terms and provisions
of the covenants, conditions, restrictions, rights-of-way, and easements, if any,
affecting the Agency Exchange Property.

vii.  Condemnation. There is no existing or, to the knowledge of the
Agency, proposed or threatened condemnation or similar proceeding, or private
purchase in lieu of such proceeding, affecting the Agency Exchange Property.

viii.  Taxes and Assessments. All real and personal property taxes relating
to the Agency Exchange Property (if any), excepting those for the current tax year
which are not yet due and owing, have been paid in full or are subject to exemption.
Other than increases applied to all real properties in the county in which the Agency
Exchange Property is located, there are, to the knowledge of the Agency, no
existing or proposed assessments that have, or may, become a lien on the Agency
Exchange Property.

ix. Environment. Other than as disclosed in writing to YMCA within
ten (10) days from the Effective Date of this Agreement: (i) the Agency has not
engaged in, or permitted, any operations or activities upon, or any use or occupancy
of the Agency Exchange Property, or any portion thereof, for the purpose of, or in
any way involving the handling, manufacture, treatment, storage, use, generation,
release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of any Hazardous Materials
(whether legal or illegal, accidental or intentional) on, under, in, or about the
Agency Exchange Property, or transported any Hazardous Materials to, from,
across, or through the Agency Exchange Property, except in all cases in material
compliance with Environmental Requirements and only in the course of legitimate
business operations at the Agency Exchange Property (which shall not include any
business primarily or substantially devoted to the handling, manufacture, treatment,
storage, use, generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of
Hazardous Materials); (ii) to the knowledge of the Agency, no person has engaged
in or permitted any operations or activities upon, or any use or occupancy of, the
Agency Exchange Property, or any portion thereof, for the purpose of, or in any
material way involving, the handling, manufacture, treatment, storage, use,
generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of any Hazardous



Materials (whether legal or illegal, accidental or intentional) on, under, in, or about
the Agency Exchange Property, except in all cases in material compliance with
Environmental Requirements and only in the course of legitimate business
operations at the Agency Exchange Property (which shall not include any business
primarily or substantially devoted to the handling, manufacture, treatment, storage,
use, generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of Hazardous
Materials); (iii) to the knowledge of the Agency, no Hazardous Materials are
presently or currently constructed, deposited, stored, or otherwise located on,
under, in, or about the Agency Exchange Property except in all cases in material
compliance with Environmental Requirements and only in the course of legitimate
business operations at the Agency Exchange Property (which shall not include any
business primarily or substantially devoted to the handling, manufacture, treatment,
storage, use, generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of
Hazardous Materials); (iv) to the knowledge of the Agency, no Hazardous
Materials have migrated from the Agency Exchange Property to, upon, across,
about, or beneath any other property or properties; and (v) to the knowledge of the
Agency, no Hazardous Materials have migrated, or threatened to migrate, from any
other property or properties to, upon, across, about, or beneath the Agency
Exchange Property.

X. Liens. All bills and claims for labor performed and materials
furnished to or for the benefit of the Agency Exchange Property, if any have been
paid in full, and there are no mechanic’s or materialmen’s liens (whether or not
perfected) on or affecting the Agency Property as a result of labor performed or
materials furnished and contracted for by the Agency.

b. YMCA'’s Representations and Warranties. YMCA represents and warrants

as of the date of this Agreement, and as of the Closing Date, that:

15

i Authority. The execution, delivery, and performance of this
Agreement, and all other agreements contemplated hereby, have been duly and
validly authorized by all necessary action of YMCA, and this Agreement, and all
other agreements contemplated hereby, are valid and binding obligations of
YMCA, enforceable against YMCA, subject to the terms, conditions, and
limitations contained in this Agreement.

. Title; Transfer: Liens. On the Closing Date, YMCA will transfer the
YMCA Exchange Property free and clear of all security interests, mortgages,
pledges, liens, encumbrances, claims, tenancies (unless otherwise agreed to by the
parties in writing), parties in possession and equities other than the Permitted
Exceptions applicable to the YMCA Exchange Property.

1ii. No Conflict. The execution, delivery, and performance by YMCA
of its obligations under this Agreement, and all other agreements contemplated
hereby, will not contravenc or violate any existing contract, agreement or conflict
with any other obligation undertaken by YMCA.



16

iv. No Litigation or Adverse Events. There are no pending or, to the
knowledge of the YMCA, threatened investigations, actions, suits, proceedings, or
claims against or affecting the YMCA Exchange Property, at law or in equity, or
before or by any federal, state, municipal, or other governmental department,
commission, board, agency, or instrumentality, domestic or foreign.

v. Compliance with Laws. YMCA has no knowledge that the YMCA
Exchange Property is in non-compliance with any applicable laws, ordinances,
rules, or regulations.

vi. No Defaults in Other Agreements. The Exchange will not
contravene, violate, or cause a default under any contract or agreement. YMCA is
not in material default under any contract or agreement relating to or affecting the
YMCA Exchange Property, and no event has occurred which, with the passage of
time or the giving of notice or both, will become a material default thereunder.
YMCA is in compliance in all material respects with the terms and provisions of
the covenants, conditions, restrictions, rights-of-way, and easements, if any,
affecting the YMCA Exchange Property.

vii.  Condemnation. There is no existing or, to the knowledge of YMCA,
proposed or threatened condemnation or similar proceeding, or private purchase in
lieu of such proceeding, affecting the YMCA Exchange Property. However,
Agency 1s hereby advised that the YMCA Exchange Property is subject to that
certain Property Use Agreement, dated May 5, 2022 and expiring no later than May
5, 2023, by and between YMCA and the Ada County Highway District, a body
politic and corporate of the State of Idaho (“ACHD”), which allows ACHD to have
temporary use and occupancy of certain portions of the YMCA Exchange Property
for purposes of pavement and sidewalk rehabilitation.

viii.  Taxes and Assessments. All real and personal property taxes relating
to the YMCA Exchange Property (if any), excepting those for the current tax year
which are not yet due and owing, have been paid in full or are subject to exemption.
Other than increases applied to all real properties in the county in which the YMCA
Exchange Property is located, there are, to the knowledge of the YMCA, no existing
or proposed assessments that have, or may, become a lien on the YMCA Exchange

Property.

ix. Environment. Other than as disclosed in writing to the Agency
within ten (10) days from the Effective Date of this Agreement: (i) YMCA has not
engaged in, or permitted, any operations or activities upon, or any use or occupancy
of the YMCA Exchange Property, or any portion thereof, for the purpose of, or in
any way involving the handling, manufacture, treatment, storage, use, generation,
release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of any Hazardous Materials
(whether legal or illegal, accidental or intentional) on, under, in, or about the
YMCA Exchange Property, or transported any Hazardous Materials to, from,
across, or through the YMCA Exchange Property, except in all cases in material



17

compliance with Environmental Requirements and only in the course of legitimate
business operations at the YMCA Exchange Property (which shall not include any
business primarily or substantially devoted to the handling, manufacture, treatment,
storage, use, generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of
Hazardous Materials); (ii) to the knowledge of YMCA, no person has engaged in
or permitted any operations or activities upon, or any use or occupancy of, the
YMCA Exchange Property, or any portion thereof, for the purpose of, or in any
material way involving, the handling, manufacture, treatment, storage, use,
generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of any Hazardous
Materials (whether legal or illegal, accidental or intentional) on, under, in, or about
the YMCA Exchange Property, except in all cases in material compliance with
Environmental Requirements and only in the course of legitimate business
operations at the YMCA Exchange Property (which shall not include any business
primarily or substantially devoted to the handling, manufacture, treatment, storage,
use, generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of Hazardous
Materials); (iii) to the knowledge of YMCA, no Hazardous Materials are presently
or currently constructed, deposited, stored, or otherwise located on, under, in, or
about the YMCA Exchange Property except in all cases in material compliance
with Environmental Requirements and only in the course of legitimate business
operations at the YMCA Exchange Property (which shall not include any business
primarily or substantially devoted to the handling, manufacture, treatment, storage,
use, generation, release, discharge, refining, dumping, or disposal of Hazardous
Materials); (iv) to the knowledge of YMCA, no Hazardous Materials have migrated
from the YMCA Exchange Property to, upon, across, about, or beneath any other
property or properties; and (v) to the knowledge of YMCA, no Hazardous Materials
have migrated, or threatened to migrate, from any other property or properties to,
upon, across, about, or beneath the YMCA Exchange Property.

X. Liens. All bills and claims for labor performed and materials
furnished to or for the benefit of the YMCA Exchange Property, if any have been
paid in full, and there are no mechanic’s or materialmen’s liens (whether or not
perfected) on or affecting the YMCA Exchange Property as a result of labor
performed or materials furnished and contracted for by the YMCA.

c. Definitions. For purposes of this Aereement:

1. “Hazardous Materials” shall be defined as set forth in Title 42,
U.S.C. §§ 9601, 9603, and 6991 (or the corresponding provision of any future law).

il. “Environmental Requirements” shall mean all applicable present
and future statutes, regulations, rules, ordinances, codes, licenses, permits, orders,
approvals, plans, authorizations, concessions, franchises, and similar items of all
governmental agencies, departments, commissions, boards, bureaus, or
instrumentalities of the United States, the state of Idaho, and all political
subdivisions thereof and all applicable judicial and administrative and regulatory
decrees, judgments, and orders relating to the protection of human health or the



18

environment, including, without limitation: (i) all requirements pertaining to
reporting, licensing, permitting, investigation, and remediation of emissions,
discharges, releases, or threatened releases of Hazardous Materials, whether solid,
liquid, or gaseous in nature, into the air, surface water, ground water, or land, or
relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage,
disposal, transport, or handling of Hazardous Materials, whether solid, liquid, or
gaseous in nature; and (ii) all requirements pertaining to the protection of the health
and safety of employees or the public.

11l With respect to YMCA, the term “knowledge” when used in this
Agreement means the actual knowledge of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of YMCA.

iv. With respect to Agency, the term “knowledge” when used in this
Agreement means the actual knowledge of the Executive Director and the Agency
Board Chair.

d. Delivery of Possession “As Is” and “With All Faults.”

1. YMCA Acknowledgments Re: the Agency Exchange Property.
YMCA acknowledges that no representation or warranty has been made by Agency
concerning the Agency Exchange Property or its nature, quality, or suitability for
use for any purpose, except as otherwise expressly stated herein. YMCA will have
the opportunity to examine the Agency Exchange Property. At Closing, YMCA’s
acceptance of the Agency Exchange Property, subject to the Due Diligence
Investigations, shall be in its “as is” and “where is” condition, with all faults.
Agency’s representations and warranties will not survive the Closing and recording
of the Deed.

il. Agency Acknowledgments Re: the YMCA Exchange Property. The
Agency acknowledges that no representation or warranty has been made by YMCA
concerning the YMCA Exchange Property or its nature, quality, or suitability for
use for any purpose, except as otherwise expressly stated herein. The Agency will
have the opportunity to examine the YMCA Exchange Property. At Closing, the
Agency’s acceptance of the YMCA Exchange Property, subject to the Due
Diligence Investigations, shall be in its “as is” and “where is” condition, with all
faults. YMCA'’s representations and warranties will not survive the Closing and
recording of the Deed.

iii. No rights, easements, or licenses, implied or otherwise, are or shall
be acquired by either party hereunder, except as expressly set forth in this
Agreement or those that are appurtenant to the applicable property, which
appurtenances will be conveyed with the Deeds.



9. Closing and Related Matters.

a. If, during the Due Diligence Period or any extension thereof, each party
notifies the other that it accepts the condition of the property to be acquired, then the closing of
the Exchange shall occur at such time as the parties may agree in writing (the “Closing” or
“Closing Date™).

b. Closing shall occur under the following terms and conditions:

i. Title shall be conveyed by special warranty deed, free and clear of
all matters except the Permitted Exceptions for each property (each, a “Deed”).
Unless otherwise agreed upon in writing, the special warranty deeds shall be in
substantially the form attached as Exhibit C (attached and incorporated).

ii. Taxes (if any), utilities (if any), assessments, and other charges
typically prorated in Ada County, Idaho, shall be prorated as of the Closing Date.

iil. Each party shall pay the costs of obtaining whatever policy of title
insurance covering the parcel it is obtaining in this Exchange as such party elects
to obtain.

iv. Possession shall pass to the acquiring party as of Closing, and shall
be delivered vacant, free and clear of all tenancies, occupancies, or other rights
thereto (unless otherwise agreed to by the parties or pursuant to Section 4). Unless
otherwise agreed by the parties, all furniture, fixtures, and equipment (FFE) shall
be removed from the YMCA Exchange Property and the Agency Exchange
Property, and to the extent feasible, the FFE shall be recycled and/or reused.

10.  Assignment to Developer. To facilitate review of the Due Diligence Investigations
and title, as well as the Lot Consolidation process, and as Developer is not a party to this
Agreement and the YMCA is not a party to the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development
Project DDA, the YMCA specifically consents to the assignment of Agency’s rights, interests and
obligations related to the YMCA Exchange Property to Developer, or its successor, to review and
approve the Due Diligence Investigations, title review, Lot Consolidation and certain closing
conditions related to the condition of the YMCA Exchange Property, as may be further set forth
in a separate assignment and assumption agreement between the Agency and the Developer. The
parties further acknowledge and agree that the Developer will be conducting certain Due Diligence
Investigations pertaining to the Agency Exchange Property on behalf of the YMCA.

11.  Approval by Appropriate Authority. Each party, for itself, acknowledges that (i)
this Agreement, even though agreed upon by the Agency’s representatives, is not binding upon the
Agency until such time as the Agency Board adopts a resolution approving this Agreement and
authorizing the Board Chair and/or the Executive Director to execute this Agreement on behalf of
the Agency; and (2) this Agreement, even though agreed upon by the YMCA'’s representatives, is
not binding upon the YMCA until such time as the YMCA Board, or its designees, as may be
authorized by the YMCA’s bylaws, adopts a resolution approving this Agreement and authorizing

19



an officer or other representative of the YMCA to execute and this Agreement on behalf of the
YMCA.

12.  Limited Purpose; No Waiver. This Agreement is intended to be applicable to, and
shall be interpreted and used for, the limited purposes expressly contained herein. Nothing
contained herein is intended, nor shall it be construed, as a waiver of any permit, authorization,
license, approval, certification, or other condition, obligation, or prerequisite required by the
Agency or any other governmental agency or entity. Additionally, nothing contained herein is
intended, nor shall it be construed, as the Agency’s approval, authorization, or permission for any
development or construction.

13. Default.

a. A party shall be in “default” of this Agreement if that party fails to
perform its obligations hereunder and fails to cure or remedy such failure within thirty (30) days
after receipt of written notice from the party claiming the default, specifying the nature of such
default. In the event of default, the non-defaulting party may pursue any remedies available at law
or in equity, up to and including termination of this Agreement.

b. A default under any agreement the YMCA is a party to related to the
development contemplated in the Joint Proposal that cannot be cured constitutes a default under
this Agreement and the parties declare it is their intention that this Agreement be terminated within
thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from the Agency advising of the termination.

14.  Brokers. Each party represents and warrants to the other that it has not dealt with
any broker or finder with regard to this Exchange. If any claims for brokers’ or finders’ fees or
commissions are made in connection with the negotiation, execution, or consummation of this
Agreement, the Agency shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless YMCA from and against such
claims if they are based upon any statement, representation, or agreement made by the Agency,
and YMCA shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Agency from and against such claims
if they are based upon any statement, representation, or agreement made by YMCA.

15.  Attorneys’ Fees. In the event of litigation between the parties, declaratory or
otherwise, in connection with or arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall recover
from the nonprevailing party all actual costs, actual damages and actual expenses, including
attorneys’ fees and charges, paralegal and clerical fees and charges and other professional or
consultants’ fees or charges, expended or incurred in connection therewith, as set by the court,
including for appeals, which shall be determined and fixed by the court as part of the judgment.

16.  Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable for, or be in default of this Agreement
based on, its failure to perform any obligation hereunder if such failure is the result of war,
msurrection, strikes, lockouts, walkouts, riots, flood, earthquakes, fire or other casualty, the
elements or acts of God, or other causes, other than financial, beyond a party’s reasonable control.

20



17.  Risk of Loss. Until delivery of the deeds, risk of loss by fire or other casualty is
assumed by the Agency for the Agency Exchange Property and by YMCA for the YMCA
Exchange Property.

18. Demolition Work. The Agency Exchange Property will be conveyed with a
restrictive covenant providing the YMCA will not destroy, raze, tear down, break into pieces (the
“Demolition Work™) the structure or adjacent parking lot on the Agency Exchange Property solely
for the purpose of constructing a surface parking lot.

19, Miscellaneous.

a. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. No extension, change,
modification, or amendment to or of this Agreement of any kind whatsoever shall be made or
claimed by either party, and no notice of any extension, change, modification, or amendment made
or claimed by either party shall have any force or effect whatsoever unless the same shall be
endorsed in writing and be signed by the party against which the enforcement of such extension,
change, modification, or amendment is sought, and then only to the extent set forth in such
instrument.

b. Captions and Headings. The captions and headings in this Agreement are
for reference only and shall not be deemed to define or limit the scope or intent of any provision
of this Agreement.

c. Construction. Each party has been represented by legal counsel in drafting
and negotiating this Agreement or has had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel and has
chosen not to do so. In all cases, this Agreement shall be construed and interpreted according to
its fair meaning, and not for or against either party, regardless of which party caused the drafting
of this Agreement or any of its terms.

d. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) counterparts,
and each counterpart shall be deemed an original and both of which shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

€. Successors and Assigns. The terms and conditions hereof shall be binding
upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties, their administrators, executors, successors,
and assigns. Except with respect to the assignment to the Developer of certain rights to conduct
Due Diligence Investigations, title review, Lot Consolidation and certain closing conditions related
to the condition of the YMCA Exchange Property, and provide notices associated therewith, which
is expressly permitted, neither party may assign this Agreement without the other party’s prior
written consent.

f. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable, the remainder shall be construed to conform to the intent of the parties and shall
survive the severed provisions.

21



g. Further Assurances. Each party shall cooperate fully with the other and
execute such further instruments, documents, and agreements and give such further written
assurances as may be reasonably requested to better evidence and reflect the transactions described
herein and contemplated hereby, and to carry into effect the intents and purposes of this
Agreement.

h. Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by, and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the state of Idaho. Venue for any legal action arising
from this Agreement shall be Ada County, Idaho.

i. Notice. Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing and be
delivered in person, or by United States Mail, postage prepaid, or by public or private 24-hour
overnight courier service (so long as such service provides written confirmation of delivery), or
by electronic mail or facsimile verified by electronic confirmation. All notices shall be addressed
to the party at the address set forth below or at such other addresses as the parties may from time
to time direct in writing by notice given the other. Any notice shall be deemed to have been given
on (a) actual delivery or refusal, (b) three (3) days following the day of deposit in the United States
Mail, (c) the day of delivery to the overnight courier, or (d) the day electronic mail or facsimile
delivery is electronically confirmed.

Agency:

John Brunelle, Executive Director
Capital City Development Corporation
121 N. 9™ Street, Suite 501

Boise, ID 83702

208-384-4264 (voice)

208-384-4267 (fax)

ibrunelle« cedeboise.com

With a copy to:

Meghan S. Conrad

Elam and Burke, P.A.

251 E. Front Street, Suite 300
Boise, ID 83702

Email: msci¢ elamburke.com

YMCA:

David Duro, CEO

1177 W. State Street

Boise, ID 83702

Email: David.Duro« vmcatvidaho.orge

22



With a copy to:

Kimberly D. Maloney

Givens Pursley LLP

601 W, Bannock Street

Boise, ID 83702

Email: kdm@givenspursley.com

Developer:

J. Dean Papé

Block 68 Development LLC
1199 Shoreline Drive, #290
Boise, Idaho 83702

(208) 830-7071 (voice)
dean@dechase.com

With a copy to:

Jill Sherman

(which copy shall not constitute notice):
151 SW First Ave., Suite 300

Portland, OR 97204

(503) 956-7210 (mobile)
jill.sherman@edlenandco.com

Registered Agent for Developer:

Anne C. Kunkel

Varin Thomas Corporate Services LLC
242 North 8th Street, Suite 220

Boise, Idaho 83702

(208) 584-1266 (voice)

(877) 717-1758 (fax)
anne@varinthomas.com

j. Good Faith Cooperation. In the event unforeseen circumstances arise and/or
due to the acts of a third party, either or both of the parties cannot perform the duties and
obligations set forth in this Agreement, the parties agree to cooperate and in good faith to meet
and work collaboratively to resolve the issue so that the parties may perform their obligations in
this Agreement and to cause the transaction contemplated by this Agreement to be carried out
promptly in accordance with its terms, or as may be amended. The parties shall cooperate fully
with each other and their respective representatives in connection with any actions required to be
taken as part of their respective obligations under this Agreement. The parties shall promptly do
and perform such further acts and execute and deliver all further instruments required by law or
which may be reasonably requested by any party to establish, maintain, and protect the respective
rights and remedies of any party to carry out and effect the intent and purposes of this Agreement.

23



The parties shall work collaboratively to perform their duties under this Agreement in a manner
that helps reinforce the collective goals of the parties and Developer as set forth in the Joint
Proposal; however, nothing in this paragraph shall limit the parties’ rights or remedies under this
Agreement as each faithfully performs its duties.

[signatures on the following page]

24



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly executed this Agreement.
End of Agreement | Signatures appear on the following page.

, 2022

AGENCY

THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF
BOISE CITY, also known as CAPITAL
AGENCY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION

John Brunelle, Executive Director

A
/< / J//ﬁﬂ%i_, 2022

YMCA
YOUNG MEN’S CHRISTIAN
ASSOCIATION OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO

2N 5%,

By L st VA Zeto

Title: &0

25




Exhibit A

Agency Exchange Property Legal Description and Map Showing the Location of the Agency
Exchange Property and the YMCA Exchange Property

Legal Description:

Agency Parcel: 421 N. 10® Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 - Block 68 N
Tax Parcel No. R1013004583

Lots 11 and 12 and the Easterly 40 feet of Lot 10, when measured parallel with the
line dividing Lots 10 and 11 in Block 68 of Boise City Original Townsite, according to
the official plat thereof, filed in Book 1 of Plats at Page 1, official records of Ada
County, Idaho.

FLOMELASIE QIS 1S 3IM

t
i

¥
.
A<
1
“

| By

26



Exhibit B

YMCA Exchange Property Legal Description

YMCA Parcel: 1111 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702— Block 69 N
Tax Parcel No. R1013004640

Lots 9 and 10 in Block 69 of Boise City Original Townsite, filed in Book 1 of Plats at
Page 1, records of Ada County, Idaho.

Less:

27

A parcel heing a portion of Lots 9 and 10 of Block 69 of Boise City Original Townsite, filed in Book
1 of Plats at Page 1, records of Ada County, Idaho, and located in the SW % of Section 3,
Township 3 North, Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, Ada County, Idahe, and more particularly
described as follows:

Commencing at a 5/8 inch diameter iron pin marking the northwesterly corner of Lot 7 of said
Block 89, from which a % inch diameter iron pin marking the northeasterly comner of said Lot 10
bears S 54°47'21" E a distance of 200.06 feet;

Thence § 35°13'23” W along the westerly boundary of said Lot 7 a distance of 122.02 feet to &
point marking the southwesterly comner of said Lot 7,

Thence 5 54°47°21" E along the southerly boundary of Lots 7 and 8 of said Block 69 a distance
of 100.04 feet to a point marking the southwesterly comer of said Lot 8 and the POINT OF
BEGINNING;

Thence N 35°13'18" E along the westerly boundary of said Lot 9 a distance of 2.00 feet to a point;
Thence leaving said westerly boundary S 54°47'21” E along a line being 2.00 feet northerly of
and paraliel to the southerly boundary of said Lots 9, and 10 a distance of 100.04 feetto a point
on the easterly boundary of said Lot 10;

Thence § 35°13'12" W along said easterly boundary a distance of 2.00 feet to a point marking
the southeasterly comer of said Lot 10;

Thence N 54°47'21" W along the southerly boundary of said Lots 9, and 10 a distance of 100.04
feot to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

This parcel containe 200 square feet (0.005 acres) and is subject to any eassments existing or in
use.



YMCA Parcel: 419 N. 11th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702- Block 69 N
Tax Parcel No. R1013004651

A portion of Lots 11 and 12, Block 69 of Boise City Original Townsite as filed in
Book 1 of Plats at Page 1, records of Ada County, Idaho, located in the SW 1/4 of
Section 3, Township 3 North Range 2 East, Boise Meridian, Boase. Ada County, idaho
more particularly descnbed as follows:

BEGINNING at the northerly most corner of said Lot 11;

Thence along the northeasterly boundary line of said Lots 11 and 12 South
54°48'05" East, 100.04 feet to the easterly most corner of said Lot 12;

Thence along the southeasterly boundary line of said Lot 12 South 35°12'20"
West, 120.02 feet; -

Thence leaving said southeasterly boundary line North 54°48'05" West, 100.05
feet a point on the northwesterly boundary line of said Lot 11;

Thence along said:northwesterly boundary line North 35°12'39" East, 120.03 feet
to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 12,008 square feet, more or less.

28



YMCA Parcel: 1177 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702— Block 69 N
Tax Parcel No. R1013004631

Lots 7 and 8 in Block 69 of Boise City Original Townsite, according to the official plat thereof,
filed in Book 1 of Plats at Page(s) 1, official records of Ada County, Idaho.

29



Exhibit C
Special Warranty Deed

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:

(Space Above For Recorder’s Use)

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

For the consideration received and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of
which is hereby acknowledged, [insert name of grantor} (“Grantor”), conveys and specially
warrants to [insert name of grantee], (“Grantee™), whose address is [insert grantee address], and
[his, her, its] successors and assigns forever the following described real property (the “Premises™):

[insert legal description]

SUBJECT TO taxes and assessments for the year [insert year] and all

subsequent years, those matters set forth on Exhibit _ , attached hereto
(“Permitted Exceptions™), all zoning laws and ordinances, and to any state of facts
an accurate survey or inspection of the Premises would show.

This conveyance shall include any and all estate, right, title, interest, appurtenances,
tenements, hereditaments, reversions, remainders, easements, rents, issues, profits, rights-of-way,
minerals, mineral rights, and water rights in anywise appertaining to the property herein described
as well in law as in equity.

The Grantor covenants to the Grantee that Grantor is the owner in fee simple of said
Premises; that the Premises are free from encumbrances created or suffered by the Grantor,
excepting those as may be herein set forth, and excepting the Permitted Exceptions, and that
Grantor will warrant and defend the same from all lawful claims of or through Grantor, but none
other.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has executed this instrument on this _day
of , 20

[Grantor’s Name]

30



STATE OF IDAHO )

) ss.
County of )
On this day of ,20__, before me R
personally appeared , known or identified to me (or proved to me
on the oath of ), to be the person whose name is subscribed

to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that [he/she/they] executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the
day and year in this certificate first above written.

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR IDAHO
Residing at
My Commission Expires

STATE OF IDAHO )

) ss.
County of )
On this day of ,20___, before me ,
personally appeared , known or identified to me (or proved to me on
the oath of ) to be the of

, the limited liability company that executed the instrument
or the person who executed the instrument on behalf of said limited liability company, and
acknowledged to me that such company executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the
day and year in this certificate first above written.

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR IDAHO
Residing at
My Commission Expires

31



STATE OF IDAHO )

) ss.
County of )

On this day of ,20  , before me ,
personally appeared , known or identified to me (or proved to me on the
oath of ) to be the president, or vice-president, or secretary
or assistant secretary, of , the corporation that executed the

instrument or the person who executed the instrument on behalf of said corporation, and
acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the
day and year in this certificate first above written.

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR IDAHO
Residing at
My Commission Expires

4883-7302-4814,v. 9

32



()
1] capmaL iy

BLANK PAGE



BOFTITET

AGENDA BILL

Agenda Subject: Date:
CONSIDER: Approve Resolution 1789 — Block 68 Catalytic October 10, 2022
Redevelopment Project, Block 69N Disposition and Development
Agreement
Staff Contact: Attachments:
Doug Woodruff, Development Director 1) Resolution 1789
Alexandra Monjar, Project Manager 2) Disposition and Development

Agreement
Action: Adopt Resolution 1789 to authorize the Agency Executive Director to execute the
Disposition and Development Agreement with Block 69 North Development LLC

Background:

CCDC published the Block 68 Catalytic Redevelopment Project Request for Proposals (RFP)
with the intent to catalyze the development of housing, improve and utilize downtown mobility
infrastructure, and spur economic development in the Westside District in May 2021. The RFP
offered two properties (421 North 10" Street and 1010 West Jefferson) along with participation
in public infrastructure and $10M to purchase a Mobility Hub. In exchange for its participation,
the Agency expected proposals to deliver 225 units of housing (with 155 units attainable for
Boise’s workforce), integrate and enhance mobility plans and infrastructure, utilize aspirational
architecture to improve the urban environment, and catalyze economic development.

In December 2021, the Board of Commissioners elected to advance negotiations with the
development team led by Edlen & Company and deChase Miksis. The resulting Agreement to
Negotiate Exclusively (ANE) with Block 68 Development LLC (Developer) was approved by the
Board on March 14, 2022, with a term of 180 days and possible extension of 60 days to
negotiate Disposition and Development Agreement (DDAs). The Agency granted a 30-day
extension on September 7, 2022, resulting in a deadline to execute DDAs of October 12, 2022.

The Agency and Developer plan to enter two DDAs — one for the Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility
Hub Project on 1010 W. Jefferson Street, or Block 68 South, and one for the Workforce Housing
Project involving the exchange of 421 N. 10" Street for YMCA-owned parcels on the north half
of the block bound by 11%/10™ Streets and Jefferson/State Streets, or Block 69 North.

To facilitate development of the Workforce Housing Project intended to deliver the attainable
housing required by CCDC’s RFP on Block 69 North, CCDC and the YMCA executed a Land
Exchange Agreement on July 7, 2022. The Agency Board will consider approval of an Amended
and Restated Land Exchange Agreement on October 10, 2022, upon which the Block 69 North
Workforce Housing Project DDA (Block 69N DDA) is premised.

The Project:
With the Mixed-Use Residential & Mobility Hub Project (the DDA for which will be presented to
the Board in December 2022), the Workforce Housing Project continues to be responsive to the



RFP. Consistent with the proposal, the Workforce Housing Project will include approximately
220 housing units, 10,000 square feet of ground-floor commercial space (currently anticipated to
house YMCA childcare facilities), and 45 on-site parking stalls. A minimum of 155 housing units
will be rent-restricted for 15 years after project completion; 25 of these will be rented for no more
than 30% of 80% of Area Median Income (AMI) and 130 will be rented for no more than 30% of
120% AMI; remaining units will be unrestricted.

The proposed project has been improved in response to the Board’s request to include more
rent-restricted two-bedroom units in the Project and now includes twice as many two-bedroom
units as the original proposal in each rent category (80% AMI, 120% AMI, and market rate) and
features a greater variety of unit types. This update supports the intention of the RFP to fulfill
unmet housing needs with an increased variety of housing types and price points available to
Boise’s workforce and their families.

Agency Participation:

Over the past nine months development costs drastically rose and threatened the feasibility of
the Workforce Housing Project. To enable the project to continue, the Agency and Developer
have negotiated to increase Agency participation in return for Developer’s income qualification
of residents of the rent-restricted units. Income qualification adds a layer of accountability and
oversight to ensure that rent-restricted units benefit the intended households. Additional support
was made possible in two ways, by:

1. Increasing the potential land discount from $3,125,000 (the value of 421 N. 10" Street)
to $4,461,000 (upon acquiring Block 69 North, CCDC would be legally capable of
discounting the land up to its total value of $6,730,000 but the Westside District budget
limits the total discount possible), and

2. Reducing the cost of development via an agreement to offer 65 monthly Block 68 South
Mobility Hub parking passes to residents of Block 69 North. This parking agreement
leverages the ParkBOI system to support the development of attainable housing,
ensuring the economic resilience and vitality of downtown Boise. This operational
decision saves the Workforce Housing Project over $3.5M. (The ParkBOI first-hour free
program is a precedent example of the Agency using its operation of parking system to
support downtown economic development.)

As contemplated in the RFP, the Agency plans to also reimburse Developer’s expenses
incurred constructing public improvements, which may include a portion of the Rebuild 11th
Street Blocks scope. To accomplish this, the Agency and Developer will enter a Type 4
Agreement no later than 180 days from the Effective Date of the Block 69N DDA, at which time
a more complete estimate of eligible expenses and the optimal arrangement for sharing scope
of Rebuild 11th Street Blocks will be determined. A form of the Type 4 Agreement is attached to
the Block 69N DDA and the Board’s approval of the DDA will be therefore considered as
fulfilling the Participation Program designation requirement.

Closing Conditions:

The DDA reflects the terms of the RFP, the proposal selected by the Board and subsequent
revisions to the Workforce Housing Project as described in the previous section. The Developer
and Agency will continue to work together through the development process to ensure design
advances in alignment with the RFP and proposal with review and approval by the Board and
Agency occurring throughout the design process.

Page 2



Conditions to close include the parties executing the Deed to the Property, Affordability Housing
Covenant, Type 4 Agreement, and the Agency approving of Developer’s Final Construction
Documents, and Developer delivering the balance of the Purchase Price and its construction
loan documents to escrow. The Block 69N DDA is additionally bound to the execution and
advancement of the Block 68 South Mixed-Use Residential & Mobility Hub DDA.

Next Steps:

The DDA’s performance requirements include review and approval of plans and documentation
submitted by the Developer at multiple stages of the design process. The Board of
Commissioners will review and approve of Unit Documentation and Schematic Design
Documents submitted by the Developer no later than 180 days from the Effective Date. These
documentation packages will include a final unit mix and affordability matrix, representative unit
layouts and minimum square footage, general representations of intended interior finishes,
Design Review documents, and a written summary of how the design continues to incorporate
mobility and sustainability initiatives identified in the RFP and selected proposal. As previously
described, the Board will also approve a final Type 4 Agreement which is anticipated to occur
with approval of the Unit Documentation and Schematic Design Documentation.

Following Board approval, the Developer will submit to the Agency any additional information
needed to perform a Reuse Appraisal. And additional review and approvals by the Agency
Executive Director will ensure that the project design progresses in alignment with the Board
approved documents and drawings. These checkpoints include a review of Design
Development and Final Construction Drawings and Documents as set forth in the DDA. If
substantial changes are made to the design, the Board may review the project again.

It is anticipated that Closing will occur in Fall/Winter 2023, no later than December 15, 2023,
with a construction period of 18-20 months. Upon project completion, and no later than March
30, 2026, the Developer will request a Purchase Price Adjustment to receive reimbursement for
the residual land value.

Fiscal Notes:

The agency anticipates and has sufficient funds for reimbursing the Developer for the residual
land value determined by a Reuse Appraisal, limited to $4,461,000. Upon completion of the
Workforce Housing Project, and no later than March 30, 2026, the Developer will submit a
Purchase Price Adjustment Request to the Agency. Once approved, the Agency will issue the
reimbursement within 30 days.

In its proposal, Developer estimated eligible expenses to be $1,640,000, which is programmed
in the Agency’s current Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan and may be adjusted upon
approval of the Type 4 Agreement as set forth in the Block 69N DDA.

Finalizing and executing the Disposition and Development Agreement involved Agency staff
time and legal counsel review.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends the Agency Board adopt Resolution 1789.

Page 3



Suggested Motion:

Adopt Resolution 1789 authorizing the Executive Director to execute the Disposition and
Development Agreement and all associated documents as required to implement the Agreement
for the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Project with Block 69 North Development LLC.

Page 4




RESOLUTION NO. 1789

BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY,
IDAHO:

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN
RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, APPROVING A DISPOSITION
AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AGENCY AND BLOCK 69
NORTH DEVELOPMENT LLC, AN IDAHO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY;
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR, VICE-CHAIR, OR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ANY NECESSARY DOCUMENTS,
SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONTINGENCIES; AUTHORIZING ANY TECHNICAL
CORRECTIONS TO THE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal
Agency of Boise City, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended and supplemented, Chapter
20, Title 50, Idaho Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and
supplemented, Chapter 29, Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and
functioning urban renewal agency for Boise City, ldaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”).

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Boise City, Idaho ("City"), after notice duly
published, conducted a public hearing on the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban
Renewal Project (the “Westside Plan”), and following said public hearing, the City adopted its
Ordinance No. 6108 on December 4, 2001, approving the Westside Plan and making certain
findings for the jurisdictional area of the Westside Plan Revenue Allocation Area; and,

WHEREAS, the City, after notice duly published, conducted a public hearing on the First
Amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Project (the “First
Amendment”), which amendment added area to the Westside Plan Revenue Allocation Area, and
following said public hearing, the City adopted its Ordinance No. 45-20 on December 1, 2020,
approving the First Amendment and making certain findings. The Westside Plan Revenue
Allocation Area, as amended, may be referred to herein as the “Project Area;” and,

WHEREAS, in order to achieve the objectives of the Westside Plan, the Agency is
authorized to acquire real property for the revitalization of areas within the Project Area; and,

WHEREAS, Agency owns certain real property addressed as 421 North 10th Street,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583), and real property addressed as 1010 West
Jefferson Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004553) (collectively, the “Agency
Parcels”); and,

WHEREAS, in accordance with ldaho Code Section 50-2011 Disposal of Property in
Urban Renewal Area, the Agency issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) on May 17, 2021,
seeking to initiate a catalytic redevelopment project to revitalize the Project Area in compliance
with the Westside Plan through redevelopment of the Agency Parcels which could also serve as
a catalyst for redevelopment of other properties in the vicinity; and,

RESOLUTION NO. 1789 -1



WHEREAS, following the publication of the RFP in the Idaho Statesman newspaper, and
review of the responses, Agency staff ranked the joint proposal from Edlen & Company, deChase
Miksis, Elton Companies, and YMCA first (the “Joint Proposal”); and,

WHEREAS, at a public meeting on December 13, 2021, the Agency Board discussed the
proposals and thereafter met with consensus regarding the proposed rankings and selected the
Joint Proposal; and,

WHEREAS, the Joint Proposal contemplated development beyond the Agency Parcels on
Block 68, and seeks to develop certain real property addressed as 1177 W. State Street, Boise,
Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004631), 1111 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No.
R1013004640) and 419 N. 11th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651), which
combined include approximately 0.831 acres and which parcels are currently owned by the
YMCA. The three YMCA parcels are located along the State Street corridor in an area referred
to as “Block 69 N.” (the “YMCA Parcels”); and,

WHEREAS, the Joint Proposal further contemplated the exchange of the Agency-owned
real property addressed as 421 North 10th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583)
(the “Agency Exchange Property”) for all or a portion of the YMCA Parcels to further support the
development on Block 69 N. of a 220 unit, 7-story mid-rise building, including active ground-floor
retail, parking, and workforce housing units, which unit mix shall be at or more affordable than i)
25 units at or below 80% AMI, ii) 130 units at or below 120% AMI, and iii) 65 market-rate units
(the “Workforce Housing Project”); and,

WHEREAS, a separate entity has been formed to undertake the development
contemplated in the Joint Proposal, specifically Block 68 Development LLC, an ldaho limited
liability company (the “Developer”); and,

WHEREAS, as authorized by Resolution No. 1755 passed by the Agency Board of
Commissioners on March 14, 2022, the Agency Executive Director executed the Agreement to
Negotiate Exclusively, effective as of March 14, 2022 (the “ANE”), which ANE contemplated the
negotiation of an agreement for the disposition of the Agency Parcels to Developer by Agency
and the development of the Agency Parcels by Developer; and,

WHEREAS, Agency and Developer commenced negotiating the terms of a disposition
and development agreement for each of the Agency Parcels, which for disposition of 421 N. 10th
Street, includes all or a portion of Block 69 N. obtained pursuant to the Exchange (defined below)
and, thus, complies with the required notice provisions concerning the disposition of property by
Agency as set forth in ldaho Code Section 50-2011; and,

WHEREAS, to determine value, the Agency Exchange Property and the YMCA Parcels
were appraised by Langston & Associates, Inc.; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency Board and YMCA Board determined that their best interests were
served by exchanging the real property for equal value as contemplated in the Joint Proposal.
The Agency and the YMCA entered into the Real Property Exchange Agreement, pursuant to
Resolution No. 1778, dated July 11, 2022, (the “Original Exchange Agreement”’) wherein the
Agency agreed to exchange the Agency Exchange Property, plus One Million Three Hundred
Thirty-Six Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,336,000.00) for the YMCA owned 0.551 acre of real
property addressed as 1111 West State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004640)
and 419 North 11th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651) in Ada County, Idaho.

RESOLUTION NO. 1789 -2



It was further contemplated by the parties that Developer would acquire 1177 W. State Street,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004631) directly from the YMCA; and,

WHEREAS, during continued negotiations with the Developer regarding the disposition
and development agreement by and between the Agency and the Developer for the disposition
and development of all or a portion of the YMCA Parcels to be obtained by the Agency pursuant
to the Original Exchange Agreement for the development of the Workforce Housing Project on
the YMCA Parcels (the “Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA” or “DDA”),
and in support of development coordination including facilitating consolidation of the YMCA
Parcels into a developable lot and allocation of the due diligence and title review responsibilities,
the parties determined it was in their best interests to amend the Original Exchange Agreement
to include all of the YMCA Parcels in the exchange, to address lot consolidation and to assign the
performance of due diligence and title review obligations set forth therein to the Developer; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to exchange its Agency Exchange Property for the YMCA
Parcels (the “YMCA Parcels” are now referred to as the “YMCA Exchange Property”), and the
YMCA desires to exchange the YMCA Exchange Property for the Agency Exchange Property
together with additional monetary consideration to make the exchange of equal value as more
particularly described herein (together, the “Exchange”); and,

WHEREAS, the authority of the Agency to convey the Agency Exchange Property
pursuant to the Exchange and the Amended and Restated Real Property Agreement complies
with Idaho Code Section 50-2011 as the disposition of the Agency Exchange Property is made
pursuant to a competitive selection process initiated by the Agency’s issuance of the RFP and by
the Agency’s selection of the Joint Proposal, which included the disposition by exchange of the
Agency Exchange Property with all or a portion of the YMCA Exchange Property, and therefore,
the Exchange is not deemed a separate and distinct conveyance, but rather part of the disposition
of 421 North 10th Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583) to effectuate the
development contemplated in the Joint Proposal; and,

WHEREAS, the parties agree the YMCA Exchange Property’s fair market value is greater
than the Agency Exchange Property, and therefore, the Agency intends to exchange the Agency
Exchange Property, plus Three Million Six Hundred Five Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
($3,605,000.00) (the “Additional Funds”) so that the Exchange value will be equal; and,

WHEREAS, as described above certain conditions and circumstances have changed
since the Original Exchange Agreement was entered into on July 11, 2022, necessitating entering
into the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement, which repeals, replaces,
and supersedes the Original Exchange Agreement; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency and YMCA desire to accomplish the Exchange, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange Agreement. After
the closing of the Exchange, the Agency will be the owner in fee simple of the YMCA Exchange
Property, and YMCA will be the owner in fee simple of the Agency Exchange Property; and,

WHEREAS, following negotiations over the terms between Agency staff and Developer,
in compliance with the Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively, Developer has provided the Agency
with a proposed final Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, a copy of
which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein as if set forth in full; and,

RESOLUTION NO. 1789 -3



WHEREAS, Agency staff and Developer are continuing to negotiate the terms of the
disposition and development agreement for the Agency owned parcel located at 1010 West
Jefferson Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004553); and,

WHEREAS, Agency staff recommends approval of the Block 69 North Workforce Housing
Development Project DDA by the Agency Board of Commissioners; and,

WHEREAS, the Agency Board of Commissioners finds it in the best public interest to
approve the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA and to authorize the
Agency Executive Director to execute the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development
Project DDA, subject to certain conditions, and to execute all necessary documents to implement
the transaction, subject to the conditions set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct.

Section 2: That the Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project DDA, a
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein as if set out in full, is hereby
approved as to both form and content.

Section 3: That the Agency Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign and enter
into the DDA and, further, is hereby authorized to execute all necessary documents required to
implement the actions contemplated by the DDA, subject to representations by Agency legal
counsel that all conditions precedent to such actions and any necessary technical changes to the
DDA or other documents are acceptable and that said changes are consistent with the provisions
of the DDA and the comments and discussions received at the October 10, 2022, Agency Board
meeting.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
adoption and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, on October
10, 2022. Signed by the Chair of the Agency Board of Commissioners and attested by the
Secretary to the Agency Board of Commissioners on October 10, 2022.

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY

By:

Latonia Haney Keith, Chair
ATTEST:

By:

Lauren McLean, Secretary
4874-7834-6037, v. 1

RESOLUTION NO. 1789 -4



DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, also known as
CAPITAL CITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
&

BLOCK 69 NORTH DEVELOPMENT LLC
an Idaho Limited Liability Company

October , 2022

Disposition:
421 N. 10t Street

Development:
Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project
1111 W. State Street, 1177 W. State Street, and 419 N. 11" Street



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 Depiction of Block 69 North Workforce Housing Development Project Site
Attachment 2 Legal Description of the Property (“Legal Description”)
Attachment 3 Schedule of Performance

Attachment 4 [RESERVED]

Attachment 5 Title Reports

Attachment 6 Joint Proposal

Attachment 7 Form of Deed

Attachment 8 Form of Memorandum

Attachment 9 Certificate of Completion

Attachment 10 Green Building Certification

Attachment 11 Form of Affordable Housing Covenant

Attachment 12 Form of Annual Rent Report

Attachment 13 Form of Escrow Instruction Letter

Attachment 14 Form of Type 4 Capital Improvement and General Assistance

Reimbursement Agreement



TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS ....ciiiieeiiiiiiiiiiiennnnesisinsiinesssssssssssssimesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssnns 1
SUBJECT OF AGREEMENT .....cccuuuiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnssiiiiniinensssssssssssnsnmmessssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssssnns 7
2.1.  Purpose of ThisS AGre@MENT ........ceeeiiiiie i eceee et e e s e e e e erae e e e enraeeeeans 7
2.1.1. Project Background and Determination of Sit€........ccccceeevcviveeieiiieeeeenneen. 7
2.2,  The Redevelopment Plan ... ..ttt e e e e nrrree e e e e e e 9
2.3, The PrOJECE ArBa....uuiiiieieiiieeeceiieee et ettt e et e e e st e e e s s aae e e s s sbaeeeesabaeessnnssaeesenns 9
2.4,  Parties tO ThisS ABrEEMENT ...cccuiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e sbae e e s earaeeeenns 9
24,0, ABONCY e e e e a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ens 9
D S B 0 11V (o o 1= S SRR 9
2.4.3. Developer’s General CoNtactor ......cceveieciieeeiiiieeesciiee e ceree e 9
D28 TR I V=T o o Lot PSPPSR 10
2.6.  Disposition Does Not Contemplate Land Speculation........ccccceevciieeiinciieeecninenn. 11
2.7.  Selection Of DEVEIOPET .......cui ettt et e e e s e e e aaae e e e saaeee s 11
RIGHT OF ENTRY/REVIEW OF TITLE .......ccceeeeerrererrresnnnnnnsnsnsnsnsssssssnsssssssssnsnsnsnsssnnnnnes 13
3.1 Right of Entry; Developer's Investigations.........ccccceveeiieeeinciiie e 13
3.2 Review of Title; Approved Title EXCEPLIONS ..cccvvvviieiiciiieeecieee e 15
33 ComPliaNCe WIth LAWS ...eeiiieiiiieieciiiee ettt vae e s eaae e e e 16
34 LT aTo] 11 o o TSR SPP 16
EVIDENCE OF PROJECT FINANCING AND UNIT MIX, AFFORDABILITY AND PROJECT
RENTAL REQUIREMENTS.....cccceuuuuiiiiinniinnmennnssisissnnmmmensssssssssssssmsssssnsssssssssssssssssssssssses 17
4.1.  Submission of Preliminary Evidence of Financing ........ccccceeeeeevecciiieeeee e, 17
4.2. Time to Approve Preliminary Evidence of Financing.......cccccceeveeccvivieeeeeeiecccnnee, 17
4.3, PUDIIC RECOIAS LAW ...eeeiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e s e s s 18
4.4. Lender Modifications and AssSigNMeENt .........ccceeveeiieiiciiiieiee e 18
R 1T o To [T PP PP PPPPRRRPPPRPRI 18
4.4.2. Requested Provisions of Any MOrtgage .....cccccceeeeeiecciiiieeee e, 18
4.4.3. Application of Agreement to Lender’s Remedies......cccccceeeeeeeeeccnvvvennnnnnn. 19
4.4.4. Accommodate Of LENAErS .....ccoiviiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieee e 19
4.4.5. Assignment for Security PUrPOSES ....ccoovvcciiiiiiiee ettt 19
4.5.  Submission of Unit DOcumMEeNtation........ccooviieiiiiiiieiiniiec e 19
REUSE APPRAISAL ....cuutiiiiiiiiitennnesiiiiiiiitessssssssssssmimsssssssssssssssmsssssnsssssssssssssssssnssssssss 21
T D S TU LYY o o] =1 1Y- | U 21
5.2, Reuse Appraisal Data.......cccueiieiii ittt e 22
DISPOSITION AND CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY ....ccccceiiiiiiiinnmnnnnnsscnnnnnnnennnnssssaes 23
6.1. Disposition and Conveyance of the Property ......cccccccveeeeeiecciineeeeeeee e, 23
6.1.1. PUICNASE PriCe..ciieiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt 23
6.1.2. Payment of PUrChase PriCE ....uuuiiiiiiiiieiiieeeiee et e e e e e 23
5.2, ESCIOW ceiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee ettt e e e et e e e e e s e st e e e e e e s e r e e e e e e e e e e e a e nnrreneeeeens 24
6.2.1. PaymMENt Of COSES .uvviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee ettt ee et e e e e e e e sesaasrreeeeeeeesenanns 24
£.2.2. ClOSE Of ESCIOW ...uveeiiiiiiiiiieeiiie ettt ettt et s e s s 24
6.2.3. Deliveries DY ABENCY ...cooivciiiieeiee et e e e e e eans 25



10.

11.

6.2.4. Deliveries by DEVEIOPET ...t e e e 25

6.2.5. [RESERVED] ....etiiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e s e s aaee s 26
I ST =1 4 1 0| I A o] o PO 26
6.2.7. Amendment to Escrow Instruction Letter.......cccovvvieeieiiiiiicciiieeee s 26
6.2.8. No Real Estate COmmIisSiONS OF FEES......uuvieiiiiieiiiiiiiee e e e 26
6.3.  Conditions to Property Transfer ... iecciiee e e 27
6.3.1. Conditions to Agency’s ObligatioNns .........cccceeeeciieeecciieee e 27
6.3.2. Conditions to Developer’s Obligations ........ccccecvveiiiviiiee i 29
6.4.  Satisfaction of CONAItIONS .....ccvviiiiiiiiiii e 30
R T VLV Y= PSPPSRt 30
T =1 o 0 01 =14 o o PSP UPPPRPNt 31
CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY ....citeuuiiiiinnnniiiiiennisiiesnsisnisenssssmssssssissssssssssssssssssnsses 31
2% P X (PR 31
7.2.  Agency Representations ... 32
7.3.  Environmental Release and WaiVer........ccccccvuieiiciiiee i 32
DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY ....cuciuiiiiiiiieiieiiniiniiencienianioniecsssisnsssessssssassansasssnss 32
8.1.  Scope Of DEVEIOPMENT ... i 32
8.2. Local, State, and Federal LaWS .........coooovviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 32
8.3.  Antidiscrimination During CONStruCtion .........ccceecuiieiiiiiiee e 33
8.4.  ACKNOWIEAZEMENT ... et e e e 33
8.5.  Schematic Design DocumMENTAtioN . .......uiiieeciiiiei e 33
8.5.1. Schematic Design Drawings and Schematic Design Documents.............. 33
8.6.  Design Development DraWingsS...cccccccccuviieeieeeeeccciieree e e e eecrre e e e s e e e sneraneeee e 36
8.7.  Final Construction DOCUMENTS......cccieiciiiiieiee et e e e enarere e e 36
8.8.  Agency Approval of Plans, Drawings, and Related Documents..........ccccccvvveeeene.n. 37
8.9. CommuNICAtioN; REVISIONS.....uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt r et e e eae e eees 38
8.10. Prompt REVIEW ...cciiiiiiiii 38
8.11. Substantial Changes to DraWingsS.......ccccuiierieiiieccciiereee e eevrrereee e 38
8.12. Construction REPOItING...cccoviiiiiiiiiii e 39
8.12.1. Developer’'s Obligations........cueeeeiiii e 40
8.12.2. Agency’s ObligatioNS.....ccccciiiiiiiee e 40
8.12.3. Meeting AtteNdaNnCE ....cccoeeeeeeeee e 41
8.12.4. Access to the Property........eeiviieeeiie et 41
8.12.5. REASONADIENESS....uviiieieeeie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 41
8.12.6. Cost Of CONSLIUCLION c.oeeeeiiiiieeee e e 42
INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION ....cccivuiiiinniiieniiineieienisisssssssssiesssssssssrssssssssssssns 42
9.1. Bodily Injury, Property Damage, and Workers’ Compensation Insurance........... 42
9.2.  Indemnification BY DEVEIOPET .....ccooiiceirieeeiee ettt e e eenrreeee e 44
POST PROJECT COMPLETION PURCHASE PRICE ADJUSTMENT .....cccotvuniiinnncienencrencannns 45
10.1. Certificate of COMPIELION.....ciiiii it e e 45
10.2.  Adjusted PUICHASE PriCE wuuueiiiiiiiieiiieeeee ettt e et e e e e e e seanraeeeeeeeesennns 45
10.3. Request for the Purchase Price Adjustment.......ccccveeeieeiiiiireeeeeee et e e 45
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AND GENERAL ASSISTANCE REIMBURSEMENT................... 47



12.

13.

14.

15.

11.1. Type 4 Capital Improvement and General Assistance Reimbursement

ABIEEIMENT ..ot e e e e e et s e s e e e e e eet s s s e e e eeeerearaaasseeeeanaensnannssees 47
DEVELOPER’S POST-DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION OBLIGATIONS .........cccccuee.. 48
12,1, [RESERVED] ..uetiiiiiiieiiee ettt ettt ettt ettt st e st e s baeesateesnneeennee 48
12.2. [RESERVED] ...utiiiiiieiiieecitte ettt sttt ettt ettt st e st e s ase e sbaeesateesnneesnaee 48
12.3. [RESERVED] ..uutiiiiiiiiiteeeitee ettt ettt st e s e st esbaeesabeesnneesnnee 48
12,4, [RESERVED] ...utiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt ettt s e s e s e e e sbaeesbeeesnneesnnee 48
12.5. Use of the Property During Term of the Redevelopment Plan ........ccccccevvvveeennns 48
12.6. Obligation to Refrain from Discrimination ........cccceecveeiiriiiieeiniiieee e 48
12.7. Effect and Duration of COVENANTS.......cooviiiiiiiiiiie e 49
12.8. Provisions That Run with the Land ........ccceeiviiiiiiiiiiie e 49
12.9. Affordable Housing Covenant ComplianCe........cccoecuiieeiriiieeiiiiiiee e eeieee e 49
DEFAULTS, REMEDIES, AND TERMINATION......cccoiciiiiieirninnienieiienianiniecssissiancsscsens 50
13.1.  DefaultsS—GENEIAl...cccii ettt e e s aaa e e e 50
13.2.  Written NOtICE @Nd CUIE..cciiueiieeeciiee ettt ettt et e e s e e e s arae e e s enaaeeeenns 50
13,3, NO WaI T e n et s bnbnbnbnnannnnnnnnnes 50
13.4. Materiality Of ProViSIONS ....cccuviiiiiiiiee et ae e e 50
T T =Y - 1o d o L3PPSR 51

13.5.1. Institution of Legal ACtIONS ......coevvciiiiiiiiiee e 51

13.5.2. ApPlICabIE LAW ...t 51

13.5.3. Acceptance of Service of ProCess .....ccccocveeveiciieeeinciiie e 51

13.5.4. Rights and REMEAIES......uuuireieeiieiieeeee e e 51

13.5.5. Specific PErformManCe ........uueeei i 51

13.5.6. Limitation on Agency’s Remedies Prior to Developer’s Acquisition of the

[ o] o1=T o 0V PP PP PP PPPPPPTPPIRE 52
13.6. Remedies and Rights of Termination Prior to Conveyance of the Property

R R D1V ] (o o 1T oS 52

13.6.1. Termination for Cause by DeVveloper......cccoccciiiieieee e 52

13.6.2. Termination for Cause by AENCY .....uuiieieriieiciiiiieeee e 53
GENERAL PROVISIONS.....ccvuuuueiiiiiiinnnnmnnsssssisniimmeessssssssssssismsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns 54
14.1. No Assignment of RIGES....coivii i 54
14.2. Notices, Demands, and Communications Between the Parties........cccccccuuvunnnnn.n. 54
14.3.  CoNflicts Of INTEIESt..cciciiiieieiiee e s re e 55
14.4. Warranty Against Payment of Consideration for Agreement ..........ccccccvveeeeennnes 55
14.5. Non-liability of Agency Officials and EMPIOYEES ......ccoeeuerriiiiieeeiieecieieeeee e, 55
14.6. Forced Delay; Extension of Times of Performance.........ccooveeeeeeieiieciirveeeeeeeeenenns 55
14.7. Inspection of BOOKS and RECOIAS......uvueiiieiiiiiiiiiieeieeeee et eeeeeirreee e e e e e eeeans 56
14.8. Reports, StUAIES @Nd TESE vuuviiiiiiieciiieeieiee ettt e et r e e e e e e seenrreeeeeeeeeeennns 56
e TR AN o] g a =LY A oYY 56
SPECIAL PROVISIONS ......ccttuuuuiiiiiiiiinnnnnnssssissiinmessssssssssssssimmssssssssssssssssnsssnsssssssssssnns 57
15.1. Amendment of Redevelopment Plan .........ooocviveeieiiiiiciciiieeeeeec et 57
15.2. Submission of Documents for APProval ......cccccvveeeeiieiieciiiiieeeeeee e 57
15.3.  ComMPULAtioN Of TiME ...uuuiiiiiieeieeieiiieeeee e e e e et e e e e e e e seeaaraeeeeeeessennnns 58



15.4.
15.5.
15.6.
15.7.
15.8.
15.9.
15.10.
15.11.
15.12.

NoO Third-Party BenefiCiary.......ccoeeeeciieiecee et 58

D YT o T0 L d <IN 2= o1 [V o] o U 58
[RESERVED] ..etiiitiieetie ettt ettt sttt st ste e s st e st e s sabe e e nabeesnaseesareesnnneas 58
Entire Agreement, Waivers, and Amendments........cccovveeeeeeiiieciciieieeee e eeccene 58
Effective Date of AGreement .......ooociiiei i e e 58
Anti-Boycott Against Israel Certification.........cccceeeeeciieiiiiiiieeee e 59
Use of GEothermal RESOUICE .......uiiviiiiiiiieciiectte et 59
[y o] o] o 1=l M O=] o ) T oF= 1 o TSR SPR 59
GOOd Faith CoOOPEratioN.....cccuviiiieiiiee e e s s ee e 59



DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS DISPOSITION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into by
and between THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF BOISE CITY, IDAHO, also known as CAPITAL CITY
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION and BLOCK 69 NORTH DEVELOPMENT LLC, an Idaho limited
liability company (“Developer”), individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively referred to
as the “Parties.” The Parties agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

“11t Street Bikeway & Streetscape Capital Improvements Project” or “Rebuild 11t Street” means
the Agency’s capital improvement project for the 11t Street public right-of-way between State
Street and River Street, also known as Rebuild 11t Street, in partnership with the City of Boise
and the Ada County Highway District, to construct the full ridge-to-rivers bicycle connection on
11t Street, together with streetscape improvements, fiber optic conduit installation and
pavement maintenance, as further described in Section 11 and Attachment 14.

“Access Agreements” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.1.

“Adjusted Purchase Price” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 10.2.

“Affordable Housing Covenant” means the affordable housing covenant in the substance and
form attached hereto as Attachment 11.

“Agency” means The Urban Renewal Agency of Boise City, Idaho, also known as Capital City
Development Corporation, an independent public body, corporate and politic, organized under
the laws of the state of Idaho, and any assignee of or successor to its rights, powers, and
responsibilities under this Agreement.

“Agency Board” or “Board” means the Board of Commissioners of the Agency.

“Agency Closing Conditions” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.3.1.

“Agency Exchange Parcel” has that meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.1.

“"

Agreement” has the meaning ascribed to it in the first paragraph of this document.

“Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively” or “ANE” means the Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively
executed by the Agency on March 14, 2022, and by Block 68 Development LLC, on March 8, 2022,
prior to identifying the Developer for the Project, and as may be amended.




“AMI” means the then current “Area Median Income” adjusted by family size annually published
by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) for the geographic area referred
to as Boise City, ID HUD Metro Statistical Area Rent (MSA) Area (or its successor index).

“Annual Rent Report” means the annual rent report in the substance and form of the draft annual
rent report attached hereto as Attachment 12.

“Certificate of Completion” means the Certificate of Completion for the Project, as ascribed to it
in Section 10.1 and in the substance and form of the draft certificate of completion attached to
this Agreement as Attachment 9.

“City” or “City of Boise” means the City of Boise, Idaho.

“Close” and “Closing” refer to that point in time when a deed held in Escrow is recorded in the
office of the Recorder of the county in which the subject property is located and funds due to
Agency upon delivery of the deed are available for distribution from the Escrow to Agency,
notwithstanding that such funds may not actually be distributed due to wire transfer deadlines
or similar circumstances.

“Closing Date” means the date of the Closing.

“Deed” means the Special Warranty Deed.

“Deposit” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.1.2.

“Design Development Drawings” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 8.6.

“Developer” means Block 69 North Development LLC, an Idaho limited liability company, any
Developer Affiliate that takes title to any portion of the Property under this Agreement, and any
other permitted assignee or successor in interest as herein provided.

“Developer Affiliate” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.4.2.

“Developer Closing Conditions” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.3.2.

“Due Diligence Period” has the meaning set of in the Land Exchange Agreement.

“Effective Date” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 15.8.

“Environmental Reports” means the Phase | Environmental Site Assessments, to be prepared by
Atlas Technical Consultants LLC for 1111 W. State Street, 1177 W. State Street, and 419 N. 11t
Street.




“Escrow” means the escrow set up by the Parties with the Escrow Agent with respect to the
acquisition of the Property.

“Escrow Agent” “Title Company” means TitleOne Corporation, having an address of 1101 W.
River St., Suite 201, Boise, Idaho 83702.

“Escrow Instruction Letter” means the joint escrow instructions for the Escrow signed by the
Parties in the substance and form of the draft Escrow Instruction Letter attached hereto as
Attachment 13.

“Executive Director” means the current Executive Director of the Agency.

“Final Construction Documents” means the full stamped set of construction documents
submitted for approval by the City’s Planning and Development Services Building Division for
issuance of a building permit for the Project, including but not limited to site improvements, and
a landscaping and grading plan.

“Form of Type 4 Capital Improvement and General Assistance Reimbursement Agreement” or
“Type 4 Agreement” means the certain agreement to be entered into on or before Closing by and
between Agency and Developer regarding construction and/or reimbursement of certain public
infrastructure improvements related to certain Public Project Improvements and the Rebuild 11t
Street project, as further described in Section 11 and Attachment 14.

“Green Building Certification” means the Green Building Certification executed by J. Dean Papé,
on behalf of the Joint Proposal, on July 3, 2021, attached hereto as Attachment 10.

“Green Building Code” means the Boise City Green Construction Code, Boise City Code, Title 9,
Chapter 13, as amended, in place as of the date of the Green Building Certification.

“Hazardous Materials” means any substance, material, or waste which is (1) defined as a
“hazardous waste,” “hazardous material,” “hazardous substance,” “extremely hazardous waste,”
or “restricted hazardous waste” under any provision of federal or Idaho law; (2) petroleum;
(3) asbestos; (4) polychlorinated biphenyls; (5) radioactive materials; (6) designated as a
“hazardous substance” pursuant to Section 311 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251, et seq.
(33 U.S.C. § 1321), or listed pursuant to Section 307 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1317);
(7) defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act,
42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq. (42 U.S.C. § 6903); (8) defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to
Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act,
42 US.C. §9601, etseqg. (42 US.C. §9601); or (9) determined by Idaho, federal, or local
governmental authority to be capable of posing a risk of injury to health, safety, or property,
including underground storage tanks.




“Joint Proposal” means the response to the Agency’s Block 68 Request for Proposal (the "RFP"),
dated August 19, 2021, submitted by Edlen & Company, deChase Miksis, Elton Companies, as
predecessor in interest to Developer, and YMCA.

“Local Project Manager” means the designated contacts for the Developer, specifically, J. Dean
Papé, deChase Miksis, and Jill Sherman, Edlen & Company.

“Land Exchange” means the exchange of Agency-owned real property addressed as 421 N. 10t
Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583) for YMCA-owned real property addressed
as 1111 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651), 1177 W. State Street,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel # R1013004631) and 419 N. 11t Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel
No. R1013004640), as contemplated in the Joint Proposal and as memorialized in the Land
Exchange Agreement, by and between the Agency and YMCA.

“Land Exchange Agreement” means the Amended and Restated Real Property Exchange
Agreement, by and between the Agency and YMCA, dated even date herewith, memorializing
the Land Exchange as contemplated in the Joint Proposal, plus additional funds.

“Lender” has the meaning ascribed to it in in Section 4.4.1.

“Lot Consolidation” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.1.

“Manager” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.7.

“Market Rate Units” means approximately sixty-five (65) units and part of the total Project units
rented at rates established by Developer, and not subject to any rent or income restrictions for
occupancy.

“Memorandum” means a summary of this Agreement in the substance and form attached hereto
as Attachment 8, to be recorded in the office of the Recorder of Ada County, Idaho.

“Mortgage” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.4.

“Parking Agreement” means the parking agreement described in Section 2.5.

“Party” has the meaning ascribed to it in the first paragraph of this Agreement.
“Parties” has the meaning ascribed to it in the first paragraph of this Agreement

“Permitted Title Exceptions” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.3.2(c).

“Permitted Transfer” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.7.




“Permitted Transferee” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.7.

“Plan Area” means the area under the jurisdictional scope of the Redevelopment Plan.

“Project” means the project that is the subject of this Agreement and more particularly described
in Section 2.5.

“Project Area” means the Project Area identified in the Redevelopment Plan.

“Project Budget” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.1(a).

“Property”, “Site” and “Block 69 N” means the real property as shown on Attachment 1 and
legally described on Attachment 2.

“Public Project Improvements” means the certain public infrastructure improvements in or
adjacent to, or being relocated to, the public right-of-way adjacent to the Site, and subject to a
Type 4 Capital Improvement and General Assistance Reimbursement Agreement to be entered
into by and between Agency and Developer regarding reimbursement of the actual eligible costs
of certain public infrastructure improvements as further described in Section 11 and Attachment
14.

“Purchase Price” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.1.1.

“Purchase Price Adjustment Request” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 10.3.

“Redevelopment Plan” means the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban Renewal
Project as recommended by Agency and approved by City on December 4, 2001, by City Council
Ordinance No. 6108, and as subsequently amended to add area pursuant to the First Amendment
to the Urban Renewal Plan, Westside Downtown Urban Renewal Project, as recommended by
Agency and approved by City on December 1, 2020, by City Council Ordinance No. ORD-45-20.

“Reuse Appraisal” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1.

“Reuse Appraiser” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1.

“Reuse Appraisal Data” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.2.

“Schedule of Performance” means the schedule attached to this Agreement as Attachment 3.

“Schematic Design Documents” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 8.5.1, including any
approved revisions.




“Schematic Design Drawings” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 8.5.1, including any
approved revisions.

“Scope of Development” means Developer’s preliminary concepts for the development of the
Project included in the Joint Proposal.

“Special Warranty Deed” means a deed in the substance and form of the draft deed attached
hereto as Attachment 7.

“Supplemental Title Objections” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.2.

“Title Company” means TitleOne Corporation, having an address of 1101 W. River St., Suite 201,
Boise, Idaho 83702.

“Title Objections” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.2.

“Title Policy” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.3.2(c).

o

Title Report” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.2 and as attached to this Agreement as
Attachment 5.

“Title Review Period” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.2.

“Unit Documentation” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.5.

“Urban Renewal Law” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.4.1.

“Workforce Housing” means housing that is rent restricted and income qualified, with unit rents
that are set at rent payment of not more than 30% of 80% or 120% AMI. Rental limits are
determined using the Novogradac Rent & Income Calculator, published by Novogradac &
Company LLC: www.novoco.com/products/rentincome.php, applying those filters set forth on
Attachment 12, or if not available, a similar calculator as may be agreed to by the Parties. Rent
increases on an existing tenant may occur no more frequently than annually and are capped at
5% per year. Rent does not include deposits, utilities (gas, telephone, internet, water, electricity),
late fees, pet fees, parking fees, sewer and trash collection services, or other reasonable fees and
costs as typically charged back to the tenant. The AMI calculation is to be based on an assumed
family size of 1.5 persons per bedroom or in the case of an efficiency unit (referred to in this
Project asa micro studio unit or studio unit) 1 person per bedroom.

"YMCA” means the Young Men’s Christian Association of Boise City, Idaho, an Idaho non-profit
corporation.


http://www.novoco.com/products/rentincome.php

2. SUBJECT OF AGREEMENT

2.1. Purpose of This Agreement

The purpose of this Agreement is to effectuate the Redevelopment Plan by memorializing
the disposition of Agency owned property, 421 N. 10t Street (the “Agency Exchange Parcel”)
pursuant to the Land Exchange as contemplated in the Joint Proposal and to facilitate the
disposition of the Property to Developer for the Project located on the Site for construction of a
mixed-use, multifamily development within the Plan Area.

2.1.1. Project Background and Determination of Site

Agency owns certain real property addressed as 421 North 10th Street, Boise, Idaho
83702 (Parcel No. R1013004583), and real property addressed as 1010 West Jefferson Street?,
Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004553) (collectively, the “Agency Development Parcels”).
In accordance with Idaho Code Section 50-2011 Disposal of Property in Urban Renewal Area, the
Agency issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) on May 17, 2021, seeking to initiate a catalytic
redevelopment project to revitalize the Project Area in compliance with the Plan through
redevelopment of the Agency Development Parcels which could also serve as a catalyst for
redevelopment of other properties in the vicinity.

Following the publication of the RFP in the Idaho Statesman on May 17, May 24, May 31,
and June 7, 2021, the Agency received three (3) proposals for development of the Agency
Development Parcels by the August 19, 2021, RFP deadline. A review committee including Agency
staff and three (3) Commissioners analyzed the proposals, interviewed the development team,
and provided findings of fact and comments to Agency staff sufficient for Agency staff to prepare
a ranking of the proposals for Agency Board consideration. Agency staff ranked the Joint Proposal
first.

At a public meeting on December 13, 2021, the Agency Board discussed the proposals
and thereafter met with consensus regarding the proposed rankings and selected the Joint
Proposal.

The Joint Proposal contemplated development beyond the Agency Development Parcels
on Block 68, and seeks to develop certain real property addressed as 1177 W. State Street, Boise,
Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004631), 1111 W. State Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No.
R1013004640) and 419 N. 11t Street, Boise, Idaho 83702 (Parcel No. R1013004651), which
parcels are currently owned by the YMCA. The three YMCA parcels are located along the State
Street corridor in an area referred to as “Block 69 N.” (the “YMCA Parcels”). The Joint Proposal

1t is anticipated 1010 W. Jefferson Street will be conveyed pursuant to the terms of the Block 68 South Disposition
and Development Agreement for the development of the Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility Hub Project as proposed in
the Joint Proposal.



further contemplated the exchange of the Agency Exchange Parcel to the YMCA for all or a
portion of the YMCA Parcels to further support the development of the Project.

Thereafter, a separate entity was formed to commence development activities
contemplated in the Joint Proposal, specifically Block 68 Development LLC, an Idaho limited
liability company. The Agency and Block 68 Development LLC entered into the ANE that outlined
the process for disposing of the Agency Development Parcels, including the Land Exchange.

Agency entered into the Land Exchange Agreement, wherein the Agency agreed to
exchange the Agency Exchange Parcel for the YMCA Parcels plus additional monetary
consideration.

The Land Exchange Agreement was entered into for the Land Exchange and in support of
development coordination of the Project including facilitating consolidation of the YMCA Parcels
into a developable lot and allocation of the due diligence and title review responsibilities as
further described therein.

Pursuant to the Land Exchange Agreement, it is anticipated the YMCA will undertake to
consolidate the YMCA Parcels into one legal lot prior to consummation of the Land Exchange all
as further described in the Land Exchange Agreement (the “Lot Consolidation”). The
consolidated legal lot shall remain to be referred to as the Property upon a recorded record of
survey consolidating the YMCA Parcels.

This Agreement is premised upon the exchange of the Agency Exchange Parcel for the
Property pursuant to the Land Exchange Agreement, and subsequent disposition of the Property
to Developer, and, thus complies with the required notice provisions concerning the disposition
of property by Agency as set forth in Idaho Code Section 50-2011.

The authority of the Agency to convey the Agency Exchange Parcel pursuant to the Land
Exchange Agreement, and this Agreement complies with Idaho Code Section 50-2011 as the
disposition of the Property is made pursuant to a competitive selection process initiated by the
Agency’s issuance of the RFP and by the Agency’s selection of the Joint Proposal, which included
the disposition by exchange of the Agency Exchange Parcel with the Property as set forth in the
Land Exchange Agreement, and therefore, the Land Exchange is not deemed a separate and
distinct conveyance, but rather part of the disposition of Agency Exchange Parcel and the
Property to effectuate the development contemplated in the Joint Proposal.

After the closing of the Land Exchange, the Agency will be the owner in fee simple of the
Property, and YMCA will be the owner in fee simple of the Agency Exchange Parcel.

Subject to approval by Agency and Developer that the closing conditions under the Land
Exchange Agreement have been satisfied, the Land Exchange may have a closing date earlier than

the conveyance of the Property to the Developer pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth

8



in this Agreement; otherwise, the closing under the Land Exchange and this Agreement may be
contemporaneous and would close in the following order: (i) Agency will acquire the consolidated
Property pursuant to the Land Exchange; and (ii) Agency will dispose of the Property to Developer
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement for the development of the Project.

2.2. The Redevelopment Plan

This Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Redevelopment Plan.

2.3. The Project Area

The Project Area is located in the Plan Area, and the exact boundaries thereof are
specifically described in the Redevelopment Plan.

2.4. Parties to This Agreement

24.1. Agency

Agency is an independent public body, corporate and politic, exercising governmental
functions and powers and organized and existing under the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965,
title 50, chapter 20, Idaho Code, as amended and the Local Economic Development Act, title 50,
chapter 29, Idaho Code, as amended (collectively the “Urban Renewal Law”). The Agency’s office
is located at 121 N. 9t Street, Ste. 501, Boise, Idaho.

2.4.2. Developer

Developer is Block 69 Development LLC, an Idaho limited liability company. The principal
office of Developer is located at 1199 West Shoreline Drive, Suite 290, Boise, Idaho 83702.
Developer reserves the right pursuant to Section 2.7 to transfer its rights under this Agreement
as authorized herein, including the right to have the Property to which it is to take title hereunder
conveyed to and developed by an affiliated entity that Developer (or the current managers of
Developer) controls (“Developer Affiliate”).

2.4.3. Developer’s General Contactor

Developer has selected McAlvain Companies, Inc. and Andersen Construction, who have
entered into a joint venture to be the general contractor on the Project (the “General
Contractor”). The qualifications and identity of Developer’s general contractors are of particular
concern to Agency. In the event Developer desires to select another general contractor for the
Project other than the contractors identified in materials supplied to the Agency by Developer,
Developer agrees to notify Agency of such desire and provide the identity of the substitute
general contractor for Agency’s written approval, provided, Agency’s consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed for any transfer to a substitute general

9



contractor who has the same or better net worth as the original general contractor and
experience with construction of projects similar to the Project.

2.5. The Project

The Project that is the subject of this Agreement includes, in part, the proposed
development on the Site, of a 7-story mid-rise building with approximately 220 housing units,
including active ground-floor uses, Market Rate Units and 155 Workforce Housing units, and
parking for the benefit of the housing units, also, collectively, the Project may be referred to as
the Workforce Housing Project. The Project will include 155 units of Workforce Housing and the
remaining units will be Market Rates Units. The unit and affordability mix of the Workforce
Housing Project are generally guided by the RFP, the Joint Proposal, and to the extent applicable,
any City agreement or policy providing incentives to the Developer concerning
affordable/Workforce Housing.

The proposed AMI unit affordability mix as set forth in the Joint Proposal is 1) 25 units
with rents set at or below 30% of 80% the then current AMI [12 studio units; 10 one bedroom
units; and 3 two bedroom units]; ii) 130 units with rents set at or below 30% of 120% the then
current AMI [63 studio units; 53 one bedroom units; and 14 two bedroom units], and iii) 65
Market Rent Units that are not subject to rent restrictions [32 studio units; 26 one bedroom units;
and 7 two bedroom units]. The Workforce Housing units represent approximately 70% of the
total available units as currently contemplated.

The overall unit mix is anticipated to change to reflect increased two-bedroom units with
rents set at or below 30% of 120% the then current AMI to respond to comments received from
the Agency Board. Final unit mix, unit affordability and project rental requirements are subject
to Agency Board approval pursuant to Section 4.5. The Workforce Housing Project will be
restricted as set forth in the Affordable Housing Covenant (Attachment 11).

The Joint Proposal further contemplates approximately forty-five (45) on-site parking
stalls accessible from the alley, together with not less than sixty-five (65) off-site parking stalls to
be provided as part of the proposed Block 68 S Mobility Hub project,?2 which within the Agency’s
parking ownership, not less than sixty-five (65) residential parking passes will be made available
to the Workforce Housing Project tenants at market rate, or such other locations secured by
Developer. Depending on the resolution of the need for public parking for the Project, the Parties
will consider the need for a Parking Agreement to address parking rights and obligations within
the Block 68 S Mobility Hub project.

2 |t is anticipated 1010 W. Jefferson Street will be conveyed pursuant to the terms of the Block 68 South
Disposition and Development Agreement for the development of the Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility Hub Project
as proposed in the Joint Proposal.

10



The ground floor activated space of the Project is intended to be approximately 10,185
square feet which may be leased to or potentially owned by YMCA, leased to retailers and/or
commercial users, or other permitted users under applicable law and this Agreement. The
Workforce Housing Project is anticipated to be LEED Certified and Developer is bound by the
Green Building Certification (Attachment 10). The Workforce Housing Project shall be
constructed consistent with the City of Boise’s Green Construction Code in place as of the date
of the Green Building Certificate. In the event the Green Construction Code does not pertain to
the construction type, Developer will obtain written confirmation from a Boise City building
official that the Workforce Housing Project meets or exceeds the Green Construction Code in
place as of the Effective Date consistent with the requirements set forth in Boise City Code, Title
9, Chapter 13 as if the Workforce Housing Project was governed by the Green Construction Code.

In addition to the Workforce Housing Project, the Project may also include public
infrastructure improvements related to that portion of the Rebuild 11t Street Project adjacent
to the Site and includes other Public Project Improvements, as more specifically described in
Section 11, and the Type 4 Agreement, and any other improvements installed for the benefit of
the public as part of the Project.

Collectively, the Workforce Housing Project, the portion of the Rebuild 11" Street Project
to be undertaken by Developer, and the Public Project Improvements are referred to as the

“Project.”

The Workforce Housing Project will substantially conform to the Scope of Development
as set forth in the Joint Proposal.

2.6. Disposition Does Not Contemplate Land Speculation

Developer represents and warrants that each of its undertakings pursuant to this
Agreement are and will be used for the purpose of the development of the Project in compliance
with the Urban Renewal Law, and not for speculation in landholding. Agency’s conveyance of the
Property to Developer is for the express purpose of constructing the Project and no substitution
or replacement project is permitted under the terms of this Agreement without the express
written permission from the Agency Board.

2.7. Selection of Developer

Developer further recognizes that in view of:

(1) The importance of the Project as part of the development of the Property to the
general welfare of the community;

11



(2) the reliance by Agency on the real estate expertise of Developer and the
continuing interest which Developer will have in the Project to assure the quality
of the use, operation, and maintenance of the development thereof; and

(3) the fact that a change in control of Developer or any other act or transaction
involving or resulting in a change with respect to the identity of the parties in
control of Developer as of the Effective Date (other than in the event of death or
incapacity of any non-entity manager of Developer), or the degree thereof may be
for practical purposes a transfer or disposition of any portion of the Project;

the qualifications and identity of Developer are of particular concern to Agency, and it is because
of such qualifications and identity that Agency has entered into this Agreement with Developer.
No voluntary or involuntary successor in interest of Developer shall acquire any rights or powers
under this Agreement except as expressly set forth herein. Except as provided herein, Developer
shall not assign all or any part of this Agreement without the prior written approval of Agency.

Developer warrants and represents to Agency that Developer is a manager-managed
limited liability company. The sole managers of Developer are J. Dean Papé, and Jill Sherman,
respectively (each a “Manager”, or collectively, the “Managers”). J. Dean Papé is acting pursuant
to the authority granted to him by DeChase Development Services LLC and Jill Sherman is acting
pursuant to the authority granted to her by Edlen and Co., LLC. Collectively, the Managers have
full and exclusive authority, power, and discretion to manage and control the business and affairs
of Developer relating to the acquisition and development of the Project, without the need for
approval by the members of Developer. A copy of the Operating Agreements for DeChase
Development Services LLC and Edlen and Co., LLC will be provided to Agency within thirty (30)
days of the Effective Date, which Operating Agreements will confirm the authority of J. Dean
Papé, and Jill Sherman to manage and control the business and affairs of Developer with the
requisite authority granted by DeChase Development Services LLC and Edlen and Co., LLC. A copy
of Developer’s Operating Agreement confirming the authority of J. Dean Papé, and Jill Sherman
to manage and control the business and affairs of Developer will be provided to Agency promptly
following signature by the members. The following shall not be changed without the prior
written approval of Agency until the Certificate of Completion and Temporary Certificate of
Occupancy have been issued: (a) the structure of Developer as a manager-managed limited
liability company; (b) the identity of the Managers; (c) a reduction in number of Managers; (d)
the authority of the Managers as it relates to the Property and the Project (other than in the
event of death or incapacity of any non-entity Manager of Developer); and (e) Edlen & Company
and deChase Miksis continue to be members of Developer. The representations and warranties
made in this paragraph are true and correct as of the Effective Date.

It shall not be unreasonable for Agency to withhold its approval to assign all or any part
of this Agreement when using criteria such as those used by this Agency in selecting redevelopers
for similar developments, or because the proposed transferee does not have the current financial
strength, the experience, or reputation for integrity equal to or better than Edlen & Company

12



and deChase Miksis as of the Effective Date. Developer shall promptly notify Agency of any and
all changes whatsoever in the identity of the Managers. This Agreement may be terminated by
Agency if there is any significant change (voluntary or involuntary) in the management or control
of Developer in violation of this Agreement (other than such changes occasioned solely by the
death or incapacity of an individual of any non-entity Manager of Developer) that has not been
approved by Agency prior to the time of such change, if such change occurs prior to the issuance
of the Certificate of Completion. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Agency consents to the
assignment of this Agreement to Block 69 North Investment LLC, at or prior to Closing. Developer
represents and warrants that Block 69 North Investment LLC will be controlled by Developer
through its Managers such that Developer and its Managers have full and exclusive authority,
power, and discretion to manage and control the business and affairs of Block 69 North
Investment LLC, the assignee of Developer’s rights and obligations hereunder relating to the
acquisition and development of the Project. Developer and Block 69 North Investment LLC (the
“Permitted Transferee”) shall execute an assignment and assumption agreement, and deliver the
same to Agency prior to Closing (a “Permitted Transfer”). After the Permitted Transfer, the
Permitted Transferee shall be Developer for the purposes of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof prior to issuance of the Certificate of
Completion, Developer or the Permitted Transferee reserves the right, at its discretion and
without the prior written consent of Agency, subject to the disclosure requirements set forth
below, to have investors in the Project, provided that Developer maintains operating control for
day-to-day operations and development of the Project and remains fully responsible to Agency
as provided in this Agreement with respect to the Property. This section is not deemed to
preclude mortgage-lender participation and conditions therein, provided such mortgage-lender
participation complies with this Agreement.

Prior to the issuance of the Certificate of Completion, Developer is required to make full
disclosure to Agency of its principals, officers, managers, and key managerial employees involved
in the Project and all similar material information concerning Developer, to the extent relevant
to the performance hereunder. Developer shall not be required to identify its investors due to
confidentiality concerns.

3. RIGHT OF ENTRY/REVIEW OF TITLE

3.1 Right of Entry; Developer's Investigations

The Parties previously entered into an Access Agreement on June 6, 2022, which was
subsequently amended by the First Amendment to the Access Agreement, dated June 30, 2022,
to add the YMCA as a party, which may be further amended from time to time (collectively, the
“Access Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the Access Agreement, the Agency and YMCA
granted Developer a limited, revocable license and right to reasonably access the Site for the
purpose of conducting due diligence as further described therein (the “Due_ Diligence
Investigations”). The Due Diligence Investigations have commenced, and the results of the Due

13



Diligence Investigations will be shared with the YMCA and the Parties pursuant to the Access
Agreement, the Land Exchange Agreement, and this Agreement.

Pursuant to the Land Exchange Agreement, the YMCA granted Agency, its agents,
employees, and engineers a right of entry to the YMCA Parcels during the Due Diligence Period
set forth in the Land Exchange Agreement for the purpose of undertaking such examinations,
studies, surveys, inspections, and investigations as are reasonably necessary to investigate the
conditions of the YMCA Parcels. To facilitate development of the Project, Developer requires a
right of entry on the Property to examine and investigate the conditions of the Property. Subject
to the YMCA’s written consent, Developer and its agents, contractors, consultants, and
employees shall be given permission to access the Property at all reasonable times during the
Due Diligence Period set forth in the Land Exchange Agreement (unless earlier termination of the
Land Exchange Agreement or this Agreement occurs), during normal business hours, for the
purpose of conducting tests and inspections of the Property, including surveys and architectural,
engineering, geotechnical and environmental inspections and tests; provided, however, any
intrusive or invasive investigations (e.g., core sampling, and including, without limitation, any
environmental testing other than a Phase | or Phase Il Environmental Site Assessment or update
to any prior environmental assessments) shall be subject to the YMCA's prior written consent.

Developer shall provide to Agency (with a copy to the YMCA), promptly upon completion
and receipt of the same and at no cost or expense to Agency (or the YMCA), a list of all reports,
studies and test results prepared by Developer's consultants and copies of any of the above-listed
materials. All of the foregoing inspections shall be performed by Developer at Developer's sole
cost and expense subject to the Access Agreement, the Land Exchange Agreement, and this
Agreement

Developer’s access to the Property shall be governed by the Access Agreement, the Land
Exchange Agreement, and this Agreement.

If the Due Diligence Investigations of the Property is not satisfactory to Developer for any
reason, or no reason whatsoever, then at any time on or before the expiration of the Due
Diligence Period, Developer shall give written notice of termination of this Agreement to the
Agency with a copy to the YMCA. On such termination, all rights and obligations of the Parties
under this Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect, except to the extent
the same expressly survive the termination hereof. Failure to provide such written notice prior
to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period shall be deemed Developer’s approval of its Due
Diligence Investigations of the Property and the Due Diligence Materials.

To facilitate review of the Due Diligence Investigations and title to the YMCA Parcels and
the Agency Exchange Parcel, as further described below, and as the YMCA is not a party to this
Agreement and Developer is not a party to the Land Exchange Agreement, the YMCA is intending
to consent to or has consented to the assignment of Agency’s rights, interests and obligations in
the Land Exchange Agreement to review and approve Due Diligence Investigations related to the

14



Property to Developer, as may be further set forth in a separate assignment and assumption
agreement between Agency, the YMCA, and Developer.

Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency, and its officers, officials,
representatives, members, employees, volunteers and agents from and against any and all loss,
cost, liability or expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) arising from the entries of
Developer, its agents, contractors, consultants, and employees upon the Property or from
Developer's failure to comply with the conditions to Developer's entry onto the Property
pursuant to the terms of the Access Agreement, the Land Exchange Agreement, and as otherwise
provided for herein. Such indemnity shall survive the Close of Escrow or the termination of this
Agreement for any reason.

3.2 Review of Title; Approved Title Exceptions

Prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, Developer received a Title Commitment for
Title Insurance and underlying title documents disclosed therein for the Agency Exchange Parcel
issued by the Title Company under Commitment No. 22459858 having an effective date of July
28, 2022, and the YMCA Parcels under Commitment No. 22459864 having an effective date of
August 18, 2022 (collectively, the "Title Report") (Attachment 5).

Title Review of the YMCA Parcels is set forth in the Land Exchange Agreement and the
Partial Assignment and Assumption Agreement by and between Agency and Developer and
consented to by the YMCA. To the extent the Land Exchange is not a simultaneous closing with
the Close of Escrow under this Agreement and closes more than twenty (20) business days prior
to the Close of Escrow under this Agreement, Title Review in this Agreement will be limited to
the following:

Not less than twenty (20) business days prior to the Close of Escrow, Developer shall
obtain a supplement to the Title Report (with the understanding that Developer shall have the
right to order updates to the Title Report at any time prior to Close of Escrow) disclosing any new
title matters that may adversely affect the development of the Project, not disclosed to
Developer prior to the Effective Date. Developer shall have five (5) business days from receipt of
such supplemental title report (and all underlying documents referenced therein) to notify
Agency of any objections ("Supplemental Title Objections") it may have with respect to the
supplemental title report.

If Developer does not give such notice within such five (5) business day period, such
failure shall be conclusively deemed to be Developer's approval of those matters.

If Developer has any Supplemental Title Objections, Agency shall have five (5) business
days after receipt thereof to notify Developer that Agency (a) will cause or (b) elects not to cause
any or all of the Supplemental Title Objections disclosed therein to be removed or insured over
by the Title Company in a manner reasonably satisfactory to Developer. Agency's failure to notify

15



Developer within such five (5) business day period as to any Supplemental Title Objections shall
be deemed an election by the Agency not to remove or have the title company insure over such
Supplemental Title Objection. The failure to cure any Supplemental Title Objection as specifically
agreed to by the Parties constitutes a breach of the Agreement.

If Agency notifies or is deemed to have notified Developer that Agency shall not remove
nor have the Title Company insure over any or all of the Supplemental Title Objections within the
time periods provided herein, then Developer shall have three (3) business days to respond to
Supplemental Title Objections to either (a) terminate this Agreement; or (b) waive the
Supplemental Title Objections and cause Agency to proceed to Closing, without any abatement
or reduction in the purchase price on account of such Supplemental Title Objections; or (c)
propose an abatement or reduction in the purchase price on account of such Supplemental Title
Objections, which the Agency shall have two (2) business days to accept or reject. To the extent
there is an unforeseen encumbrance clouding title, the parties agree to promptly and reasonably
cooperate with each other in good faith to resolve the title issue to allow the transaction to
proceed.

If Developer does not give notice within the applicable time period for Supplemental Title
Objections, Developer shall be deemed to have elected to waive the Supplemental Title
Objections, as applicable. Developer shall be entitled to request additional endorsements to the
final Title Policy and to obtain extended Title policy, at no cost or expense to Agency but with
Agency’s reasonable and customary cooperation, including the execution of a customary and
commercially reasonable owner’s affidavit from either the YMCA or the Agency, as required by
the Title Company, unless the same are necessary to satisfy or remove any Supplemental Title
Objections.

3.3 Compliance with Laws

Developer shall comply with applicable laws and building codes with respect to any
investigations on the Property prior to Closing.

34 Demolition and Clearance

The Parties acknowledge there will not be any pre-Closing demolition of any structures
existing on the Property in preparation for development of the Project. It is expected that within
sixty (60) days of Closing, the City will issue a permit and Developer will commence demolition
and clearance on the Site. Cost estimates for demolition and clearance, any environmental
remediation, and any site and soil remediation, including soil compaction, shall be included in
the Reuse Appraisal as a development cost.

16



4. EVIDENCE OF PROJECT FINANCING AND UNIT MIX, AFFORDABILITY AND PROJECT
RENTAL REQUIREMENTS

4.1. Submission of Preliminary Evidence of Financing

No later than two hundred seventy (270) days after the Effective Date or such later time
as may be approved by Agency, Developer shall submit to Agency's Executive Director evidence
reasonably satisfactory to the Executive Director that Developer will have at or before Closing
the financial capability necessary for the acquisition of the Property and the development of the
Project thereon pursuant to this Agreement. Such preliminary evidence of financial capability
may include all of the following depending on the structure of the final financing of the Project:

(a) Reliable cost estimates for Developer's total cost of acquiring the Property and
developing the Project (including both “hard” and "soft” costs) ("Project Budget").

(b) A copy of a loan term sheet, obtained by Developer from a qualified lender
supervised, approved, regulated, or insured by any agency of the Federal
government, in part, identifying Developer as the borrower, including the amount
to be loaned, and any expiration date, if any, of such term sheet. If there is a
funding gap, Developer will submit a certified statement identifying the amount
of the funding gap and the general sources of funds anticipated to cover the
funding gap to finance acquisition of the Property and construction of the Project,
including those from public agencies. Evidence of closing the funding gap
reasonably satisfactory to the Executive Director will be a closing condition. Each
commitment for financing shall be in such form and content acceptable to the
Executive Director and shall reasonably evidence a firm and enforceable
commitment, with only those contingencies and conditions that are standard or
typical for similar projects prior to land closing.

(c) If applicable, copies of documents related to any City incentives non-monetary
and/or monetary related to the construction and/or financing of the Project.

(d) If the total Project Budget exceeds the amount of financing commitments received
pursuant to subparagraph (b) or (c) above, evidence reasonably satisfactory to the
Executive Director of the Agency demonstrating that Developer has adequate
funds available and committed to cover such difference.

Developer acknowledges the Agency reserves the right, in its discretion, to have the Developer’s
submitted evidence of financing be subject to a third-party review.

4.2. Time to Approve Preliminary Evidence of Financing.

Agency shall approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove of Developer’s preliminary
evidence of financing within thirty (30) days of receipt of a complete submission. Agency's
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. If Agency's Executive
Director shall conditionally approve or disapprove such evidence of financing, he or she shall do

17



so by written notice to Developer stating the specific reasons for such conditional approval or
disapproval. In the event Agency disapproves of Developer’s preliminary evidence of financing,
Developer shall promptly resubmit its evidence of financial capability, as modified to conform to
Agency's requirements, not more than forty-five (45) days after receipt of the Agency Executive
Director's disapproval.

4.3. Public Records Law

All information submitted to Agency may be subject to the Idaho Public Records Law. As
an alternative to formal submittal of this required information, Developer may allow or require
an inspection and review of such information by Agency. In such case, Agency shall provide a
notice of conditional approval of the evidence of financing in writing within the time allotted in
Section 4.2.

4.4. Lender Modifications and Assighment

The Parties acknowledge that substantial debt and equity financing will be necessary for
the development of the Project. This debt and equity financing may include any mortgage, deed
of trust, monetary lien, financing conveyance, or other voluntary monetary lien of any kind (each,

as “Mortgage”).

4.4.1. Lender

For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Lender" shall singly and collectively include the
following: (a) any lender under a Mortgage concerning all or any portion of the Property, (b) any
insurer or guarantor of any obligation or condition secured by a Mortgage concerning all or any
portion of the Property, and (c) any successor or assign of the foregoing.

4.4.2. Requested Provisions of Any Mortgage

Developer agrees to request that any Mortgage provide that the Lender shall give notice to
Agency in writing by registered or certified mail of the occurrence of any default by Developer
under the Mortgage, and that Agency shall be given notice at the time any Lender initiates any
Mortgage foreclosure action. In the event of any such default, Agency shall have the right to cure
such default, provided that Developer is given not less than ten (10) days’ prior notice of Agency’s
intention to cure such default. If Agency shall elect to cure such default, Developer shall pay the
cost thereof to Agency upon demand, together with the interest thereon at the maximum
interest rate permitted by law, unless (i) Developer cures such default within such 10- day period,
or (ii) if curing the default requires more than ten (10) days and Developer shall have commenced
cure within such ten (10) days after such notice, Developer shall have (A) cured such default
within thirty (30) days or such greater time period as may be allowed by Lender after
commencing compliance, or (B) obtained from the Lender a written extension of time in which
to cure such default.

18



4.4.3. Application of Agreement to Lender’s Remedies

No provision of this Agreement shall limit the right of any Lender to foreclose or
otherwise enforce any Mortgage, nor the right of any Lender to pursue any remedies for the
enforcement of any pledge or lien upon the Property; provided, however, that in the event of a
foreclosure sale under any such Mortgage or sale pursuant to any power of sale contained in
any such Mortgage, the purchaser or purchasers and their successors and assigns and the
Property shall be, and shall continue to be, subject to all of the conditions, restrictions and
covenants herein provided for, including past due obligations of Developer.

444, Accommodate of Lenders

Agency is obligated to act reasonably in all dealings with Lenders, to make reasonable
accommodations with respect to the interests of Lenders, and to agree to reasonable
amendments to this Agreement as reasonably requested by a prospective lender.

4.4.5. Assignment for Security Purposes

Developer shall be entitled to assign its interest in this Agreement and the Project, for
security purposes only, to any Lender, upon Agency’s reasonable consent, provided such
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed if the final construction
loan documents substantially comply with preliminary evidence of financing required per this
Agreement, and they are otherwise on commercially reasonable terms and conditions. Agency
shall reasonably cooperate to negotiate and execute any commercially reasonable financing
documents acceptable to Agency required by any Lender to close the construction financing as
part of the larger Closing, which do not impair the Agency’s rights under or intent of the
Agreement.

Should Lender exercise its assignment rights, Lender agrees to cure Developer’s defaults
under this Agreement.

Lender requested modifications to the Agreement must be submitted to the Executive
Director for the Agency Board’s consideration for approval at its next regularly scheduled
meeting pursuant to agenda posting requirements under Title 74, Chapter 2, Idaho Code and
Agency policy.

4.5. Submission of Unit Documentation

Following the Effective Date of the ANE, the Parties have worked to refine the unit mix
and unit affordability to respond to direction from the Agency Board. The updated proposal
currently includes:

19



Unit Size Total Avg. SF
Micro Studio
Studio

Developer’s refined proposal significantly increases the total number of two-bedroom
units from twenty-four (24) to fifty (50). Additionally, the updated proposal includes six (6)
different unit sizes as opposed to three (3) different unit sizes identified in the Joint Proposal.
The unit affordability mix is also consistent with Agency Board’s direction and increases the
number of two-bedroom 80% AMI units from three (3) units to six (6) units, and includes a diverse
mix of unit sizes across unit affordability mix as shown below:

Unit Size Total 80% AMI 120% AMI Market Rate
Micro Studio 28 3 17 8
Studio 25 3 15 7
Open 1 Bedroom 25 3 15 7
One Bedroom 69 8 41 20
One Bedroom + Den 20 2 12 6
Two Bedroom 50 6 30 14
Total 217 25 130 62

No later than one hundred eighty (180) days after the Effective Date or such later time as
may be approved by Agency, Developer shall submit to Agency's Executive Director for the
Agency Board’s consideration for approval at its next regularly scheduled meeting pursuant to
agenda posting requirements under Title 74, Chapter 2, Idaho Code and Agency policy the
following:

(a) Unit mix identifying the different unit types and how many of each will be included
in the Project;

(b) Description of unit affordability by percentage of AMI (80%, 120%, or market rate)
and the corresponding unit mix;

20



(c) Matrix showing updates to unit mix and unit affordability as set forth in the Joint
Proposal;

(d) Written statement describing in detail any changes to unit mix and unit
affordability;

(e) Representative unit layouts (specifically designed for this Project);

(f) General representations of intended interior quality/finishes (may be provided
from examples of other projects by Developer);

(8) Minimum square footage of unit types.

(collectively, the “Unit Documentation”). It is anticipated the unit mix and unit affordability will
be the same or better than the refined proposal set forth above.

The Agency Board shall approve or disapprove of Developer's Unit Documentation, and
will direct Agency staff to set forth the Agency Board’s position in writing within fifteen (15) days
of the Agency Board meeting considering the Unit Documentation. Agency's approval of the Unit
Documentation shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed so long as it is
consistent with the intent of the Joint Proposal and RFP goals to provide Workforce Housing and
the overall success of the Project as contemplated by the RFP and Joint Proposal. If the Agency
Board disapproves of any portion of the Unit Documentation, such disapproval shall be in writing
to Developer stating the specific reasons for such disapproval. Developer shall promptly resubmit
Unit Documentation, as modified to conform to Agency's requirements, for Executive Director
approval not more than twenty (20) days after receipt of the Agency's disapproval and this
process shall continue until the Parties reach agreement on the Unit Documentation.

To the extent the Unit Documentation is different from the documentation/information
submitted to the Reuse Appraiser, the updated Unit Documentation as approved by the Agency
Board will need to be immediately submitted to the Reuse Appraisal, and if necessary, the Reuse
Appraisal may need to be supplemented.

5. REUSE APPRAISAL

5.1. Reuse Appraisal

By law, Agency may dispose of real property for no less than the fair reuse value. In order
to determine the fair reuse value, Agency has or will engage Valbridge Property Advisors |
Mountain States (the “Reuse Appraiser”) to determine the fair reuse value for the Property (the
“Reuse Appraisal”) at Agency’s expense.

21



The Reuse Appraisal shall establish the fair reuse value of the parcels to be disposed of
by the Agency as required under the Law (the “Residual Land Value”). If the Residual Land Value
is equal to the Purchase Price, then the Purchase Price will not be adjusted. If the Residual Land
Value is greater than the Purchase Price, the Purchase Price will be the Residual Land Value.

If the Residual Land Value is determined to be less than the Purchase Price by the Reuse
Appraisal, the Purchase Price will be adjusted downwards based on the difference between the
Purchase Price and the Residual Land Value. To the extent the Reuse Appraisal is negative, the
Adjusted Purchase Price (defined in Section 10.2) shall be Zero Dollars ($0.00). In that case, the
amount to be remitted to Developer pursuant to the Purchase Price Adjustment (set forth in
Section 10.3) is limited to Four Million, Four Hundred Sixty-One Thousand and 00/100
(54,461,000.00).

5.2. Reuse Appraisal Data

Within fifteen (15) days of Agency Board approval of the Unit Documentation and
Schematic Design Documentation, Developer shall submit to Agency and the Reuse Appraiser the
data required by the appraiser, which data (“Reuse Appraisal Data”) is needed by the Reuse
Appraiser to prepare the Reuse Appraisal for the Workforce Housing Project. Developer is
required to supplement the Reuse Appraisal Data during the course of the Reuse Appraisal and
shall submit this supplementary data in a timely manner as required by the Reuse Appraiser and
Agency. The Reuse Appraisal Data includes but may not be limited to:

J density of development,

J costs expected to be incurred and revenues expected to be realized in the course
of developing and disposing of the Agency owned parcels,

J residential unit types,

J unit affordability,

J sizes and expected rents,

J construction type and materials,

o exterior and interior finish materials,

J square footages of uses other than residential,

J leasing assumptions for other uses and assets such as office space, retail space
and parking spaces,

J parking stalls and usage

J assumptions regarding soft costs such as marketing and insurance, risks of Agency,
risks of Developer,

J Developer participation in the funding of public facilities and amenities, and

J estimated or actual Developer return including assumptions regarding

entrepreneurial incentive, overhead and administration as these factors apply to
the Project.

22



Developer acknowledges that Agency will be unable to commence the Reuse Appraisal process
without Developer’s submittal of the Reuse Appraisal Data.

6. DISPOSITION AND CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY

6.1. Disposition and Conveyance of the Property

In accordance with and subject to all the terms, covenants, and conditions (including the
attachments) of the Land Exchange Agreement and this Agreement, contingent upon and
following the Closing under the Land Exchange Agreement, the Agency agrees to convey the
entire fee estate of the Property in the condition required pursuant to Section 7 of this
Agreement to Developer.

Developer agrees to develop the Property and complete construction of the Project no
later than December 15, 2025, subject to forced delay as set forth in Section 14.6, for the
consideration, and subject to the terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement, including,
without limitation, as provided in the Schedule of Performance (Attachment 3) and the other
attachments. Agency agrees to meet its obligations herein provided with respect to the Property
including, without limitation, as provided in the Schedule of Performance. The time periods set
forth in the Schedule of Performance may be extended for up to 90 days in total if the delays are
caused by matters beyond Developer’s reasonable control or otherwise consented to by Agency,
or may be extended further for any forced delay as set forth in Section 14.6. Any extension must
be agreed upon in writing by Agency’s Executive Director.

6.1.1. Purchase Price

The purchase price for the Property (the “Purchase Price”) is Six Million, Seven Hundred
Thirty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($6,730,000.00). The Purchase Price includes the fair market
value of the Property unencumbered by this Agreement, as determined by the Parties based
upon the appraisal obtained by the YMCA from Langston & Associates (the “FMV_Appraiser”)
dated March 9, 2022, and based upon the value of the Land Exchange.

6.1.2. Payment of Purchase Price

(a) Deposit. Developer previously deposited with Agency the sum of Twenty-Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($22,500) under the terms of the Agreement to
Negotiate Exclusively. Upon full execution of this Agreement, the Agreement to
Negotiate Exclusively shall be of no further effect concerning terms related to this
Agreement and Project and such sum shall become a deposit under this
Agreement (“Deposit”). The Deposit shall be credited to the Purchase Price upon
the Closing.

23



(b) Closing Funds. Prior to the Closing, the balance of the Purchase Price shall be
deposited into Escrow by Developer by (i) a wire transfer of funds, (ii) cashier's or
certified check drawn on or issued by the offices of a financial institution located
in the State of Idaho, or (iii) cash.

6.2. Escrow

Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Parties agree
to open an escrow (the “Escrow”) with TitleOne Corporation (the “Escrow Agent”). A duplicate
original of this Agreement and the Escrow Instruction Letter (Attachment 13) shall be delivered
to the Escrow Agent upon the opening of the Escrow. Agency and Developer shall provide such
additional escrow instructions as shall be necessary and consistent with this Agreement. The
Escrow Agent hereby is empowered to act under this Agreement and the Escrow Instruction
Letter and, upon indicating its acceptance of the provisions of this Section in writing delivered to
Agency and to Developer within five (5) days after the opening of the Escrow, shall carry out its
duties as Escrow Agent hereunder.

6.2.1. Payment of Costs

Developer and Agency shall each pay one-half of the Escrow fee, any charges for recording
the Deed, the Memorandum, the Affordable Housing Covenant, and the other documents to be
recorded hereunder (to the extent the County Recorder’s Office does not waive such charges).
Agency shall pay the charge for an ALTA standard owner’s policy in the amount of the Purchase
Price. Developer shall pay the charge for any additional title coverage requested by Developer,
including an ALTA extended owner’s policy, if Developer obtains such policies. Developer will be
responsible for paying endorsements desired by Developer except for the cost of any
endorsements Agency agrees to provide to cure any Supplemental Title Objections pursuant to
Section 3.2. Agency and Developer shall each be responsible for their respective attorneys’ fees
and costs. Taxes and assessments, if any, applicable to periods before Closing shall be allocated
to the Property and paid by Developer. Taxes and assessments, if any, applicable to periods after
Closing shall be allocated to the Property and paid by Developer. Agency shall cause all utilities
accounts serving the Property to be terminated on or before Closing unless otherwise requested
by Developer, and shall be responsible for costs associated with such utility services prior to
Closing. All other costs of the Escrow not specifically allocated in this Agreement shall be
allocated to the Parties as is customary in a commercial real estate transaction in Ada County,
Idaho.

6.2.2. Close of Escrow
The Close of Escrow (“Closing”) shall occur within ten (10) days after the date all of the
Agency Closing Conditions and the Developer Closing Conditions in Sections 6.3.1 and 6.3.2
(other than the conditions on the delivery of documents and funds into Escrow, which shall occur

during said ten (10) day period) are satisfied or waived by the benefited Party, but in no event

24



later than December 31, 2023. The Close of Escrow means the fulfillment of the Escrow terms
and conclusion of the Escrow, including, without limitation, the execution of unexecuted
documents, the recordation of documents specified for recording, the issuance of title insurance
policies, the payment of fees and the delivery of funds and documents as directed in the Escrow
Instruction Letter. The Escrow shall close as provided in the Escrow Instruction Letter on or before
the Closing.

6.2.3. Deliveries by Agency

On or before the scheduled Closing Date, Agency shall deliver the following to Escrow

Agent:
(a) the Deed to the Property, duly executed and acknowledged by Agency;
(b) the Memorandum, duly executed and acknowledged by Agency;
(c) the Affordable Housing Covenant, duly executed and acknowledged by Agency;
(d) the Type 4 Capital Improvement and General Assistance Reimbursement
Agreement, duly executed and acknowledged Agency; and
(e) all other documents reasonably required by Escrow Agent from Agency to carry
out and close the Escrow pursuant to this Agreement, including Agency’s portion
of the Escrow fees and prorations.
6.2.4. Deliveries by Developer
On or before the scheduled Closing Date, Developer shall deliver the following to Escrow
Agent:

(a) the balance of the Purchase Price;
(b) the Deed to the Property, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer;
(c) the Memorandum, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer;

(d) Copies of executed construction loan documents for the Project consistent with
the evidence of financing as approved by Agency pursuant to Section 4;

(e) the Affordable Housing Covenant, duly executed and acknowledged by Developer;

(f) the Type 4 Capital Improvement and General Assistance Reimbursement
Agreement, duly executed and acknowledged Developer; and

(g) all other sums and documents reasonably required by Escrow Agent from

25



Developer to carry out and close the Escrow pursuant to this Agreement, including
Developer’s portion of the Escrow fees and prorations.

6.2.5. [RESERVED]
6.2.6. Termination

If the Escrow is not in condition to close before the time for conveyance established in
this Agreement, either Party who then shall have fully performed the acts to be performed before
the Closing, may, in writing, terminate this Agreement in the manner set forth in Section 13.6,
and demand the return of its money, papers, and documents. Thereupon all obligations and
liabilities of the Parties under this Agreement shall cease and terminate in the manner set forth
in Section 13.6. If neither Agency nor Developer shall have fully performed the acts to be
performed before the time for conveyance established in the Schedule of Performance, no
termination shall be recognized until ten (10) days after the Escrow Agent shall have mailed
copies of such demand to the other Party or Parties at the address of its or their principal place
or places of business. If any objections are raised within the 10-day period, the Escrow Agent is
authorized to hold all money, papers, and documents until instructed in writing by both Agency
and Developer or upon failure thereof by a court of competent jurisdiction. If no such demands
are made, the Parties shall cause the Closing to occur as soon as possible. The terms of this
paragraph shall not affect the rights of Agency or Developer to terminate this Agreement under
Section 13 hereof. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to impair or affect the rights or
obligations of Agency or Developer to specific performance.

6.2.7. Amendment to Escrow Instruction Letter

Any amendment to the Escrow Instruction Letter shall be in writing and signed by both
Agency and Developer. At the time of any amendment, the Escrow Agent shall agree to carry out
its duties as Escrow Agent under such amendment.

6.2.8. No Real Estate Commissions or Fees

Agency and Developer each represents that it has not engaged any broker, agent, or
finder in connection with this transaction. Developer agrees to hold Agency harmless from any
claim concerning any real estate commission or brokerage fees arising out of Developer’s actions
and agrees to defend and indemnify Agency from any such claim asserted concerning the
commission or brokerage fees. Agency agrees to hold Developer harmless from any claim
concerning any real estate commission or brokerage fees arising out of Agency’s actions and
agrees to defend and indemnify Developer from any such claim asserted concerning the
commission or brokerage fees. Provided, however, nothing herein shall prevent Developer from
preleasing or preselling space within the Workforce Housing Project, thus incurring real estate
commissions or brokerage fees in connection with those pre-opening activities. In no event,
though, shall Agency be liable for any real estate commission or brokerage fees on account of

26



any such preleasing or preselling activity. J. Dean Papé discloses that he is a broker, but has not
incurred any commissions related to this Agreement.

6.3.

Conditions to Property Transfer

6.3.1. Conditions to Agency’s Obligations

In addition to any other condition set forth in this Agreement in favor of Agency, Agency
shall have the right to condition its obligation to convey the Property to Developer and close the
Escrow upon the satisfaction, or written waiver by Agency, of each of the following conditions
precedent on the Closing Date or such earlier time as provided for herein (collectively, the
“Agency Closing Conditions”):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Permits and Approvals. Developer shall have obtained all land use approvals and
entitlements for the conveyance of the Property and for the development of the
Project from all governmental agencies with jurisdiction, with the exception of
grading permits and building permits. The time period for appealing or challenging
such approvals and entitlements shall have expired with no challenge outstanding.
Developer shall have obtained approval of its final grading plans and building plans
for the Project and grading permits and building permits shall be ready to be
issued upon payment of fees within sixty (60) days of Closing. If reasonably
available from the City, Developer shall provide written confirmation from the City
that the permits and approvals are ready to be issued upon the payment of fees
on or after Closing with a list of remaining open items.

Developer Deliveries Made. Developer has deposited with Escrow Agent all sums
and documents required of Developer by this Agreement for the Closing.

Insurance. Developer shall have timely submitted and obtained Agency’s approval
of the insurance required pursuant to Section 9.1 of this Agreement.

Evidence of Financing. Agency shall have approved Developer’s preliminary
evidence of financing in accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement and
Developer has provided reasonable documentation supporting proof of funds
from a bank or an equity partner(s) showing sufficient funds are available and
committed to this Project to close the funding gap. Developer has executed
construction loan documents, and the financing for the Project shall close
concurrently with the Closing.

Unit Mix, Unit Affordability and Project Rental Requirements. Agency shall have

approved Developer’s Unit Documentation establishing an agreed upon unit mix,
unit affordability and project rental requirements.

27



(f)

(8)

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

(1)

(m)

No Default. Developer shall not be in material default of any of its obligations
under this Agreement (and shall not have received notice of a default hereunder
which has not been cured or is in the cure process), and all representations and
warranties of Developer contained herein shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date of this Agreement and the Closing Date.

Construction Contract. Prior to Closing, Developer shall submit to Agency a
construction contract, or other evidence satisfactory to Agency, with the General
Contractor for the Project that requires the Project to be constructed for an
amount that does not substantially exceed the Project Budget, as described in
Section 4.1(a).

Land Exchange. That Agency and YMCA have entered into the Land Exchange
Agreement for the Agency’s acquisition of the YMCA Exchange Property, and
pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the closing conditions have been satisfied
and/or waived, and the YMCA and the Agency will contemporaneously close the
transaction on the Closing Date if not closed earlier in accordance with the terms
of the Land Exchange Agreement.

Block 68 South Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility Hub Project DDA. Prior to Closing,
Agency and Developer have entered into the Block 68 South Mixed-Use Housing
& Mobility Hub Project DDA and Developer is not in default under the Block 68
South Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility Hub DDA.

Type 4 Agreement. Agency and Developer have entered into Type 4 Agreement
regarding the construction of certain Public Project Improvements and any agreed
upon scope of the Rebuild 11t Street project.

Reuse Appraisal. Prior to Closing, the Reuse Appraiser shall have completed the
Reuse Appraisal, as may have been supplemented.

No Litigation. No actions, suits or proceedings of any kind shall be threatened or
pending that relate to the Property or the Project. No injunctions, orders, decrees,
or rulings shall be in effect that seek to restrain or prohibit, or to obtain damages
or other relief in connection with, the execution or delivery of this Agreement or
the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Parking Agreement. Prior to Closing, Agency and Developer shall agree to a form
Parking Agreement to address parking rights and obligations within the Block 68
South Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility Hub Project to serve the Workforce Housing
Project.

28



(n)

Final Construction Documents. Prior to Closing, the Executive Director has
approved the Final Construction Documents.

6.3.2. Conditions to Developer’s Obligations

In addition to any other condition set forth in this Agreement in favor of Developer,
Developer shall have the right to condition its obligation to purchase the Property and close the
Property Escrow upon the satisfaction, or written waiver by Developer, of each of the following
conditions precedent on the Closing Date or such earlier time as provided for herein (collectively,
the “Developer Closing Conditions”):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Permits and Approvals. Developer shall have obtained all land use approvals and
entitlements for the conveyance of the Property and for the development of the
Project from all governmental agencies with jurisdiction, with the exception of
grading permits, building permits and final condominium plat approvals. The time
period for appealing or challenging such approvals and entitlements shall have
expired with no challenge outstanding. Developer shall have obtained approval of
its final grading plans and building plans for the Project and grading permits and
building permits shall be ready to be issued upon payment of fees within sixty (60)
days of Closing.

Agency Deliveries Made. Agency has deposited with Escrow Agent all documents
required of Agency by this Agreement for the Closing.

Title Policy. The Title Company is unconditionally and irrevocably committed to
issue to Developer at Closing an ALTA standard coverage owner’s title policy, or,
upon Developer’s request, an ALTA extended coverage owner’s policy of title
insurance (“Title Policy”), insuring Developer’s title to the Property in the amount
of the Purchase Price, subject only to the following (collectively, the “Permitted
Title Exceptions”): the standard exceptions and exclusions from coverage
contained in such form of the policy; matters created by, through or under
Developer; items disclosed by the Survey; items that would have been disclosed
by a physical inspection of the Property on the Effective Date; real estate taxes
not yet due and payable; the documents to be recorded under this Agreement;
any mutually agreed upon Supplemental Title Objections; and the exceptions
disclosed in the Title Report. If Developer requests ALTA extended coverage, any
standard exceptions shall not be Permitted Title Exceptions.

No Default. Agency shall not be in material default of any of its obligations under
this Agreement (and shall not have received notice of a default hereunder which
has not been cured or is in the cure process), and Agency’s representations and
warranties contained herein shall be true and correct in all material respects as of
the date of this Agreement and the Closing Date.

29



(e)

(f)

(8)

(h)

(i)

6.4.

Debt and Equity Financing. That Developer is able to obtain financing reasonably
acceptable to Developer, that Agency approved the preliminary evidence of
financing pursuant to Section 4.2, that Developer has sufficient funds available
and committed to this Project to close the funding gap, and that all conditions to
any financing commitments for the Project are satisfied and such commitments
are fulfilled by the lenders and other third parties involved. A commitment to
make a construction loan shall be considered fulfilled upon execution of the loan
agreement by Developer and the lender and depositing with Escrow Agent the
mortgage or deed of trust securing the loan to be executed by Developer as of the
Closing Date.

No Litigation. No actions, suits or proceedings of any kind shall be threatened or
pending that relate to the Project. No injunctions, orders, decrees, or rulings shall
be in effect that seek to restrain or prohibit, or to obtain damages or other relief
in connection with, the execution or delivery of this Agreement or the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

Parking Agreement. Prior to Closing, Agency and Developer shall agree to a form
Parking Agreement to address parking rights and obligations within the Block 68
South Mixed-Use Housing & Mobility Hub Project to serve the Workforce Housing
Project.

Unit Mix, Unit Affordability and Project Rental Requirements. Agency shall have
approved Developer’s Unit Documentation establishing an agreed upon unit mix,
unit affordability and project rental requirements.

Final Construction Documents. Prior to Closing, the Executive Director has

approved the Final Construction Documents.

Satisfaction of Conditions

Where satisfaction of any of the foregoing conditions requires action by Developer or
Agency, each Party shall use its diligent efforts, in good faith, and at its own cost, to expeditiously
satisfy such condition. If a Party is not in a position to know whether or not a condition precedent
has been satisfied, then the Party that is aware of the status of the condition shall immediately
notify the other Party.

6.5.

Waiver

Agency may at any time or times, at its election, waive any of the Agency Closing
Conditions set forth in Section 6.3.1, but any such waiver shall be effective only if contained in a

30



writing signed by Agency and delivered to Developer. Developer may at any time or times, at its
election, waive any of the Developer Closing Conditions set forth in Section 6.3.2, but any such
waiver shall be effective only if contained in a writing signed by Developer and delivered to
Agency. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Agency and Developer shall use all commercially
reasonable efforts to satisfy the Agency Closing Conditions or Developer Closing Conditions, as
applicable, including, without limitation, cooperation to complete any additional documents or
agreements which are not in final form as of the Effective Date.

6.6. Termination

In the event each of the Agency Closing Conditions set forth in Section 6.3.1 is not fulfilled
by the outside date for the Closing Date, or such earlier time period as provided for herein, or
waived by Agency pursuant to Section 6.5, and provided Agency is not in default of this
Agreement, Agency may at its option terminate this Agreement and the Escrow opened
hereunder. In the event that each of the Developer Closing Conditions set forth in Section 6.3.2
is not fulfilled by the outside date for the Closing Date, or such earlier time period as provided
for herein, or waived by Developer pursuant to Section 6.5, and provided Developer is not in
default of this Agreement, Developer may at its option terminate this Agreement and the Escrow
opened hereunder. No termination under this Agreement shall release either Party then in
default from liability for any default. In the event this Agreement is terminated, all closing
documents and funds delivered by Agency to Developer or Escrow Agent shall be returned
immediately to Agency and all closing documents and funds delivered by Developer to Agency or
Escrow Agent shall be returned immediately to Developer; provided, however, that Developer
shall retain the Deposit, less the Agency costs incurred for the Reuse Appraiser, so long as
Developer has fully performed the obligations required to be performed by Developer prior to
that time.

7. CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY

7.1. “Asls”

Subject to Agency’s representations, covenants, and warranties expressly set forth in
this Agreement, Developer acknowledges and agrees that any portion of the Property that it
acquires from Agency pursuant to this Agreement shall be purchased “as is” Subject to the Due
Diligence Investigations.

Agency makes no representations or warranties with respect to whether the Property is

currently, or in the future, located either wholly or partially in a flood plain or a flood hazard
boundary or similar area.

31



7.2. Agency Representations

Agency represents and warrants to Developer as follows: (1) Developer has been provided
with complete copies of the Title Reports for the Agency Exchange Parcel and the Property; (2)
pursuant to the Access Agreement, Agency has provided Developer access to the Agency
Exchange Parcel and the YMCA has provided Developer access to the Property to conduct Due
Diligence Investigations, including completing the Environmental Reports, the geotechnical
Reports, and the ALTA surveys; (3) the individuals entering into this Agreement on behalf of
Agency have the authority to bind Agency; (4) entering into this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all
necessary Agency action and do not violate the laws governing Agency’s activities or any other
agreement to which Agency is a party; and (6) unless otherwise disclosed and agreed to by the
Parties, there will be no tenants, occupants, or other Parties in possession of the Property. These
representations and warranties shall survive Close of Escrow and delivery of the Deed to
Developer.

7.3. Environmental Release and Waiver

Subject to Agency’s representations and warranties expressly set forth in this Agreement
or as otherwise disclosed in the Environmental Reports, Developer hereby releases and waives
all rights, claims, or causes of action Developer may have in the future against Agency arising out
of or in connection with any Hazardous Materials at, on, in, beneath, or from the Property for
any periods before or after the Closing Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the course
of construction, in the event Developer discovers environmental matters or conditions that
otherwise could not be discovered during the Due Diligence Investigations, Developer and
Agency will meet to determine whether costs may be reimbursed through the Type 4 Agreement,
or, if available, Agency may participate in those costs available to it through state or local
programs to fund corrective actions for poor soil and related construction matters

8. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY

8.1. Scope of Development

The Property shall be developed subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement
and consistent with the Scope of Development as set forth in the Joint Proposal.

8.2. Local, State, and Federal Laws

Developer shall carry out any required construction of the Project in conformity with all
applicable laws, including all applicable federal and state labor standards.

32



8.3. Antidiscrimination During Construction

Developer, for itself and its successors and assigns, agrees that in the construction of the
improvements provided for in this Agreement, Developer will not discriminate against any
employee or applicant for employment because of physical disability, race, color, creed, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity/ expression, marital status, ancestry, or national origin.

8.4. Acknowledgement

The Parties acknowledge Developer submitted to Agency the Scope of Development as
part of the Joint Proposal, which Joint Proposal was approved by the Agency Board with comment
on December 13, 2021 (Attachment 6).

8.5. Schematic Design Documentation

8.5.1. Schematic Design Drawings and Schematic Design Documents

Within one hundred eighty (180) days of the Effective Date and at or prior to submitting
the design review application to the City of Boise, Developer shall submit Schematic Design
Documents (defined below) to the Agency's Executive Director, and following receipt of a
complete submission, the Agency Board will consider the Schematic Design Documents for
approval at its next regularly scheduled meeting pursuant to agenda posting requirements
under Title 74, Chapter 2, Idaho Code and Agency policy. The Schematic Design Drawings shall
also include the site/landscaping plans, which should indicate integration with and any
coordinated scope of the previously permitted Rebuild 11" Street project and show the
planned Public Project Improvements (the “Schematic Design Drawings”).

Developer shall also include the following documents and information with its
submission of the Schematic Design Drawings to the Executive Director:

(a) A written summary of progress on, or modifications to, mobility and
sustainability initiatives identified in the Joint Proposal, including the following
information:
J short narrative on how site design prioritizes pedestrian, cyclist, and
transit mobility;

J how goals for reducing energy and water use have been considered in

the selection of mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems (if available);

J feasibility/progress regarding Project-wide energy and utility systems
(central plant);

J use of geothermal system;

J inclusion of recycling and composting facilities; and

J number and location of electric vehicle charging stations.

33



(b) A clear chart showing itemized changes or new information from the approved
Joint Proposal, including:

e square footage by type of uses

e floor plans

e number of parking spaces and bike racks

e site plan

e perspective renderings

e targeted ground floor uses

e floor heights (14' ground, minimum 9' for the majority of the living space of

in-unit residential)
e development schedule and duration

(collectively, the Schematic Design Drawings, together with the additional submitted
information may be referred to as the “Schematic Design Documentation.”)

Within ten (10) business days of a complete submission of the Schematic Design
Documentation to Agency, Agency and Developer will meet at least once in person to review
Agency staff comments to the Schematic Design Drawings before they are presented to the
Agency Board.

The Agency Board will evaluate the Schematic Design Documentation on whether it is
consistent or how it compares with the intent of the Joint Proposal and RFP goals to provide
Workforce Housing and the overall success of the Project as contemplated by the RFP and the
Joint Proposal. The Agency Board approval will depend on Project:

° contributing to an exceptional built environment and authentic neighborhood
fabric;

. embracing density and providing for activity conducive to a compact, mixed-use
downtown;

° active ground-floor uses;

° enhancing pedestrian, bike, and transit accessibility and connections;

. considering and integrating existing mobility plans

° working to mitigate climate impact with innovative design and utility system

infrastructure and facilities

The Agency Board shall approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove of Developer's
Schematic Design Review Documentation, and will direct Agency staff to set forth the Agency
Board’s position in writing within fifteen (15) days of the Agency Board meeting considering the
Schematic Design Documentation. Agency's approval of the Schematic Design Documentation
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed so long as it is consistent with the
intent of the Joint Proposal and RFP goals to provide Workforce Housing and the overall success
of the Project as contemplated by the RFP and the Joint Proposal. If the Agency Board

34



conditionally approves or disapproves of any portion of the Schematic Design Documentation,
such conditional approval or disapproval shall be in writing to Developer stating the specific
conditions to the Agency Board’s approval or reasons for such disapproval. Developer shall
promptly resubmit Schematic Design Documentation, as modified to conform to Agency's
requirements, for Executive Director approval not more than twenty (20) days after receipt of
the Agency's conditional approval or disapproval and this process shall continue until the Parties
reach agreement on the Schematic Design Documentation.

Developer may proceed with submitting the design review application to the City of Boise
pending the Agency Board’s consideration of the Schematic Design Documentation; however,
the Agency shall have approved the Schematic Design Documentation prior to Developer
obtaining final approval of the Design Review Documents from the City. To the extent the Agency
approved Schematic Design Documentation requires modifications to the plans and/or drawings
submitted with the original design review application to the City, Developer will submit, or
resubmit the modified design review application to the City.

Agency acknowledges the Developer’s plans and drawings may be continually modified
during any Agency review period in order to avoid delay of Developer’s obligations hereunder,
and any such changes shall be included in Schematic Design Drawings re-submitted to the Agency
in response to Agency changes identified by the Agency Board and/or staff, as the case may be,
and set forth in the conditional approval or disapproval of the Schematic Design Documentation.

To the extent the plans and drawings submitted by Developer to the City are subject to
revisions during the City’s design review process, Developer shall provide Agency all updated and
revised plans and drawings, including copies of any materials at the time they are submitted to
the City, and a clear chart showing itemized changes from the initial submission of the Schematic
Design Drawings to the Agency Board, or as may have been modified:

J square footage by type of uses

J development schedule and duration

. number of parking spaces and bike racks
J perspective renderings

J floor plans

J site plan

J landscaping schedule

Agency will review the materials as submitted; however, Developer must immediately
inform Agency of any substantial change (as defined in Section 8.11) to the Agency approved
Schematic Design Drawings, which may require additional Agency Board approval. Agency and
Developer agree to work collaboratively through the design review process.

35



8.6. Design Development Drawings

Within two hundred forty (240) days from the Effective Date, Developer shall submit the
design development drawings, which for purposes of this Agreement means the design
development set as determined by when submission would be the least disruptive to Developer
(the “Design Development Drawings”) to the Executive Director for review and approval.
Agency shall review or disapprove of the Design Development Drawings within twenty-one (21)
days of receiving a complete submission. The purpose of Agency review and approval is to
ensure Project design is progressing in alignment with the Unit Documentation and the
Schematic Design Drawings as approved by the Agency Board and that there has not been a
substantial change (as defined in Section 8.11). Agency Executive Director approval of the
Design Development Drawings shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.
The submission of the Design Development Drawings shall include a clear chart showing
itemized changes from the Agency Board approved Unit Documentation and Schematic Design
Documentation, including:

. square footage by type of uses

. unit mix

° unit affordability

. floor plans and unit layouts

. interior finishes schedule

° number of parking spaces and bike racks

. site plan

. landscaping plan and schedule

° building elevations/sections listing all exterior finishes
. public improvements plans

. integration of Rebuild 11" Street

. construction schedule and duration

° summary of mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems, use of

geothermal system and energy/utility sustainability initiatives

Developer must inform Agency of any substantial change (as defined in Section 8.11) to
the Agency approved Unit Documentation or Schematic Design Drawings, which may require
additional Agency Board approval, subject to the process outlined in Section 8.11. Agency and
Developer agree to work collaboratively through the design review process.

8.7. Final Construction Documents

At least sixty (60) days prior to Closing, and no later than time Developer submits its
application for the issuance of a building permit, Developer shall submit to the Executive Director
the Final Construction Drawings for Agency review and approval. The purpose of Agency review
and approval is to ensure Project design is progressing in alighment with the Agency approved

36



Unit Documentation, the Schematic Design Drawings and the Design Development Drawings.
The submission of the Final Construction Drawings shall include a clear chart showing itemized
changes from the Board approved Unit Documentation and Design Development Drawings,
including:

° square footage by type of uses

° unit mix

. unit affordability

° floor plans and unit layouts

° interior finishes schedule

° number of parking spaces and bike racks

° site plan

. landscaping plan and schedule

° building elevations/sections listing all exterior finishes
° public improvements plans

. integration of Rebuild 11" Street

° development schedule and duration

° summary of mechanical, electrical and plumbing systems, use of

geothermal system and energy/utility sustainability initiatives

(collectively, the Final Construction Drawings and the itemized chart may be referred to
as the “Final Construction Documents.”)

Within ten (10) business days of a complete submission of the Final Construction
Documents to Agency, Agency and Developer will meet at least once in person to review Agency
staff comments to the Final Construction Drawings. To the extent the Agency has changes to the
Final Construction Drawings requiring modifications to the plans and/or drawings submitted with
the permit application to the City prior to approval by the City, Developer will update the permit
set and will work to incorporate the changes through the City permitting process.

Agency Executive Director review of the Final Construction Drawings will be as set forth
in Section 8.10 and subject to the provisions of Sections 8.8, 8.9, 8.10, and 8.11.

The City’s approval of the Final Construction Drawings shall constitute Agency’s approval
subject to the Executive Director’s approval or conditional approval as set forth in Section 8.10

and except as provided in Section 8.11.

8.8. Agency Approval of Plans, Drawings, and Related Documents

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Agency shall have the right of reasonable review
of all plans and drawings, including any substantial changes therein. Developer shall make every
reasonable effort to present drawings and plans in compliance with the Joint Proposal, or the
subsequent Agency Board approved Unit Documentation, Schematic Design Drawings, Design

37



Development Drawings or Final Construction Drawings. In the event Developer seeks a
substantial change (as defined in Section 8.11) or waiver from the Joint Proposal, or the
subsequent Agency Board approved Unit Documentation, Schematic Design Drawings, Design
Development Drawings or Final Construction Drawings, other than as permitted in this
Agreement, Developer shall so indicate when those drawings and plans are submitted to the
Agency.

8.9. Communication; Revisions

Agency and Developer shall communicate and consult informally as frequently as is
necessary to ensure that the formal submittal of any documents to Agency can receive prompt
and speedy consideration. If any revisions or corrections of Unit Documentation, Schematic
Design Drawings, Design Development Drawings or Final Construction Drawings approved by
Agency shall be required by any government official, agency, department, or bureau having
jurisdiction or any lending institution involved in financing, Developer and Agency shall cooperate
in efforts to revise or correct the plans or drawings or obtain a waiver of such requirements or to
develop a mutually acceptable alternative.

8.10. Prompt Review

Agency Executive Director shall promptly approve, approve conditionally, or disapprove
of the Final Construction Drawings in writing within fifteen (15) days of receiving a complete
submission of the Final Construction Documents. Agency’s review is to ensure Project design is
progressing in alignment with the Agency Board approved Unit Documentation and Schematic
Design Drawings, and the Agency approved Design Development Drawings.

In general, Agency may designate a committee of its members and staff to expedite plan
approvals for drawings not requiring Agency Board approval. Failure by Agency either to approve,
approve conditionally, or to disapprove Design Development Drawings or Final Construction
Documents within the times established in Section 8 shall be deemed a conditional approval. Any
Agency approved Unit Documentation, Schematic Design Documentation, Design Development
Drawings and Final Construction Drawings shall not be subject to subsequent disapproval, unless
there is a substantial change (as defined in Section 8.11) following Agency approval pursuant to
Section 8.11.

8.11. Substantial Changes to Drawings

If Developer desires to make any substantial change in the Unit Documentation,
Schematic Design Drawings, the Design Development Drawings and/or the Final Construction
Drawings after Agency approval, such proposed change shall be submitted to Agency Board for
approval. For purposes of Section 8 only, “substantial change” is defined as any change which by
such change will revise (i) the value or cost of the Project (following completion) by more than
fifteen percent (15%), (ii) change the total useable square footage of the Project by more or less

38



than fifteen percent (15%) (iii) any change to the number of Workforce Housing Units in the
Project, as shown in the Final Construction Documents (iv) any change to the minimum square
footage of Workforce Housing Units, or (v) any change to the exterior design from the Agency
approved Schematic Design Drawings, unless required by the City pursuant to the design review
and permitting process.

Following submission of the proposed substantial change to Agency’s Executive Director,
whether due to Developer or as may be required by the City as part of the design review and
permitting process, and following receipt of a complete submission showing the substantial
change, the Agency Board will consider the proposed substantial change for approval at its next
regularly scheduled meeting pursuant to agenda posting requirements under Title 74, Chapter 2,
Idaho Code and Agency policy. For purposes of review, the Agency Board will ensure the
proposed substantial change is in alignment with the requirements of the RFP and the Joint
Proposal.

The Agency Board shall approve or disapprove of the substantial change, and will direct
Agency staff to set forth the Agency Board’s position in writing within fifteen (15) days of the
Agency Board meeting considering the substantial change. Agency Board's approval of the
substantial change shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed so long as the
proposed substantial change is consistent with the intent of the RFP, Joint Proposal and current
overall Agency goals to provide Workforce Housing and the overall success of the Project. If the
Agency Board disapproves the substantial change, such disapproval shall be in writing to
Developer stating the specific reasons for such disapproval. Developer shall promptly resubmit
the documents supporting the substantial change, as modified to conform to Agency's
requirements, for Executive Director approval not more than twenty (20) days after receipt of
the Agency's disapproval and this process shall continue until the Parties reach agreement on the
scope of the substantial change.

To the extent the substantial change results in a project scope that is different from the
documentation/information submitted to the Reuse Appraiser, the updated documents with the
substantial change as approved by the Agency Board will need to be immediately submitted to
the Reuse Appraisal, and if necessary, the Reuse Appraisal may need to be supplemented.

8.12. Construction Reporting

The Parties acknowledge and agree that communication and cooperation between the
Parties is imperative to the successful completion of the Project and to achieve the objectives of
the Redevelopment Plan. Therefore, the Parties shall endeavor to keep the other Party
sufficiently informed regarding matters related to the development and construction of the
Project so the other Party can have a meaningful opportunity to review, comment, and respond
on matters relating to the other Party’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

39



8.12.1. Developer’s Obligations

Developer, as requested by Agency, shall:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Permit Agency staff to attend weekly and/or monthly construction progress and
design meetings for the Project to permit Agency to assess the progress of
development and construction and assess compliance with the Schedule of
Performance, and the adherence of the development and construction to the
plans approved by Agency;

Provide Agency with a monthly written status report on the Project (consisting of
a simple narrative of the status, an update as to the progress on the schedule of
performance, photos of the Project, and a summary of the percentage of
completion) in sufficient time to allow for their distribution to Agency’s Board of
Commissioners prior to their regular monthly meetings. The Agency Board meets
the second Monday of each month. Developer’s written status report is due to the
Agency two Fridays prior to the Monday meeting;

If requested by Agency, attend and provide oral status reports on the Project at
regular monthly meetings of Agency’s Board of Commissioners;

To the extent the meetings described in Section 8.12.1(a) are not adequate as
determined by Agency, schedule and attend meetings at the request of the
Agency with Agency’s staff, Agency’s consultants, and representatives from the
City of Boise or other public entities (if necessary) not more than two times during
any 90 day period prior to the completion of construction for general coordination
and review of the progress and schedule of the Project, any implementation
agreements or other documents to be submitted by either Party, and any other
tasks necessary or convenient for development of the Project to achieve the
objectives of the Redevelopment Plan; and

If requested by Agency, include Agency name and logo on construction signs,
fencing and other locations in and around the Site during construction.

8.12.2. Agency’s Obligations

In furtherance of this Section, Agency shall:

(a)

(b)

provide timely and meaningful comments to the information, reports, and other
documents submitted to Agency by Developer; and

provide Deve